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HKT
HKT
PCCW PCCW
PCCW HKT
PCCW
HKT HKT HKT
HKT
HKT
HKT HKT
Cheung Hok Chee, Vanessa 2021 10
HKT PCCW
2024 12 31 15
HKT HKT
HKT HKT HKT
HKT
HKT 10
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Company Secretary
979
+852 2962 5926
cosec@hkt.com
HKT HKT
HKT HKT
HKT
www_hkt._com/ir
HKT
HKT
HKT
Corporate Information
2018 11
HKT
HKT HKT
HKT
HKT HKT 2025

HKT
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PCCW 39

HKT HKT
HKT

HKT

HKT HKT

100



2024 12 31
2025 20
58 2011 11
HKT
1999
FWD
PCPD PCPD
PCRD
D.C.

Studies *

HKT
HKT

HKT

HKT
PCCW

International Councillors® Group

Cable & Satellite Broadcasting Association of Asia

Lifetime Achievement Award

60 2018 HKT
2011 11 HKT
HKT
2011 11 2018 HKT
PCCW
PCCW
1999 HKT
PCCW 25
PCCW
2009 2011 11 PCPD
HKT
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2024 30

PCCW
PCCW

Pacific Century Group
FWD Group Holdings Limited

PCPD
PCRD

Center for Strategic and International

Cable & Wireless HKT Limited

2007 PCCW
PCCW
2021 12 PCPD
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Hong
Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation Hong Kong Trade Development
Council Belt and Road & Greater Bay Area Committee
Greater Bay Area Task Force on Innovation and Technology
Digital Economy Development Committee
Employers ® Federation of Hong Kong The Hong Kong
Management Association Institute of
Advanced Management Development
Mox Bank Limited
2024
Medal of Honour
69 2011 11 HKT
HKT
PCRD
PCCW HKT
1999 2011 11 PCCW
1980
Occidental International Oil Incorporated 1976
KPMG 1983 Schlumberger Limited
1989 Vestey Group
1995 Morgan
Grenfell Investment Management (Asia) Limited 1992
Boustead Singapore Limited
1997
64 2011 11 HKT
2010 2011 11 PCCW 1996 11 PCCW
2010 PCCW 1999
1983
2004 Csl CSI Properties Limited
HKC HKC (Holdings) Limited
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50 2023 HKT
HKT 2023 PCCW
PCCW
A- HK
CuCL CTCL CCsCL
China Unicom
13
49 2025 HKT
HKT PCCW PCCW
CuCL
CcucL
1998 Harbin Institute of Technology 2012
Webster University
84 2011 11 HKT
HKT HKT
2000 10 2011 11 PCCW
2006 2007 1996 2007
1994 1996
1990 1994 1985 1990

the Royal Academy of Engineering of the United Kingdom
International Eurasian Academy of Sciences
Commandeur dans 1°Ordre des Palmes Académiques
Chevalier dans 1"0rdre National de la Légion d"Honneur 1999
2002 Gold Bauhinia Star
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Hang Lung Properties Limited Hon Kwok Land Investment
Company, Limited Brightoil Petroleum (Holdings) Limited
Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

81 2011 11 HKT
HKT HKT
Price Waterhouse Management Consultants 1BM 1BM
Consulting Group 40
1994
1996 1998 1BM
1999 2000 Asia Online, Ltd.
2003 HCL- HCL-Perot
Systems
Dr. Lal PathLabs Limited
1962 1966
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 1972
1975 The Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of
India
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1946
1985

1998

2003 12
Emaar MGF Land Limited

Limited

Vedanta Resources plc
Limited
Consumer Products Limited

Wockhardt Limited
Limited
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HKT
2004 PCCW
PCCW HSBC
1967 HSBC HSBC
HSBC
1991
HSBC HSBC
1999
Jet Airways (India)
Cairn India Limited
Tata Consultancy Services
Vedanta Limited Godrej
Tata Steel Limited
Max Financial Services

ING Groep N.V.

Indian School of Business
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63 2015 HKT
HKT 2012 PCCW
PCCwW 2013 2023
PCRD
Good Harbour Finance Limited
McKinsey & Company
1988 Hutchison Whampoa

Weatherite Manufacturing Limited
Metro Broadcast Corporation Limited
TV Star TV

2000

Central Policy Unit
Canadian International School of Hong Kong
Hong Kong Metropolitan University Student
Financial Assistance Agency

45 2024 HKT
2022 12 PCRD
Tastings Group Limited
50
2011
Wine and Spirit Education Trust WSET
Cathay Hong
Kong International Wine & Spirit Competition
Pepperdine University
Singapore Institute of Directors
The Women *s Foundation Mentoring

Programme for Women Leaders

2025 20 HKT
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6,000
Group Purchasing Policy and Principles Supplier Code of Conduct
2018 1S0 9001:2015
Green Council Sustainable
Procurement Charter
loT Al Al
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Programme
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110

HKT

Hotline

Al

99
2024 12
Al
CSL Al
Al 5G Al Academy
25
Teen Strive and Rise Programme

Hong Kong Council of Social
10 Years Plus Caring Company Logo
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Al
GenAl Incubation
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12,000
HKT
My HKT
HKT HKT Elderly
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employer of choice

Graduate Development Programme

GHG
Environmental Advisory Group
GHG 2025
2018 13.2 2024
2023 3.4 292,525,168.00
Environment and Ecology Bureau Charter on External
Lighting Energy Saving Charter
Renewable Energy Feed-in Tariff Scheme
2024 121,925
HKT 2024 CLP CLP Smart Energy Award 2024

Grand
Award

771419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad
GHG

2025 GHG 2018 34.0
2024 GHG 144,867.23
2023 2.8

Producer Responsibility Scheme on Waste Electrical and
Electronic Equipment

Programme for the Endorsement of
Forest Certification

2024
HKT
CLP CLP Holdings Limited
Smart Charge (HK) Limited EV
2024 41
EV 10,000
loT Al
Al
Go Green
2024 12 5G Weather Station
loT
2020 37
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ESG
2024 2024 S&P
S&P Global Sustainability Yearbook (China Edition) 2024
2019 MSCI ESG AA 2024 12
ESG World ESG Screened Index ESG
CTB World ESG Enhanced Focus CTB Index ACWI ESG ACWI ESG
Universal Index
2024 BDO ESG The BDO ESG Awards 2024 ESG
ESG Report of the Year — Large Market Capitalisation ESG

Best in ESG — Large Market Capitalisation Best in

Reporting — Large Market Capitalisation Theme Awards
2024 ESG ESG Achievement Programme 2024
Hong Kong Economic Journal 2024 ESG Ming Pao
ESG Award 2024 ESG Excellence in ESG Award — Listed
Company (Telecom & Technology)
106 562 362
619 486
584 57
HKT

HKT HKT

HKT v
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500,000

2015 12
10
Privacy Commissioner
1,000,000
2025 20 HKT
2025 20
2024 28
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PCRD
2019 2020
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HKT
3.13
3.13
PCRD 2013 15 PCRD PCRD
KSH
2012 11
25.94 5.19
KSH
PCRD
49.87 2.61 12.94
KSH
KSH
KSH
KSH 2.61
KSH
KSH KSH
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3.13
KSH
KSH KSH
KSH HKT
PCRD
HKT
HKT
HKT
352 C3
HKT
2024 12 31 HKT
15
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HKT HKT
HKT
67,655,964 152,802,281 220,458,245 2.91
@) ®)
4,583,867 1,573,601 6,157,468 0.08
30,090 28,730 58,820 0.001
15 HKT
0.0005 HKT
0.0005 HKT
HKT
PCD 20,227,614
46,020,000 1,408,350
100
PCGH 130,511,730
PCGH 100
PCGH 130,511,730
PCRD 22,290,551 PCGH
Anglang Investments Limited
Pacific Century Group (Cayman Islands)
Limited Pacific Century
International Limited Borsington Limited
88.67 PCGH 100
PCRD
22,290,551
PCRD 1.06
HKT HKT pccw
HKT HKT
pccw pccw 2024
PCCW A

83/419



EDINETOOOO

OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HKT
PCCW HKT HKT
PCCW
PCCH PCCW
535,291,134 | 1,928,842,224 2,464,133,358 31.83
@ ()
9,346,406 3,739,775 13,086,181 0.17
268,975 68,512 337,487 0.004
PCCW PCD 342,475,956 38,222,413
Trade Champion Limited 154,592,765
100
PCGH PCCW 175,312,270
PCGH PCCW 175,312,270
PCRD PCCW 1,753,529,954
PCRD PCCW 1,753,529,954
PCCW
2024 12 31 352
HKT
HKT 15
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2024 2034
PCCW
51 2024 2034
2024
2034
10
2024 2034
0.5
2024 2034
757,974,233
9.99996
12 2024 2034
12 2024
2034
HKT
pCcw pCcw
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12
2024 2034
HKT
2024 2034 10
2024 2034
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2024 12 31 2021 2031
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2024 12 31
2024 2024
12 31
3
C b
Q) HT
2022 2022 10.86 155,619 (155,619)
19 19 f
2024
19
2023 2023 9.10 167,292 (167,292)
f
2024
2023 2023 9.10 167,292 167,292
2025
( © 2022 2022 10.86 20,014 (20,014)
19 19 f
2024
19
2023 2023 9.98 36,975 (36,975)
30 30 f
2024
30
2023 2023 9.98 36,973 36,973
30 30
2025
30
2024 2024 9.20 34,359 34,359
30 30 )
2025
30
2024 2024 9.20 34,358 34,358
30 30 )
2026
30
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2022 2022 10.86 26,744 (26,744)
19 19 « D
2024
19
2023 2023 10.18 5,135 (5.135)
19 19 (G ))
2024
19
2023 2023 10.18 5,132 5,132
19 19
2025
19
2023 2023 9.98 12,418 (12,418)
30 30 f
2024
30
2023 2023 9.98 12,417 12,417
30 30
2025
30
2023 2023 9.96 1,646 (1,646)
f
2024
2023 2023 9.96 1,645 1,645
2025
2024 2024 8.68 5,749 5,749
19 19 cd
2025
19
2024 2024 8.68 5,746 5,746
19 19 (@)
2026
19
2024 2024 9.20 3,112 3,112
30 30 ( e
2025
30
2024 2024 9.20 3,111 3,111
30 30 ( @
2026
30
649,302 86,435 (425,843) 309,894
(1) HKT
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2022 2022 10.86 487,970 (8,053) (479,917)
19 19 f
2024
19
2022 2022 11.00 2,346 (2,346)
15 15 f
2024
19
2023 2023 10.18 412,806 (10,457) (402,349)
19 19 «n
2024
19
2023 2023 10.18 412,100 (34,361) 377,739
19 19
2025
19
2023 2023 9.98 77,310 (77,310)
30 30 «n
2024
30
2023 2023 9.98 77,298 77,298
30 30
2025
30
2023 2023 9.05 25,156 (1,473) (23,683)
23 23 f
2024
23
2023 2023 9.05 25,105 (1,800) 23,305
23 23
2025
23
2024 2024 8.68 592,718 (30,194) 562,524
19 19 (@)
2025
19
2024 2024 8.68 591,812 (30,130) 561,682
19 19 ( d
2026
19
2024 2024 9.20 105,069 105,069
30 30 C e
2025
30
2024 2024 9.20 105,054 105,054
30 30 ( e
2026
30
1,520,091 1,394,653 (116,468) (985,605) 1,812,671
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HKT HKT

HKT HKT HKT HKT

HKT HKT

10

2024
757,939,838
9.9995
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2024 12 31
2024 2024
12 31
a)
C b
(O)
2024 2024 8.72 571,874 571,874
26 26 ( ©
2025
26
2024 2024 8.72 571,873 571,873
26 26 C o
2026
26
1,143,747 1,143,747
an
2024 2024 9.95 17,198 17,198
22 22 ( d)
2025
22
2024 2024 9.95 17,197 17,197
22 22 ( d)
2026
22
34,395 34,395
2024 12 31
HKT G@d)( )
HKT
HKT
8.79
9.90
2024 12 31 HKT HKT
29(c)
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2024 2021 2031
757,574,233 HKT
74,277,332
2024 2034
2024
2024 2034 2024
757,974,233
37,898,711
37,898,711
2024 12 31
757,939,838
37,898,711
37,898,711
2024 12 31
1,429,048
0.02
HKT
HKT HKT HKT
18 HKT
HKT
2024 12 31
HKT HKT 29(c)
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336 2024 12 31
HKT
HKT
pCCw 3,959,683,681 52.24
CAS 3,959,683,681 52.24
15 HKT
0.0005 HKT
0.0005 HKT
HKT
HKT
PCCW CAS
2024 12 31 HKT
DION

Disclosure of Interests Online (DION) System

2024 12 31 336 HKT
HKT
HKT
HKT
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HKT
2024 12 31 HKT
HKT
HKT
HKT HKT
8.10 2024 12 31
CK 75,240
LKS
LKS CK CK
CK
HKT
2024 28
A- HK
CucL
CTCL CCSCL
HK A- HK CUCL
HK HK A-
HKT
CTCL CCSCL
HKT
HKT
HKT
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HKT
PCCW HKT
2023 51,000
2024 12 31 HKT HKT
HKT
2024 12 31 HKT
PCCW HKT
HKT HKT pCCw
2025 12 31
2022 12 23
pPCCw HKT HKT
2024 12 31 HKT PCCW
HKT
14A
HKT
2022 12 23 HKT PCCW
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2022 12 23 PCCW
HKT
HKT
2022 12 23 PCCW
HKT
CPE
2022 12 23 PCCW CPE
CPE
2022 12 23 pPCCw HKTC
HKTC HKTC
HKTC HKTC
HKTC
HKTC HKTC HKTC HKTC

HKTC

2022 12 23 HKT pCCw v pCCW
v
TV
2022 12 23 v PCCW
TV
HKT
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HKT
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2022 12 23

HKTC
HKTC
HKTC
HKTC

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PCCW

HKT

HKT
PCCW
pPCCw
HKT
PCCW
Now TV eye
HKT
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HKT
pCcw HKTC
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HKTC HKTC HKTC
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HKT PCCW
12
2022 12 23 HKT HKT PCCW
HKT
13
2022 12 23 HKTL
PCCW
13 2024 12 31
2024 12 31 2024 12 31
HKT
20,260 100,000
103,990 380,000
8,718 13,800
CPE 72,657 160,000
4,411 21,100
49,193 295,000
HKT
27,780 165,000
17,593 135,000
190,210 634,900
HKT
10 651,086 1,550,000
11 0 2,400
HKT pPCCw
12 204,783 600,000
13 215,900 400,000
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HKT HKT

FWD

FWD

HKT

FWD

HKT
2024 12 31

HKT FWD

2022 12 23

FWD

PCCW HKT
2022 12 23
HKT
14A
FWD

FWD Group Management Holdings Limited

FWD

HKT

CPE

FWD

HKT
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HKT
FWD
14A HKT
FWD
HKT
FWD
HKT
WiFi Datapak
SkyExchange
loT
FWD
HKT FWD
HKT
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FWD

Risk Finance Limited
FWD

HKT

HKT

HKT FWD

2022 12 23 HKT
FWD
HKT

FWD HKT
FWD
2022 12 23

FWD

HKT FWD
HKT

FWD

FWD

HKT FWD
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2024 12 31 2024 12 31
HKT FWD
47,032 150,000
70,534 200,000
1,216 7,000
FWD HKT
FWD 152,803 300,000
HKT
3000( 740
2024 12 31 HKT
PCCW 13 HKT FWD
14A.56
2024 12 31 13
HKT
2024 12 31 HKT HKT
2024
12 31 HKT
14A
HKT HKT
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141 b 14.1 c
HKT
HKT
5.11
100 HKT
HKT HKT
5.11
100
HKT
5.11
5.11
14.1 ¢ HKT
30 12 31
100 14.1 d
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HKT HKT
HKT HKT
HKT
HKT HKT
HKT HKT
HKT HKT
HKT HKT
HKT HKT
HKT
HKT
HKT
HKT
HKT
HKT
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HKT

EBITDA EBITDA HKT
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HKT HKT PCCW CAS
pCCw
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HKT
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HKT
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2011 11
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0.00565
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20 15
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2014 2027 12 31
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37 14
2023 12 31 100 2016
120
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37 14
240 1,200
18
NISA
37 14
80
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. HKT
HKT 16.5
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HKT
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0.2
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2024 12 31
39,645 100
HKT HKT
HKT HKT
HKT HKT
HKT
2024 12 31
2024 12 31 7,579,776,147
7,579,776,147
2024 12 31 72,765
2024 12 31
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12 31 2023 2024
7SS 11,685 | 12,485 | 24,170 | 12,063 | 12,394 | 24,457
TSS 8,159 8,714 16,873 8,289 9,061 17,350
3,526 3,771 7,297 3,774 3,333 7,107 (©))
4,968 | 6,340 | 11,308 | 4,976 | 6,508 | 11,484 2
3,815 4,533 8,348 3,990 4,772 8,762
1,153 1,807 2,960 986 1,736 2,722 @®)
596 286 882 552 328 880
849) | @,181) | (2,030) | (922) | (1,146) | (2.,068) &)
16,400 | 17,930 | 34,330 | 16,669 | 18,084 | 34,753 1
15,247 | 16,123 | 31,370 | 15,683 | 16,348 | 32,031 2
8.,279) | (9,175) [(17.454) | (8.491) | (9.219) [(17.710) @
C
« ) (2,112) | (1,364) | (3.476) | (2,010) | (1.290) | (3.300) 5
EBITDA
7SS 4,219| 5,152 9,371| 4,296 | 5,236| 9,532 2
2,194 | 2,866 | 5,060 2,302| 3,009 5,311 5
2,194 2,863 5,057 2,300 3,006 5,306 5
3 3 2 3 5 67
@oay | 2| @,031) | (@30)| (670) | (1,100) )
EBITDA 6,009 [ 7,301 13,400| 6,168| 7,575 13,743 3
7SS EBITDA
36 41 39 36 2 39
EBITDA
44 45 45 46 46 46
EBITDA 58 63 61 58 63 61
EBITDA 37 41 39 37 2 40
EBITDA
39 46 43 39 46 43
,700) | (2,952) | (5.652) | (2,683) | (2.822) | (5,505) 3
« )
« ) ) 0 9 1 10
«C ) 9 1 10 16 115 131 500
«C ) 925) | (@,209) | (2,134) | (1,092) | (1,146) | (2.,238) )
(60) Ga | @) (84) @) | @2 (11)
2,333 3,175 5,508 2,334 3,681 6,015 9
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12 31 2023 2024 « )
( )
EBITDA 6,000 | 7,391 | 13,400| 6,168 7,575 13,743 3
(1,078) | (1,060) | (2,138) | (1,041) | (996) | (2,037) 5
@y | @ | @y | @i6)| (©@82) | (1,69) 2
@y | @83)| (653)| @)| @65)| (656)
686) | (744) | (1.430) | (@31)| (681) | (1,412) 1
3,181 | 4,267 | 7,448| 3,389 4,551 7,940 7
693) | (865) | (1,558) | (887) | (941) | (1,828) an
(251) G6) | @G| @82 @) | (@ 16
192 23 215 175 ) 118 (45)
2,429 | 3,369 | 5,798| 2,495| 3,478 | 5,973 3
76.49 78.80
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2023 2024

2,283 2,227 2,168 2,114 )
1,160 1,148 1,126 1,104 (€))
1,123 1,079 1,042 1,010 (6)
1,642 1,647 1,646 1,650 0.2
1,468 1,471 1,472 1,474 0.2

162 164 162 160 (@)
4,656 4,764 4,884 4,805 1
3,383 3,428 3,433 3,459 1
1,273 1,336 1,451 1,346 1
1,428 1,429 1,430 1,433 0.3
3,778 3,847 3,939 4,008 4

Tap & Go
3,711 3,772 3,824 3,885 3
DrGo
371 386 395 400 4
EBITDA
/
EBITDA
EBITDA
EBITDA
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TSS
12 31 2023 2024
TSS
TSS 8,159 8,714 16,873 8,289 9,061 17,350 3
3,526 3,771 7,297 3,774 3,333 7,107 (©)
TSS 11,685 | 12,485 24,170 | 12,063 | 12,394 24,457 1
(6,306) |(6,516) |(12,822) |(6,664) | (6,416) |(13,080) )
(1,160) @17) | (1,977) | (1,103) (742) | (1,845)
TSS EBITDA 4,219 5,152 9,371 4,296 5,236 9,532
1TSS EBITDA 36 41 39 36 4?2 39
TSS 13,552
2024 12 31 17,350
TSS 78 2,320
10 2,011
7,107 TSS 24,457
2024 12 31 13,552
17 2.5
Al 50 PON
Fifth Generation Fixed Network-Advanced
2024 12 FTTH 33,000 1.04
2.5 12 ARPU
75 2024 12 1.474 FTTH
71
loT Al
HKT
HKT Enterprise Solutions 11 50
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2024 12 31
2,320
TV
1.429
TV
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2024 12 31
10 2,011
SME

1.433
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2024 10

2,365

MAX

Now
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2,229
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2024 12 31
7,297 7,107
Console Connect
1,000 200
TSS EBITDA 9,532
EBITDA 38.8
39.0
12 31 2023 2024
3,815 4,533 8,348 3,990 4,772 8,762 5
1,153 1,807 2,960 986 1,736 2,722 3)
4,968 6,340 | 11,308 4,976 6,508 | 11,484 2
EBITDA
2,194 2,863 5,057 2,300 3,006 5,306 5
3 3 2 3 5 67
EBITDA 2,194 2,866 5,060 2,302 3,009 5,311 5
EBITDA
44 45 45 46 46 46
EBITDA 58 63 61 58 63 61
2024 12 31
8,762
2019
37 2024
98
2024 12 25 1.747
ARPU ARPU 40
2024 12
31,000 3.459
11 csl
2024 12 ARPU
2023 12 191 193
11 csl 1 1 HOME

0.7
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2024 12 31 2,722

EBITDA 5,306 61
EBITDA 5,060 5,311
EBITDA 46

2024 12 31
882 880
2024 3.85 4.01

2024 12 31 2,030 2,068

2024 12 31 17,710

2024 12 31
Al IT
3,300
10.1 9.5
2024 12 31 5,505

2024 12 31 9,130
8,795

EBITDA
TSS
EBITDA 13,738 42.9 EBITDA 13,743
40
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2024 12 31 HIBOR
2,134 2,238 HIBOR
4.05

4.23

2024 12 31 496 914

9.0 15.2
31 2023 21
2024 12 31 5,070
2023 4,991
2024
EBITDA EBITDA 3.0
2.9
2024 12 31 41,723 2023 12 31 44,804
2024 12 31 2,145 2023 12 31
1,709 2024 12 31

36 2023 12 31 40

2024 12 31 37,610

18,612
2024 12 31 HKT
Moody s Investors Service Hong Kong Limited Baa2

S&P S&P Global Ratings BBB
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2024 12 31
5,973
2024
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6.4 2023
TSS
2023 12 31 5,798
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12 31 2023 2024
1,027 903
2 2
1,029 905
2024 12 31 22 13,100 2023 13,600
63
EBITDA
2024 12 31
45.88 HKT HKT
45.88 HKT
2025 15
2025 2024 30
32.92 2024
i
3000
ii
HKT
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2024 12 31
( )| ( )| ( ) |( ) )
HKT 7,579,776,147 |  0.0005 | 3,789,888 100
« « C « «
HKT HKT
HKT 2024 12 31
HKT HKT
HKT
HKT HKT
2024 12 31
2024 12 31 7,579,776,147
7,579,776,147
2024 12 31 72,765

100

100
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14 HKT
14
12 38,806 | 747,403 | 36,429 | 701,622 | 5.1196 98.60 4.8061 92.56
2022 12 31 « ) « )
13 37,811 | 728,239 | 35,382 | 681,457 | 4.9884 96.07 4.6679 89.90
2023 12 31 « ) « )
14 42,140 | 811,616 | 39,645 | 763,562 | 5.5595 107.07 5.2303 100.73
2024 12 31 « ) « )
UFJ 2025
19.26
12
HKT 2022 2,377
12 HKT 2023 3,271
2023 28
2022 12 31 HKT HKT
13
13
HKT 2023 2,429
13 HKT 2024 3,369
2024 27
2023 12 31 HKT HKT
13
14
HKT 2024 2,495
14 HKT 2025 3,478
2024 12 31
HKT HKT 13
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2024 9.09 175.07
2024 8.76 168.71
2024 9.46 182.19
2024 9.91 190.86
2024 9.95 191.63
2024 10 9.66 186.05
2024 11 9.67 186.24
2024 12 9.60 184.89
2025 9.58 184.51
2025 9.97 192.02
2025 10.40 200.30
2025 11.04 212.63
2025 11.30 217.63
( ) ( )
12
,64 .
2022 2022 12 31 5,648 74.51
13
v .
2023 2023 12 31 5,798 76.49
14
2024 2024 12 31 5,973 78.80
HKT 2022 2,377 2023
3,271
HKT 2023 2,429 2024
3,369
HKT 2024 2,495 2025
3,478
()
12
2022 2022 12 31 4.27
13
2023 2023 12 31 3.79
14
2024 2024 12 31 19.09
( ) (A B)+Bx 100
A
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12
2022 2022 12 31
13
2023 2023 12 31
14
2024 2024 12 31
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b HKT

c HKT HKT

e HKT

2024 12 31 HKT HKT
HKT
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80 HKT
HKT
HKT
60
HKT
HKT 80
HKT
HKT
80 HKT
HKT HKT 80
HKT
HKT
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HKT

HKT

5.11

HKT
HKT HKT

HKT

10

11

12

13 HKT

14.1 (b) HKT

14
18.1 18.5
20.1 HKT HKT
20

23

26
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29 HKT
32
36
PCCW PCCW
23.1 i
HKT HKT
HKT 2011 11
14 2012 2022 13 2024 30

14.2
a
b
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14.2 b
14.2 c
14.1 f

HKT
HKT

HKT
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15.3
5.11
HKT
HKT HKT
HKT
9.7
CCASS
CCASS CCASS

CCASS
9.7 b 9.7 1
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9.7 b
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HKT
HKT

k HKT

HKT 9.7

10.2 10.3

10.1
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12.2 11.5 a

10

150/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HKT
HKT
CCASS
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HKSCC
CCASS
HKSCC
CCASS
CCASS HKT
CCASS HKSCC
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33.4

HKT
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HKT
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)] HKT

HKT

38 59 328
@ HKT
23 103
193
Independent Auditor ™ s Report
[€) HKT
2025 UFJ
19.26
HKT
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HKT HKT 2024 12 31
2023 2024
7, 8 34,330 661,196 34,753 669,343
9(b) (17,454) | (336,164) (17,710) | (341,095)
9(c) (9,130) | (175,844) (8,795) | (169,392)
« ) 10 193 131 2,523
« ) 10 (2,134) (41,101) (2.,238) (43,104)
(108) (2,080) (121) (2,330)
®) (116) ®) (96)
7,9 5,508 106,084 6,015 115,849
12 (496) (9,553) (914) (17,604)
5,012 96,531 5,101 98,245
/HKT 4,991 96,127 5,070 97,648
21 404 31 597
5,012 96,531 5,101 98,245
JHKT 1
65.89 12.69 66.92 12.89
65.88 12.69 66.91 12.89
HKT HKT
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HKT HKT 2024 12 31
2023 2024
5,012 96,531 5,101 98,245
)/
an (327) 413 7,954
24 462 (74) (1,425)
— — ® (173)
(179) (3,448) (183) (3,525)
147) (2,831) 208 4,006
(41) (790) 118 2,273
— — @ (39)
« (360) (6,934) 471 9,071
4,652 89,598 5,572 107,317
/HKT 4,631 89,193 5,541 106,720
21 404 31 597
4,652 89,598 5,572 107,317
HKT HKT
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HKT HKT 2024 12 31
2023

JHKT
2023 36,369 | 700,467 60 1,156 36,429 | 701,623
4,991 96,127 21 404 5,012 96,531

C )
an (327) — — an (327)
24 462 — — 24 462
28(¢) @a79) | (3,448) — — @179) | (3,448)
28(¢) @47y | (2,831) — — @4 | (2.831)
28(¢) (41) (790) — — (41) (790)
(360) | (6,934) — — (360) | (6,934)
4,631 89,193 21 404 4,652 89,598
) an — — ® an
14 270 — — 14 270
KT @ (39) — — @ (39)
/

13 (3,269) | (62,961) — — (3,269) | (62,961)
13 (2,427) | (46,744) — — (2,427) | (46,744)
— — 11) (212) 11) (212)
(5.688) | (109,551) (11) 12) | (5.699) | (109,763)
2023 12 31 35,312 | 680,109 70 1,348 35,382 | 681,457
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2024

JHKT
2024 35,312 | 680,109 70 1,348 35,382 | 681,457
5,070 97,648 31 597 5,101 98,245

/¢ )
413 7,954 — — 413 7,954
@4) (1,425) — — (74 | (1,425)
©) (173) — — © 173)
28(c) @183) |  (3,525) — — 183) | (3,525)
28(c) 208 4,006 — — 208 4,006
28(c) 118 2,273 — — 118 2,273
@ 39 — — @ 39
471 9,071 — — 471 9,071
5,541 | 106,720 31 597 5,572 | 107,317
®) (96) — — ®) (96)
15 289 — — 15 289
JHKT @ 39 — — @ 39)
/
/ 13 (3,367) | (64,848) — — (3,367) | (64,848)
/ 13 (2,494) | (48,034) — — (2,494) | (48,034)
— — 14) (270) 14) (270)
(5,853) | (112,729) 14) @70) | (5,867) | (112,998)
40 3,282 63,211 1,276 24,576 4,558 87,787
(2,571) | (49,517) 1,262 24,306 (1,309) | (25,211)
2024 12 31 38,282 | 737,311 1,363 26,251 39,645 | 763,563
HKT HKT
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HKT HKT 2024 12 31
2023 2024

15 27,278 525,374 28,368 546,368

16 1,988 38,289 1,826 35,169

17 165 3,178 153 2,947

18 49,806 959,264 49,799 959,129

19 17,675 340,421 18,711 360,374

1,925 37,076 2,097 40,388

912 17,565 872 16,795

324 6,240 261 5,027

20 484 9,322 412 7,935

21 478 9,206 810 15,601

22 130 2,504 823 15,851

23 28 539 17 327

28 29 559 58 1,117

32 895 17,238 790 15,215

25 558 10,747 931 17,931

102,675 1,977,521 105,928 2,040,173

26(a) 959 18,470 1,503 28,948

26(b) 3,176 61,170 3,702 71,301

511 9,842 601 11,575

« ) 26(c) 2,838 54,660 2,710 52,195

6(c) 22 424 20 385

23 15 289 18 347

2 39 7 135

26(d) 211 4,064 179 3,448

79 1,522 295 5,682

34(c) 1,630 31,394 1,850 35,631

9,443 181,872 10,885 209,645

26(e) (1,049) (20,204) (3,934) (75,769)

26(F) (5.,781) (111,342) (7.,212) (138,903)

(6,002) (115,599) (6.,667) (128,406)

28 (151) (2,908) (41) (790)

33 (338) (6,510) (324) (6,240)

6(c) (2.,349) (45,242) (2,929) (56,413)

6(c) (84) (1,618) (82) (1,579)

(279) (5.,374) (301) (5,797)

(1,450) (27,927) (1,415) (27,253)

(1,070) (20,608) (1,028) (19,799)

(1,576) (30,354) (1,888) (36,363)

(20,129) (387,685) (25,821) (497,312)
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2023 2024
27 (43,518) (838,157) (37,372) (719,785)
28 (602) (11,595) (769) (14,811)
32 (5,498) (105,891) (5,746) (110,668)
33 (3,086) (59,436) (3,198) (61,593)
(980) (18,875) (973) (18,740)
(979) (18,856) (825) (15,890)
— — (344) (6,625)
(1,944) (37,441) (2,120) (40,831)
(56,607) (1,090, 251) (51,347) (988,943)
35,382 681,457 39,645 763,563
30(a) 8 154 8 154
31 35,304 679,955 38,274 737,157
JHKT
35,312 680,109 38,282 737,311
24(b) 70 1,348 1,363 26,251
35,382 681,457 39,645 763,563
2025 20 HKT HKT
HKT HKT
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HKT HKT 2024 12 31
2023 2024
34(a) 11,261 216,887 11,911 229,406
6 116 4 77
(2,138) (41,178) (2,037) (39,233)
(2,897) (55,796) (3.,090) (59,513)
(129) (2,485) (53) (1,021)
(30) (578) (26) (501)
— — (280) (5,393)
(63) (1,213) (96) (1,849)
37 713 216 4,160
/) @6) | (.160)
(5.214) | (100,422) (5.794) | (111,592)
34(b) 22,983 442,653 29,931 576,471
34(b) (1,599) (30,797) (1,876) (36,132)
34(b) (22,994) | (442,864) (33,117) | (637,833)
( ) 34(b) (1,430) (27,542) (1,412) (27,195)
34(b) 2,312 44,529 717 13,809
34(b) 29 559 ®) (58)
y /HKT 13 (5.696) | (109,705) (5.861) | (112,883)
(11) (212) (14) (270)
40 — — 5,745 110,649
(6,406) | (123,380) (5,890) | (113,441)
« )/ (359) (6,914) 227 4,372
® (154) ) (135)
1,997 38,462 1,630 31,394
34(c) 1,630 31,394 1,850 35,631
HKT HKT
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HKT HKT 2024 12 31
HKT
HKT
2024 12 31 HKT
HKT 2024 12 31
HKT
HKT
HKT HKT 2024 12 31
HKT HKT
HKT
HKT HKT
HKT HKT
HKT
HKT HKT
HKT
HKT
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0.37 8 — — — — — — 037
om® - = = = = = oa
1.96  4.87  4.87 .03 7.03 .58 6.97  26.31
2022 2023 2022 12 31
2023 PCCW

124,400

124,400

124,400

201/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024

0.26 — — — — — — 0.2
0.26 — — — — — —  0.26

5 0.13 6 _ _ _ _ — — 0.3
0.26 — — — — — — 0.2

0.38 ' — — — — — —  0.38
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2026 3.00 750 ( d) 5,845 5,817
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2015 10 HKT HKT No. 2027 1.65
200 HKTGH
HKTL HKTGH HKTL

227/419



d.

e.

f.

2026
2016

HKTL

2029

2019

HKTL

2032

2022

HKTL

3.00 750
14 HKT
750
3.25 500
30 HKT
500
3.00 650
18 HKT
650

39

HKTGH

HKTGH

HKTGH

228/419

No.

No.

No.

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2026 3.00
HKTGH

2029 3.25
HKTGH

2032 3.00
HKTGH



28

FVPL

229/419

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

2023

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024

— 11
29 47
29 58
— (41)

(151) —

(151) (41)

(602) (720)
— (49)

(602) (769)




EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 2024
(602 ) (750 )
200 200
2,870 2,870
2025 2025
2032 2032
(324 (245 )
225 138
8.32 8.32
7.80 7.80
2023 2024
(122 ( )
2,600 4,550
2024 2026
2025 2027
45 19 )
(26 12

1.16

1.26

230/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 102 17 119
(205) 26 (179)

(159) — (159)

2023 12 31 2024 (262) 43 (219)
(138) (45) (183)

196 — 196

2024 12 31 (204) ©) (206)
2023 (116)
12

(41)

2023 12 31 2024 (145)
12

118

2024 12 31 (15)

231/419



29
a.
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
Provident Fund Scheme MPF
MPF 30,000
2024 12 31 10 2023
2024 12 31
b.
2023 HKICPA
2024 12 31
C.
PCCW
2014 2024 PCCW
2024 30 PCCW
HKT HKT 2021
2031
HKT HKT

232/419

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Mandatory
10
2023
MPF-LSP
25 LSP 2023 22
PCCW2014
PCCW2024
2021
30 2024 30
2024 2034



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

pPCCw pCcw pPCCw PCCW 2024
pCCw
HKT HKT HKT
HKT HKT HKT 2024

2021 2031 2024 2034
HKT HKT 2024

2024 12 31 PCCW2014 PCCW2024 2021 2031
2024 2034

pPCCw
pccw PCCW
HKT
pPCCw

pCCw HKT

PCCW

2024 12 31 pCcw 19 2023
17
2024 12 31 15
2023 14

233/419



( ) Pcow

(a) PCCW2012

pCCcw

PCCW

PCCW

(b) PCCW2024

PCCW

pCCw

(c) 2011

HKT

9.67

HKT

PCCW

pCCw

4.06

4.20

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PCCW
PCCW

2023 2024
1,036,729 1,101,442
(2023 3.90 1,099,000 659,000
(1,034,287) (1,076,750)
1,101,442 683,692
9,165,906 6,814,708
(2,351,198) (2,403,412)
6,814,708 4,411,296

PCCW

2023 2024
— 544,000
— 544,000

2023 2024
422,111 436,552

9.81 (2023

435,000 256,000
(420,559) (425,843)
436,552 266,709
5,329,111 4,337,670
(991,441) (985,605)
4,337,670 3,352,065

234/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(d) 2024
2023 2024
-9 — 238,000
— 238,000
) PCCW
() PCCI2012
2023
PCCW
2023 2023
12 31
pCCW (PCCW )
2021 2021 16
16 2023 16 -53 518,786 —  (1,087)  (517,699) —
2022 2022 19
19 2023 19 -52 517,681 — (1,093)  (516,588) —
2022 2022 19
19 2024 19 -52 517,674 —  (25,149) — 492,525
2023 2023 19
19 2024 19 -01 — 13,422 — _ 13,422
2023 2023 19
19 2025 19 -01 — 13,417 — — 13,417
2023 2023 30
30 2024 30 -02 — 129,129 — — 129,129
2023 2023 30
30 2025 30 -02 — 129,127 — — 129,127
2023 2023
2024 -97 — 4,301 — — 4,301
2023 2023
2025 -97 — 4,298 — — 4,298
2023 2023
2024 .92 — 437,373 — — 437,373
2023 2023
5025 .92 — 437,372 — — 437,372
1,554,141 1,168,439  (27,329) (1,034,287) 1,660,964
( ) 4.52 3.94 4.52 4.53 4.12

235/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023
PCCW
2023 2023
12 31

PCCW (PCCW )
202011 §8§§ izls 17 20,448 — — (20,448) —
202115 383:1), ig -53 1,095,247 —  (22,597) (1,072,650) —
2021 ggg% 16 .09 31,320 — — (31,320) —
2022 gggg 16 .34 21,114 — — (21,114) —
202219 383:2; ig -52 1,235,893 —  (35,937) (1,199,956) —
202219 382421 ig .52 1,234,981 — (132,455) — 1,102,526
202215 3833 ig -15 5,710 — — (5,710) —
202215 gggi ig -15 5,710 — — — 5,710
202319 gggi ig .01 — 1,181,458 (103,314) — 1,078,144
202319 gggg ig -01 — 1,180,673  (103,230) — 1,077,443
202330 gggi 28 -02 — 205,368 (3,268) — 202,100
202330 gggg 28 .02 — 205,360 (3,267) — 202,093
202323 gggi gg -85 — 72,391 (6,706) — 65,685
202323 3832 gg .85 — 72,329 (6,695) — 65,634

3,650,423 2,917,579 (417,469) (2,351,198) 3,799,335
( ) 4.52 4.00 4.24 4.52 4.15

236/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024
PCCW
( 2024 2024
) 12 31
PCCW (pccw )
2022 2022 19
19 2024 19 4.52 492,525 — — (492,525) —
2023 2023 19
19 2024 19 4.01 13,422 — — (13,422) —
2023 2023 19
19 2005 19 4.01 13,417 — — — 13,417
2023 2023 30
30 2004 30 4.02 129,129 — — (129,129) —
2023 2023 30
30 5005 20 4.02 129,127 — — — 129,127
2023 2023
2004 3.97 4,301 — — (4,301) —
2023 2023
0% 3.97 4,298 — — — 4,298
2023 2023
5024 3.92 437,373 — — (437,373) —
2023 2023
2095 3.92 437,372 — — — 437,372
2024 2024 19
19 2005 19 3.85 — 13,144 — — 13,144
2024 2024 19
N 5026 19 3.85 — 13,143 — — 13,143
2024 2024 30
30 2005 30 4.19 — 85,700 — — 85,700
2024 2024 30
30 2006 30 4.19 — 85,699 — — 85,699
1,660,964 197,686 —  (1,076,750) 781,900
4.12 4.14 — 4.21 4.00
( )

237/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024
PCCW
2024 074
12 31
PCCW (PCCW )
2022 2022 19
19 2024 19 52 1,102,526 — (19,604) (1,082,922) _
2022 2022 15
15 2024 19 -15 5,710 — — (5.710) —
2023 2023 19
19 2024 19 -01 1,078,144 —  (27,306) (1,050,838) —
2023 2023 19
19 2025 19 .01 1,077,443 —_ (89,846) —_ 987,597
2023 2023 30
30 2024 30 -02 202,100 — —  (202,100) —
2023 2023 30
30 2025 30 -02 202,093 — — — 202,093
2023 2023 23
23 2024 23 -85 65,685 — (3,843)  (61,842) —
2023 2023 23
23 2025 23 -85 65,634 — (4,707) — 60,927
2024 2024 19
19 2025 19 -85 — 1,407,149  (68,983) — 1,338,166
2024 2024 19
19 2026 19 .85 — 1,353,622 (68,929) — 1,284,693
2024 2024 30
30 2025 30 -19 — 240,294 — — 240,294
2024 2024 30
30 2026 30 -19 — 240,280 — — 240,280
3,799,335 3,241,345  (283,218) (2,403,412) 4,354,050
( ; 4.15 3.90 3.96 4.24 3.93

238/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(b) PCCW2024

2024
PCCW
( 2024 2024
) 12 31
PCCW
2024 2024 26
26 2025 26 3.88 — 543,799 — — 543,799
2024 2024 26
26 2026 26 3.88 — 543,799 — — 543,799
— 1,087,598 — — 1,087,598
— 3.88 — — 3.88
( )
(©) 2011
2023
( 2023 2023
) 12 31
HKT ( )
2021 2021 16
16 2023 16 11.06 208,728 — (437)  (208,291) —
2022 2022 19
19 2023 19 10.86 212,717 — (449)  (212,268) —
2022 2022 19
19 2024 19 10.86 212,711 — (10,334) — 202,377
2023 2023 19
19 2024 19 10.18 — 5,135 — — 5,135
2023 2023 19
19 2025 19 10.18 — 5,132 — — 5,132
2023 2023 30
30 2024 30 9.98 — 49,393 — — 49,393
2023 2023 30
30 2025 30 9.98 — 49,390 — _ 49,390
2023 2023
2024 9.96 — 1,646 — — 1,646
2023 2023
2025 9.96 — 1,645 — — 1,645
2023 2023
5094 9.10 — 167,292 — — 167,292
2023 2023
5028 9.10 — 167,292 — — 167,292
634,156 446,925 (11,220)  (420,559) 649,302
( ) 10.93 9.33 10.87 10.96 9.80

239/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023
2023 2023
) 12 31

HKT ( )
u w1 12.86 7,858 — — (7.858) —
202116 28% 12 11.06 440,667 — (9,090)  (431,577) —
2021 gg% 16 10.56 12,601 — — (12,601) —
2022 gggg 16 10.60 8,537 — — (8,537) —
202219 5855 ig 10.86 543,311 —  (14,790)  (528,521) —
202219 283421 ig 10.86 542,398 — (54,428) — 487,970
202215 §8§§ 0 11.00 2,347 — — (2,347) —
202215 583421 ig 11.00 2,346 — — _ 2,346
202319 gggi 18 10.18 — 452,085 (39,279) — 412,806
202319 gggg ig 10.18 — 451,298 (39,198) — 412,100
202330 gggi 38 9.98 — 78,560 (1,250) — 77,310
202330 §8§§ 38 9.98 — 78,548 (1,250) — 77,298
202323 2835{ 32 9.05 — 27,726 (2,570) — 25,156
202323 gggg gg 9.05 — 27,666 (2,561) — 25,105

1,560,065 1,115,883  (164,416)  (991,441) 1,520,091
( 10.92 10.10 10.48 10.96 10.34

240/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024
( 2024 2024
) 12 31

HKT ( )
202219 §g§§ ig 10.86 202,377 — —  (202,377) _
o o 10 10.18 5,135 — —  (5.13%) —
o s 10 10.18 5,132 — — — 5,132
R 2 9.98 49,393 — —  (49,3%3) —
o s 9.98 49,390 — — — 49,390
o 9-96 1,646 — — (1,646) —
o ggég 9.96 1,645 — — — 1,645
2023 3332 9.10 167,292 — —  (167,292) _
2023 gggg 9.10 167,292 — — _ 167,292
e s 1o 8.68 - 5,749 — — 5,749
202419 gggg ig 8.68 — 5,746 — — 5,746
202430 2000 20 9.20 — 37,471 — — 37,471
202430 gggg 38 9.20 — 37,469 — — 37,469

649,302 86,435 —  (425,843) 309,894
( ) 9.80 9.13 — 10.05 9.27

241/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024
( 2024 2024
) 12 31

HKT ( )

202219 383421 ig 10.86 487,970 — (8,053)  (479,917) —
202215 2823 0 11.00 2,346 — — (2,346) —
202319 5832 ig 10.18 412,806 —  (10,457)  (402,349) —
202319 gggg 18 10.18 412,100 — (34,361) — 377,739
202330 3832 38 9.98 77,310 — —  (77,310) —
202330 %832 gg 9.98 77,298 — — _ 77,298
202323 ggéi 52 9.05 25,156 — (1,473)  (23,683) —
202323 3832 33 9.05 25,105 — (1,800) — 23,305
202419 gggg 18 8.68 — 592,718 (30,194) — 562,524
202419 gg%g ig 8.68 — 591,812 (30,130) — 561,682
202430 gggg gg 9.20 — 105,069 — — 105,069
202430 ggég 38 9.20 — 105,054 — — 105,054

1,520,091 1,394,653  (116,468)  (985,605) 1,812,671

( ) 10.34 8.76 9.42 10.47 9.11
(d) 2024
2024
( 2024 2024
) 12 31
2024 2024 26
26 2095 % 8.72 — 237,760 — — 237,760
2024 2024 26
26 20%6 0 8.72 — 237,760 — — 237,760
— 475,520 — — 475,520
— 8.72 — — 8.72
( )
PCCW PCCW

242/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PCCW
2023 2024
pCCW (PCCW ) 0.83 0.63
pCCW (PCCW ) 0.67 0.67
HKT
0.81 0.64
( )
HKT
0.66 0.69
( )
PCCI2024 ( PCCW ) — 0.98
2024 ( B 0.98
)
30 HKT
a. HKT
2023 2024
( ) ( )
0.0005
20,000,000,000 10,000,000  20,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.0005
20,000,000,000 10,000,000  20,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.0005
7,579,742,334 3,789,871  7,579,742,334 3,789,871
C () — — 33,813 17
7,579,742,334 3,789,871  7,579,776,147 3,789,888
0.0005
7,579,742,334 3,789,871  7,579,742,334 3,789,871
«C () — — 33,813 17
7,579,742,334 3,789,871  7,579,776,147 3,789,888
() 2024 12 31 HKT 0.0005
33,813 0.0005 33,813
2024 300,000

243/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HKT
2023
2023 35,204 42 35,246
— 5,759 5,759
— (3.271) (3,271)
— (2,429) (2,429)
2023 12 31 35,204 101 35,305
2024
2024 35,204 101 35,305
— 3,512 3,512
(352) (3,017) (3,369)
(1,894) (601) (2,495)
2024 12 31 32,958 5) 32,953

244/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

31
2023
FVOC

2023 7,860 | 26,250 | (@)  (64) 13 64 19| (u6) — 124 | 2,458 | 36,361

/C )
_ _ _ — — — — - — —| 4901 | 4,90

/(

)
_ — _ — — — - — an = —| an
— — — — — 24 — — — — — 24
— — — — — — (179) — - — - @179
— — — — — —| @ 1 — — —| am
— — — — — — —| @y = — —| @
/¢ ) — — — — — 2| @38 @) an —| 4,90 | 4,631
1 — - e - - - - - -] -| ®
— — — — 14 — — — — — — 14
— — — 16 as - — — — — @ -
— — — — @) — — — — — — @)
JHKT

/
/ _ — — — — — — — — — | 3.269)| (3,269
/ — — — — — — — — — — | @.a2n)| @427
— — — 12 ) — — — — | (5,69)|_(5,688)
2023 12 31 7,860 | 26,250 | (@) (52 11 88| (o) (@5 an| 124 1,751 35,304

245/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024
FVOC
2024 7,860 | 26,250 | @] 52 11 88| o sy  an| 124 1,751 35,304
/C )
_ _ _ — — — — - — —| 5070 5,070
/(
)
— - — — — — — —| a3 — —| a3
— — — — — @ — — — — — (74)
— — — — — ©) — — — — — (€))
— — — — — — as»y — — — —| s
_ _ _ — — —| 19 12 — — —| 208
_ _ _ — — — —| s — — —| s
| = = = = = = - o - - o
/¢ ) — — — — — (83) 13 130 411 —| s,00( 5,541
— — — ®) — — — — — — — ®)
_ _ _ — 15 _ — — — - — 15
— — — 15 @) - — — — — @ -
— — — — @) — — — — — — (&)
JHKT
/
/ — (352), — — — — — — — — | @B,015) (3,367)
/ —| ,89) — — — — — — — —| (o) (2,494)
—| @8 — 10 — — — — — —| G.on| 5.859)
_ _ _ — — — — — — —| 3.282| 3,282
( 40
— | (2,246) — 10 — — — — — — B35 (2,571)
2024 12 31 7,860 | 24,000 | (| @[ n 5| oe) @as)| sea| 124| 6,486 | 38,274

246/419



EDINETOOOO

OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

32
2024 12 31
2023 2024
(895) (790)
5,498 5,746
4,603 4,956
a.
2023
5,252 (1,170) ©) 4,080
(  12(a) 457 67 — 524
@ — — @
5,708 (1,103) 0 4,603
2024
5,708 (1,103) 0 4,603
(  12@a) 683 (332) — 351
1 1 — 2
6,392 (1,434) ©) 4,956
b.
2024 12 31
3,942 2023 3,433
2024 12 31
176 2023 268
2023

247/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

33
2024 12 31

2023 2024
338 5 343 324 3 327
286 11 297 324 12 336
857 77 934 957 85 1,042
1,943 449 2,392 1,917 412 2,329
3,424 542 3,966 3,522 512 4,034
(338) (5) (343) (324) A3) (327)
3,086 537 3,623 3,198 509 3,707

248/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

34

a.
2023 2024

5,508 6,015
« ) (10) (131)
« ) 2,134 2,238
/¢ )C ) 2 (10)
« ) ®3) €C))
188 232
1,301 1,066
1,333 1,298
12 12
1,419 1,402
386 484
1,201 1,243
108 121
6 5
31 34
PCCW 8) (10)

/¢ )
439 (535)
137 (427)
60 (43)
3 2
164 32
(653) (656)
(1,223) (1,187)
13 13)

/¢ )
281 1,431
729 (298)
(2,012) 137)
1 1
) 22
11) (42)
(2) (20)
11,527 12,120
41 48

( )
(289) 17)
(18) (40)
11,261 11,911
* 2023 2024 12 31

249/419



b.

2023
( )/

(
)
( 36(b()( )
)
2023 12 31

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023

(

C )
) )

(17) 1,030 43,838 236 2,049 54 1,974 49,164
(14) 5 22,992 — — — — 22,983
—  (1,885) — 288 — ©) —  (1,599)
— —  (23,040) 46 — — —  (22,994)
_ _ _ — — —  (1,430) (1,430)
— — — — 2,312 — — 2,312
— — — — — 29 — 29
— — (130) — — — — (130)
6 1,208 907 154 (2,012) 3 1,505 1,771
(25) 358 44,567 724 2,349 84 2,049 50,106

250/419



2024

( 36(172( 1))

)
2024 12 31
C.
12 31

EDINETOOOO

OO000000000000O00O(E25940)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024
C ¢
)
, )
(25) 358 44,567 724 2,349 84 2,049 — 50,106
— (58) 29,989 — — — — — 29,931
—  (,912) — 38 — ) — —  (1,876)
— — (33,117) — — — — — (33,117)
— — — — — —  (1,412) —  (1,412)
— — — — 717 — — — 717
- - - - ® - - ®)
— — — — — —_ —_ 344 344
— - @0 @ — — — — —  (10)
(3) 1,939 @3)  (0) (137 3 1,216 — 3,005
(28) 327 41,306 752 2,929 82 1,853 344 47,565
2023 2024

1,920 2,324

(211) (179)

(79) (295)

1,630 1,850

251/419




35

252/419

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023
FvoCl FVPL
Fvocl — 130 — — 130
FVPL — — 28 — 28
— — — 29 29
( ) 120 — — — 120
120 130 28 29 307
( ) 2,380 — — — 2,380
« ) 2,838 — — — 2,838
22 — — — 22
FVPL — — 15 — 15
211 — — — 211
79 — — — 79
1,630 — — — 1,630
7,160 — 15 — 7,175
7,280 130 43 29 7,482

253/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023
— (1,049) (1,049)
— (5.781) (5,781)
— (5,988) (5,988)

(151) — (151)
— (338) (338)
— (2,349) (2,349)
— (84) (84)
— (279) 279)
— (1,070) (1,070)

(151) (16,938) (17,089)
— (43,518) (43,518)

(602) — (602)
— (3,086) (3,086)
— (979) (979)
— (1,935) (1,935)

(602) (49,518) (50,120)

(753) (66,456) (67,209)

254/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024
FVOCI FVPL
FvoCl — 823 — — 823
FVPL — — 17 — 17
— — — 58 58
( ) 82 — — — 82
82 823 17 58 980
( ) 2,670 — — — 2,670
«C ) 2,710 — — — 2,710
20 — — — 20
FVPL — — 18 — 18
179 — — — 179
295 — — — 295
1,850 — — — 1,850
7,724 — 18 — 7,742
7,806 823 35 58 8,722

255/419



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024
— (3,934) (3,934)
— (7.,212) (7,212)
— (6,650) (6,650)
(41) — (41
— (324) (324)
— (2,929) (2,929)
— (82) (82)
— (301) (301)
— (1,028) (1,028)
(41) (22,460) (22,501)
— (37,372) (37,372)
(769) — (769)
— (3,198) (3,198)
— (825) (825)
— (344) (344)
— (2,112) (2,112)
(769) (43,851) (44,620)
(810) (66,311) (67,121)
* 2024 12 31 470 3,686 2023 470
3,686 32 2023
34 2030 300
300 2025
15 470 2023 470
27(a) 28(a)

256/419



30

2023

38

2023 2024 12 31
HKT HKT
2023 2024 12 31
2024 12 31
38

257/419

2023

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

26(c)

2024 12 31



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023
(1,071) — — — (1,071) (1,049)

(5,781) — — — (5,781) (5,781)

(5,988) — — — (5,988) (5,988)

« ) (153) — — — (153) (151)
(343) — — — (343) (338)

(2,349) — — — (2,349) (2,349)

84) — — — 84) 84

(279) — — — (279) (279)

(1,145) — — — (1,145) (1,070)

(17,193) — — — (17,193)  (17,089)

( @) (1,904) (8,717)  (28,018) (11,884)  (50,523)  (43,518)
63 (84) (209) (470) (700) (602)

— (297) (934)  (2,392) (3,623) (3,086)

— (636) (349) (60) (1,045) 979)

( — (89) (950)  (2,335) (3,374) (1,935)

()

(1,841)  (9.823)  (30,460) (17,141)  (59,265)  (50,120)
(19,034)  (9,823)  (30,460) (17,141)  (76,458)  (67,209)
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2024
(3,973) — — — (3,973) (3,934)
(7,212) — — — (7,212) (7,212)
(6,650) — — — (6,650) (6,650)
(41) — — — (41) (41)
(327) — — — (327) (324)
(2,929) — — — (2,929) (2,929)
(82) — — — (82) (82)
(301) — — — (301) (301)
(1,103) — — — (1,103) (1,028)
(22,618) — — — (22,618)  (22,501)
« (1)) (1,457)  (11,340) (21,894) (7,688) (42,379)  (37,372)
(82) (141) ((371) (312) (906) (769)
— (336) (1,042) (2,329) (3,707) (3.198)
— (483) (373) (1) (867) (825)
— (344) — — (344) (344)
D)) ( — (30) (941) (2,321) (3,292) (2,112)
(1,539)  (12,674)  (24,621) (12,661)  (51,495)  (44,620)
(24,157)  (12,674)  (24,621) (12,661)  (74,113)  (67,121)
( )2024 12 31 910 2023 1,040
15
( )2023 12 31 153
1,000
( )2024 12 31 704 2023 618
200 1,665 2023 200
1,665
27(c) 28(a)
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HKT
2023 2024 12 31
2024
12 31 2,870 22,400 2023 2,870
22,400 200 1,665 2023 200 1,665
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2023 2024
1,168 40 1,072 50
70 — 295 —
289 39 595 85
— — (3,881) —
(2,529) (53) (2,558) (53)
(16) (€Y) (19) —
(52) ®) (38) (©))
(20,923) (1,718) (16,955) (1,612)
(21,993) (1,701) (21,489) (1,533)
( Y (69) 3 (306) (44
20,923 1,718 20,836 1,612
(1,139) 20 (959) 35
2024 12 31 2023
2023 10
2024 12 31
208 2023 209
2024 12 31 2023
2023
2024 12 31 81
2023 86
2023 2024 12 31
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2023 2024
C )
( ) 4.62 994 — _
( ) — — 3.85 3,881
( ) 4.07 1,589 4.17 4,515
( ) 2.93 22,641 3.46 18,567
5.07 55 4.97 53
5.21 19,288 5.32 14,290
44,567 41,306
2024 12 31 75
2023
91 2023 122
75 2023
2023 2024 12 31
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2024

43,518

42,128 37,372 36,223

36(e)
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2023 12 31
FVOCI
( ) — — 130 130
FVPL
( ) — — 10 10
( ) 18 — — 18
« ) 15 — — 15
— 29 — 29
33 29 140 202
— (151) — (151)
— (602) — (602)
— (753) — (753)
2024 12 31
FVOCI
( ) — — 58 58
( ) 765 — — 765
FVPL
( ) — — 10 10
( ) 7 — — 7
« ) 18 — — 18
— 58 — 58
790 58 68 916
— (41 — (41
— (769) — (769)
— (810) — (810)
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2023
FVOCI

2023 2024 12 31
2023 2024 12 31
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FVPL
2023 17
2023



37

2024 12 31

2024 12 31

2024 12 31
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2023 2024
1,632 1,612

2023 2024
8 2
10 3
18 5

2023 2024
7 —
16 —
23 —

2023 2024
833 1,302
506 961
1,339 2,263




2024 12 31

2023

38

39
2024 12 31
18,612

EDINETOOOO

OO000000000000O00O(E25940)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 2024
36 22
22 15
15 7
7 —
80 44
2023 2024
1,027 903
2 2
1,029 905
37,610 2023 34,812
2023 12,733
2024 12 31
36(b)
26() 27
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2024 26 HKT
Apex Link Communications Holdings Limited
HKT
Fiber Link Global Limited Passive
tco 40 Passive Netco 344
0 2024 12 31
2024 12 31
HKICPA 2024 12 31
HKAS 21 ( ) 2025
HKAS 28 (2011 )( )
HKFRS ( ) 2026
HKFRS ( ) 2026
HKFRS 10 ( )
HKFRS 18 2027
HKFRS 19 2027
HKFRS 11 2026
HK ( ) 2027
HKICPA 2024 12
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT OF HKT TRUST AND OF HKT LIMITED

Fr e praer ondfpd 3] Docembas 200

|nm§MIWMMwMMUMﬂMMJ Motesh 2023 :!iﬂ_i_
Revenua 2.8 34,330 34753
Cost of wabes Db (17.454) (12,7100
Gonerol and adersnisirative eapomes ) =130 [8,795)
vy gavires, ik 10 131
Finance coats, nel 10 2134 {2,238)
Share of reawits of asseciabes (108 {121)
Shane of results of int ventums & (E
Prof bedore incormé tox 1.9 5,508 6,015
income Lax 12 1496) (914}
Prodd for the yoar 5012 5,101
Profit attributatie to:

Heodcers of Shane Mapied Unitifshases of tha Company 4,599 5,070

Feon-coniroiling inlereits 21 31
Profit for the yosr 5,012 5,101
Easmings per Share Stagled Unfshare of the Company 14

Buries 6589 cents 66,92 conts

Druten 65,68 cents 66,91 conts

The nobes o pages 103 to 193 form part of the consclidated fnanclal latemants. As adplaingd in nole 1. the cordolidatid inandial
staternents of the HET Trust and the contolidated financial statements of HKT Limited are presented together.

o WK Fruatmned MR Lemsien Aol Begars JO00
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME OF HKT TRUST AND OF HKT LIMITED

Fir thar yuar rcdod 1) Ditormdar 2004

Ir HHS milliam 2003 2024
Prafit for fhe year 5012 5,101
Other comprehenthe Dmsdincome
Fiérn thiat il not be reclassled submequently 1o consobdated Mdome stalemient:
Changed in tair vakee of fnancial assets ab fair vislue hitugh olfuer Compreharnshs iNComss an 413
Therms that have beon rectialied or may be reclassified subtsequently io
conscigated income siatement:
Translation exchangs dflerencis:
= gmchangs aifferences on traratating Sonsgn operalions of submsidaries. 4 (74}
—exchangs differances on transiating loreign operations of ot ventures - 9
Cash flow hedpet:
= pHectve potlon of changes in lar value 1179 (183}
= trarader from equdy o conscidated Income statement {1471 208
Conts of hodging 141 18
Shasre of other comiprehendie loss of an ssociale - m
Other comprehensie loss Vncome for the year 300 -I?l_
Total compehensive ncome lor the yaar 4852 5572
Attributable fo;
Halders of Share Stapled Unstushaves of the Company 4,531 5541
Nen-contralling nteessts 21 31
Total cormpeehenshe incoene for the year 4,652 5572

The notes on pages 103 to 193 lorm part of ihe consclidated fimancial staternants. As explabned in note 1, the consolidated financia
statements. of the HKT Tt and the consolidabed financial statemonts of HKT Limaed dre prosented logether.

T Tyl et T Lirvwtemd sl Rospue S04 o7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF HKT TRUST AND OF HKT LIMITED

Figr e el oncipnd 3 | Docembes 2004

2
Attributabis
o holders of
Share Stapled
Unitihhares of  Non-controling
in H¢S miion Mate Ihe Coenpiary ntermts Total pguiy
Asat 1 Jamuary 2023 36369 &0 3643
Total compreharaive incame for the year
Profi for (e yeur 4,991 Fi | 012
Oeter comprehendie (oalincome
fhorm that will not be reclassfied subsequently to
corsoidated income salement:
Crarges in fair valus ol 2 Branclsl sioet 3 Lir valis theeugh
ol COmprafasTiiyg inCoMme (n - nn
evms thad Pt Deen Teciassilied of may be rciassified subsequently 1
coracieiated ncome stalement:
Exchange differences on transkating foreign operations
of mtsdianes 24 - o
Cash fow hedges.
- affective portion of Ehanges in L vale 2Bl (e - (179
= brarsler from equity o consobdatod mcome saterment £8ic) 114n - iian
Conts of hedging 2Hie) (41 = el
Onhetr comprohensive lom. 3600 - (36
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,631 2 4 652
Transactions with equity holdors.
Purchanes of Share Stapiod LinEs undes the Share Stapied Uind
Aaard Schemis ) - £a)
Erngicyed hine-hited compinialion 14 = 14
Destritution/Divicend for Shane Stapied Unksyhaves of the Company granted
wredes the Share Stapled Unit Award Schemes ki - @
DitfritasteryDicienict puaid in nespict of the prievious yoar 13 k] - 3,255
Interimn dednibybicriddividena declsted and e in respect of Ihe curien] e 13 [2427) - 2430
Ditvidends deciared and paid i the non-controfing sharshoider of
& subsiclany - (14 1] i
Total trasmaactions wilh oguity holders 15,6581 i 15,699
Asat 31 December 2023 B2 m B

o WK Fruatmned MR Lemsien Aol Begars JO00
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2024
Aftributable
2 holders of
Shae Stapled
Unitt'shaesiof  Mon-controlling
i HXS million Hate the Company interests Tetal ecuity
As at 1 January 2024 35312 0 35382
Total comprehnnsive income for the year
Profit it Ehe yoar _ 5000 il 5101
Othe compeehensive mcomestions)
M Ehat will not be reclaisded subneguently o
corclidatod incorne staberment:
Chianges b lair valoe of Brancial ascets o far valus theough
DENEr COMpTahermvg Noome 413 - 413
[ty thiaf hatwee besen reclasifiad or mury be reclasilied sutseguentty to
consolidabed inCome siidemeng:
Tianlahon sschang dfeerces:
- gnchangs dfierences on ramistng loregn opeatong of bnciare it - irLt
~ gnchangn dBaiences on ramiating foreign cperations of joisd verfures (1] - [L-]]
Cashi Now hadges:
= gfinctng porton of changes in ke vaiue 28ic) 1183 - 1183)
- bransfer from egety 1 Consoidaled nowme stalement 28l 08 - 08
Conts ol hedgang 28le) 118 - 118
Share of other comprehensieg 055 of an Bsociste _ﬂl - E
Dtfer comprehensive NCoME a7l - 471
Total comprebonsive income fof T year 5541 n 5572
Transactions with equity halders
Pusthies of Share Staghid Uni unded Bhe Stahe Staplod Uint
Amard Schernis 1] - 5
Empioyes share-based compensaton 15 - 15
DeslributionDividend lor Shaee Stapked Uribushares of the Campany granied
wnger tha Share Stisplad Unt Award Schames ¥} - 2
DisiributionDvidend pad in respect of the previous year 13 33670 - 3,367
Irterim disiributisdhstend declaned and pavd in retpect of Bhe curment year 13 12.494) - 2454}
Divichenels doclaned and pove b nan-contralling sharsholden of sotndaries - 4 {14}
Total coniributsons by and dhbributions B equity holden 15,8530 (141 (5861
Crangs in inenests in subsiduties that does nof result in 3 ke of conbml 40 i 1276 4553
Total transactions with equity holders (2570 1262 (1,309)
As at 31 Docomber 2024 38787 1353 33645

Th notes on pages 103 to 193 feem part of the condalidated financial slatements, Ad explained in nobe ], the consolidabed financal
statements af the HKT Tl and the consolidated financial staterments of HKT Limied ane presented together,

T Tyl et T Lirvwtemd sl Rospue S04 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF HKT TRUST AND OF HKT LIMITED

Akl 3] Deemnpor N4

In HIKS mallion Neta 2003 2024
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assots
Propedty, plant and equipment 15 27278 28,358
Fiight-ol-use masty 16 1,988 1,826
Infieressts in loanehold kand 7 165 153
Gooawdl 18 43806 49,799
Inangbis muwets 19 10675 18,711
Fuiiment costs 1005 2,097
Cursiomer acquisition costs. 912 arz2
Contract sssots 24 261
IniBreats in addociales 0 a3 412
InEnisity in point ventures | &TE Blo
Financial suserts ot fair vislus Ehrough Ofhor Compnehansha income: =2 130 823
Fimancial assets af fair vaslue through peofl or loss 2 B 17
Derivative fnancial imiruments 8 ba | 58
Deferred income: [ax assets g B85 90
Oheer nens-cumreni asseds. =5 558 a3l
102,675 105,928
Current assels
Irvendories 26lal 929 1,503
Prepaymants, deposits and olfer curend Sasets 2606 3% 3702
Contract assets 511 601
Trade recerables, nat 260c) 2,838 2,710
Amousits due from related companies Bleh 2 20
Financial assets at talt il thirough profl of loss 2 15 18
T recoveratie 2 7
Restricted cash 2804} 21 179
Shaoat-berm deposits ] 25
Cash and cadh equivalents 3aich 1,630 1850
94843 10,885
Current Kabiitles
Shor-term borowings 2600} 11045 (3,934)
Trade payabies 26t 5,781 (7.212)
Accruals and oifher poyables 6,00 (6,667
Derbvative fnancisl instrumants. 28 (151) 141%
Carmier licence iee liabiaies 3 338 {324)
Amount due 1D a feliow subskdiary Eick £2.349) (25929
Adndaents dus 10 rlabed companiis Eled [i:24] a2
Advances {rom cusiomens 279 {301}
Contract Kabities f1L.450) {1,415
Loaso RKabdites 11,0700 {1,028)
Custrend incorma L labililies {1.576) (1, E88)
20,129) {26,821}

100 WK Fruatmned MR Lemsien Aol Begars JO00

273/419



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000(E25940)
Oooooooobooooboooononoad

ik ety Sl s e
Non-current Habilities
Long-torm borowings 7 (23,518 (37.372)
Derivativer financial irstnusnonts &8 160 (763}
Durhorred encormse Lax Habsbtiis 2 {5,498) 15,746}
Carler licancs fes Hakslities n {3,086) 13,198}
Contract Nabilities (S8 973
Lease Sabilites (@79 (825
Amount due bo a non-conproling inberesd - (3445
Cther long-lerm lishetties 1.544) lz_:m
156,607] 151,347}
Mot assots 35 32 39,645
CAPFITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 303} B B
Rezarves 31 35,304 38,274
Equity attributable to holders of Share Stapled Units'shares of the Company i5312 38,787
Hon-controlling interests 240b) Flv] 1,363
Total equity 35,382 39,645

Approved and authorsed for issoe by the boards of direciors of HKT Management Limited ang HKT Limited {collectively, the “Boants™) on
20 Fabruary 2085 and signed on behall of the Boards by

Ui Trar Kai, Richard Hud Hon Hing, Susanna

The notes on pages 103 to 193 lorm part of ihe consclidated fimancial staternants. As explabned in note 1, the consolidated financia
statements. of the HKT Tt and the consolidabed financial statemonts of HKT Limaed dre prosented logether.

T Tyt et T Lot B Bossget S0 161

274/419



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000(E25940)
Oooooooobooooboooononoad

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS OF HKT TRUST AND OF HKT LIMITED

Fir e praer ondipdd 31 Docomber 2004

In HES imalion Neta 2023 2024
NET CASH GENERATED FROM DPFERATING ACTIVITIES 34(a) 11,261 11911
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from digposal of propeny, plasd and equipment & 4
Purchusas of progedty, plant and equipement (2,138 (2,037)
Adaons of ntangibls assets (2897 [3,090)
Invesimearnt i an associabs {124 153}
Imesstment in a pint venhee 1304 (F.5]
Purchase of o financal axsel af fo value Ihnough other comphehenung iNcome - {2800
Loans {3 joint ventune (63 {6}
Decresefincrease) n shor-ietm deposits with matunly maone than thess months £r) 1216}
HET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 5214 (5, 794}
FINAMCING ACTIVITIES
New borrowings rssed A4n) 22983 25,931
Finance costs paid 340 1.599) {1,876}
Repayments of borrowings Jd[bd L2 59 (33,117
Payrreent ko lese llab@hes Gncheding interesd) ELH 11,430 (1,412}
Mowerment in amount dus 3o & Teliow subsidiary 3400 2312 nr
Movernent in amount doe 10 a relaed compaiy 34{b) o] i3
Drstyitn ticnay Dendends paid 1o hokders of Share Stapled Unsis'

shareholders ol the Company 13 15,6965) (58611
Dieigency paicd 10 ron-conlolling shar eholdens of subnidiones (1 114}
Hiet proceeds from partial disposad of intenests in subsidianes thal does not result

in 2 loss of control 40 - 5745
HET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 16.406) (5,590)
RET (DECREASEVINGREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 358) 227
Exchangs difarencis 81 k)]
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of year 1997 1,630
End of yea 34ch 1,630 1,850

The nobes on pages 103 to 193 form part of the consclidated financlal statements. As explained in nobe 1, the comaolidated financlal

statements of the HKT Trust and the comotidated financial statements of MKT Limited are prasented together.

102 WK Fruatmned MR Lemsien Aol Begars JO00

275/419



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000(E25940)
Oooooooooooobooooonoad

NOTES TO THE HKT TRUST AND HKT LIMITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3] December 2004

1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION
In accordance with the Tirust Dead (a5 defined balow), HET Trust (tha “HET Trust™) and HKT Limitad (the “Company™] ane sach
required to prepase thek own sebs of financlal statements on a comoldated bass. The HET Trust consoldated financial stalements for
Ihe year ended 31 December 2024 comgpanse the consolidsted fnanclal stalements of the HKT Trusk, the Company and its subsdiaries
(tegether the “Group™), and the Group's intenests i associates and jont ventires. The HKT Limited consobidatied financisl stalnmonts.
for the yoar ended 31 Decembaer 2024 comprise the conscldated financial stabernents of the Company and its subsdiaries. (lopither
thie “HET Limited Gaoup®) and the HKT Limniied Group's interests in associaies and jond veniures, and the Company's stabement of
fimancial pesaion,

Thee HKT Tiust controls he Comparry and the sole acihty of the HKT Trust during the year ended 31 Decernber 2024 was investing

in tha Comparny, Theredoee, the consalidated financial resuits and financial postion that would be presented in the consolidated
financial statements of the HKT Trust are idenlical o the consclidated financial resulls and Binancial position of the Company with the
only diflerences being daclosunes of the capllal ol the Company. The directors of the Trustes-Manager (a5 defined below] and the
directors of (ha Comgany belewe Marelon that £ & cleanor to present the consoldated fianciad staboments of the HKT Trust and of the
Company together, The consalicked Brancial staternents of the HICT Tiust and the conselidated financial statements of the Company
are prosonted iogetier 1o the atent they ane idenlical and e homsnaler referred t a5 the “HKT Trua2 and HKT Limited consolidated
financial statoments”™,

The corsolidstad income siatements, consolisated siatements of comprehensive income, consoficated siatements of financls! position.
consodated stements of changes in equity, consolasted statements of cash flows. matenia accounting polickes and the etated
expdanadory intormation are commaon ba the HET Trust and the Campary, The HHT Limited eondeldated financal stabements aho
inciycie the stand-alons slatement of financial pasiticn of the Companmy a3 shown in nole 5. and the reievant eaplanalony information in
nate 30 whene information specific to the Company are daciosed separataty.

Thes Grap and the HIT Limited Group are relernad 1o as the ~Groups™,

2 GEMERAL INFORMATION
The HKT Trust is constituied by @ Hong Kong low governed rust deed s supplementied, amended of substiiuted from time (o tme
{the “Trust Desed”), endeted inbd betesen HIT Manggemend Limiled fin its capacily 5 the trustes-managor of the HKT Trust {the
“Trustee-Manager™) and the Company. Lirider tha Trust Deed, the Tristee-Manager has been appointed as the trustes and managor
of the HKT Trust. The scope of activities of the HKT Trust specified in the Trust Dead is essentially fimited 1o investing in the Comgany
and ai the issued and paid-up ordinary shases. of the Company e held by the HKT T, The Company was incorporated in the
Cayrman hdangds 2% an exempled comgpany with limited kabaty under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, 23 consalidated
and revised) of e Cayman talands on 14 June 201 1. The Company has establnhed o principal place of buginess in the Hong Kong
Special Adminstrative Region (*Hong Kong™ ot 3%n Flooe, FOOW Tower, Tekoo Place, 979 King's Rioad, Chearry Bay, Hong Nong
and is registered 25 8 non-Hong Kong company. The HIKT Limited Group is principally engaged in thi provision of technalogy and
flecomimunications and relstod senices inchuding onserprise sohutions, mabille seniced, tolal homs solutions, media ensnanmend
{1he *Pay TV usiness”) and olfiier new businises suth 35 The Club's keialty platfonm, HKT Fnancisl Sendoes and haalihtech senices.
It operates primarily in Hong Kong, and also Serves cusiomens in mainiand China and othes parts ol the workd.

The shiire stapled unds (the “Shaie Stapled Linds”) stiuctuss eomprres: {a) & und in the HKT Triat; (b)a beneficial intenist in s
specifically identified ordnany shard in the Comparny which i “Tnked” [0 the wnit and eid by the Trustee-Managir as kgal owned in ils
capacity as the tnsstee-manager of the HET Trust; and (2} a specifically identified preference shane in the Company which & “staplea”
1o thet unif. The Shano Stapled Linits, which ane jolntly isoed by the HKT Trust and the Comparny, are [sted on the Main Board of

The Stock Exchange of Mong HKong Limited (ihe “Slock Exchunge™),

The ulfimate halding oompary of both the HET Trust and the Comparmy = POCW Liméed ["PCOWT), a company incorporated in

Hong Kang with its shares ksted on the Main Board of the Sdeck Exchange and fraded in the form of Amenican Depesitary Receipts on
The OTC Markets Group Inc. in the Linited States,

These financial staterments are presented in Hong Mong dolars, unkess othenvise stated.

T Tyl et T Lirvwtemd sl Rospue S04 108
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ROTES TO THE KT TRUST AND b1 LIWTED CONSOLTATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS A00Tmianr
3 Decomome 2024

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. Statement of compliance
The HET Trust and HKT Limiled consofidated financial stotements have been prepared in acopsdance with al applicabie Hong Kong
Financial Reporling Standards, wiveh & 3 collective ferm for all indvidusl Hong Kong Financial Reporiing Standands ("HKFRSs®),
Hiong Keng Accounting Standants (*HKASS") snd Interpretations isued by the Horg Kang Institute of Cestified Public Atcountonts
("HHICPA™), and fhe disclosue regunements of the Hong Kong Comparsss Ordinance (Cap. 622). A sammary of the materal
sccounting palicies adopted by the Grougs b sl out below.

b Bashs of preparation of the financial statoments
The foflowing amended Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standands are adopled for e financial year beginning 1 January 2024, bt
hawe no material efiect on the Groups” reportad results and fimancial position for the current and pricr accounting periods.

= HHAS 1 (Revised) (Amendments), Presentation of Firucls! Stitements

= HNAS 7 (Amendments), Stafemend of Cash Flows

—  HEFRS 7 (Amendments), Financial Insbruments: Disclosures

—  HEFRS 16 (Amendments), [ares

= H¥ Interpredalion 5 (Revised), Presentabion of Financial Staferments — Clssification by fhe Borrower of @ Term Loan hat Conleins &
Repayment on Demand Clause

Thie Growges have nat earty adopled any niw or amencoed Hong Kong Financial Reporing Standards that are not yet effective lor the
cusment seocunting perod, ditals of which are set oul in note 41,

The consclicated financial staterments & (he year ended 31 December 20024 comprise the financlal statements of the Groups, and the
Growps' [ntesosts i associplisg and pnd vintues

The messuemanl basts used in the preparation of the financial statermonty i the historical cost bass, ecept that the fallowing assets
e Habsities a0m stated ot Rair vislue a5 sxplained in [he BeooUNMing Dokcies st out baiow:

~  fnancil assets at fair value through profit of loss (see note 3(nl};
~ Fnancial sssets at fair value theoigh othar comprehentive intome ises note 3(nl); and
— dermalive inancial imtruments fsee note Jpll.

Az at 31 Decembaor 20024, Hh cuntent labites of the G exeeded their curmint atsets by HKS14,935 milion, ANer considering the
Groups' atelty to generabe met operatng cash inflows and raie S00T0nal el fnancing. and the undarwn banking facilites available

# ad 3] December 2024, management condlders the Groups are able 1o meed their labilthes a5 and when they (all due within the ned
12+month persod, Accordingly, thes consoldated financial Statements hun boen DrEpaed 0N 3 SOMNg CONCETT bats

Th preparation of financial statements in confarmity with Hong Hong Financial Reperting Standsids reguanss. managament b make
judgements, estimales and assumptions that aflect the applcation of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
ncome and experses. The eslimates snd asaocialed sesumplions. sy hased on hiioncs! expenence and varous olher facion. thal are
believed Bo e radsoniable under the caeumalanegd, the ity of whkch form e Basis of pogements aboul B carrying armauints of
assets and habilites 1hat ane nof readily appanent from other sources. Actual mesulls may dffer from these estimabes.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (covimem
b Basis of proparation of the: financial statemants: (condinued]
The estimatas and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing bass. Revisons 1o accounting eslimates are recognised in the
period in wiich he estimate ks revised |f ine revision allects onky That pericd, or [ the period of the revision and fulure periods  the
rvisian aftacts both curmont and luture periods.

Judgements made by managemaent in the appication of Hong Korg Financisl Repariing Standasds that hawe significant etiect on the
HKT Trust and HKT Lemsdid cormolicaied financial sialeménts and eshimates with o sipnificant rik of matenal adjusirmen in the ne
year are discussed in note 4,

€. Subsidiaries and non-controlling (nterests

Subsidipnes are enditn=s (including structuned sndities] controlisd by the Groups, Control exrsts wihen the Groups are exposed to, of have
Tights 10, variable returng irorm their imvoheermient with Uhe entity and have thie ability 1o aftect those returms (hvrough Ehelr powes Dvir the
onlity.

An interest in a subradiny B comdolidated nfo e HKT Trusd and HET Limited consolidated Snancal statements irom B date that
control commences unbl the date that contrml coases.

The acquisiion methed of accounting is used 1o scoount for fhe acquisition of subsidiaries by the Grovps. The cost of an acquisition
m measuned 25 the apgregate Lir value of the ssets ransierred, squity instruments stued and Rabilites incumed of assumsd of
fhe date of exchangs, The condidambion franalermed includes the fiir value of oy asiel, bty or equity resulting from a confingent
conaideration amangement. A subsequent change fo tha tak value of the contingent consideration that i deemed (o be a0 assat of
a liability s recagnised in acoordance with HKFRS 9 (2014) Franclal instruments in the consolidated income staternent. Contingent
consideration that & clasafied a5 equily i5 not rermaisred, and i sotequent seltlemnont 5 accounted lor within equily.

Acquisition-related 0ouls are expensed a5 ncusted, Identfiabl assets acquired and liabeates and contingent lakilities assened in

& business combenation are measuted initially at theie el valuea 3 the soquisibion date. O an acquisition-by-sequisition bass, the
Grtaipe recognis My non-conbrolling ntesast in Uhe aoquees sithar At fair value of a1 e non-controlling nises)'s phopofonale thang
of the acquites's ned assets. Al othar compenents of non-controlling interests are measuned at thesr acquisition-date kair value, unkess
ancthier measunerment bass ks required iy Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standants.

The excess ol the contideration tranalerred, the amount of amy ron-condroliing interes! in the acquires ard the scquisition-date ke
wailue ol any previous ety intenest in the stguines over thee L value of the identifiable net xusets acquired is reconded a5 goocwil
{5ee nate 001, 1 this i less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquined i e case of 3 Bargain purchase, the
difference & recogniod deectly in the consolidated moome stabernent. Whene businetses sre scouined and {ar values of the ol sasels
of the acquired business are finalied within 1.2 monihs of the acquesition date, all (er value adestments ane reconed with efiect from
the date of scguiion snd consequantly may result in the reststement of previcusly reporiod Bnencial results.

1f the busimess combimation is achisved n stages, (he acquisifion-date canying amount of fhe acquires’s previously held equity interest
i the aoquense is rermedsured o foir value of 1he soquistion date; any gains or losses afising om such remessurement are recognised
i thes consolidated ncome salement.

The Groups trest tranactions with non-controlling Interests that do nat result In @ loss of control & transachans with equity holders ol

this Girougs. The difterence betwesn ihe fair valus of any consideration paid and the relevant shate scquined of the carmying amound of
naf assets of the sulbricany i recorded i equily. Gasns of knises on dinposali 10 non-Conbioling inferdtls are also recorded in equty.

For subsiciaries which have accounting year ends difierent Bom the Groups, the subsidiares prepase, for the purpose of consolidation,
financial statements up ho and as af the same date as the Groups.
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ROTES TO THE KT TRUST AND b1 LIWTED CONSOLTATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS A00Tmianr
3 Decomome 2024

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conninusns
& Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
Adustments are made (o the financial stalerments ol subsdanes when necessany (o align iher accouniing polcies [0 Bnsure
comisiency with policies adopted by the Groups.

Indra-group balances and transadtons. and any unrsalsed profits arsing from ntra-group transactions ane ebminated in full in prepanng
thar HKT Trust and HKT Limied consoldabed financial stalements. Unsealsed losses reautiing from intra-group iransactions are
eliminabid in the S8me wiay s unréaleed profits.

In the Company's stademseni of fimancial poddtion, interests in subsidianes are stated at cost less impairmend Iosses. Cost includes diesct
siribctabie costs of imestment. Cost ks adpsted fo refiact changes in consaderation ansing from contingent consideration amendments.
Tha resuits of subsidipnes are accounted for by the Compary on the bass of dindends received and receiable.

d Associates
An associabe & an enity over which the Grotps have significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
bertwan 200 and S0 of the veting rghts.

Irrvesiments in associafes are acoouniad for in the HKT Tt and HET Limited consolicated financial staternents uaing the equity
mebhod and are indtisly recorded 81 cost. Tre Groups” inferests in ausociates include goodwill identified on acouisition, net of any
ecturmubated impairment s and sdust thereafier for the post-acquistion changes in The Groups' share of ihe associates” nef assets.
The consefidabed income statément inchudes the Groups' share of pos-soquetition, post-lax reswlts of the wsociales and any
mpErment kstes for the year, The comsolidated statement of comprehensse income includes the Groups” sham of the
post-acquesition, post-fax iterns of the associates’ other compeehenshe Income,

When the Groups' shant of losses exceeds their inferest in Ihe aisociate, the Grougs' intenes! s reducsd 1o nill and recognition of
bether losses ks discontinued exoopt b the eatent that the Groups have incurred legal or consituctive obbgations or mado payments on
penall of the ssociste. For this puipess, the Groups' interest in the associale is the carrying amound of the nestment using the eguity
rirthod ogether with the Groups” long-tenm inorests thad in sutistance fonm pan of the Groups' net iMens4t in the Essociale.

Linreatzed profits and kasses resulting from bransactions betwesn the Groups and their associsles ate eliminated to the extent of the
Groups” intexests in the assocales, encepd whers unrealised kosses peovide evidence of an impalernent of e gssal transiemad, inwhich
cane they are recognived emmesdiately i the consclidaled income tatement

H the ewndrshep interest in an adsociale i neduced but snificant influence is netained, only a proportonate shane of the amounts
previoualy recognised in ofher comprehenaive income i reclasuified Lo the consclidated income stalorment whare Jppropriate.

Adpatments #ng mada to thi firencisl statemants of Easocistes when necessany to align thesr acoounting poicies 10 ensuire Comisency
with policies adapbed by the Grolps.

€. Joint aerangements

Thee Gresges apply HEFRS 11 sl Avargerments 1o all pinl armingoments. Linder HEFRS 1], joint atrangiments oo classlied b eithes
Jng veniunes of jent aperalions dependeng on the contraciual fights and obisgations of sach nvestor,

The Groips clatsify joint arangements & joint venbures when the Geoups have nghts 10 the net assets of the joint arrangement.

Irviitrmeenits in jaint venbunes ane sccounted for in the HET Trusl and HET Limited consolidaled financial stalements wsing the sglity
mthod, 25 described in nole 3(dl.

Adpatments s made 1o the linancial stabérmants of josnd veniures whén necissary o align their sccounting policies o ensuse
corElency with policies adopted by thi Grocrn.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cov e
1. Gaining or losing control
When the Groups cease to have control, any refasined interest in the enlity 15 remeasured fo its (o value ab the dale when control s lost,
with the change in camying amount recognised in (he conscidated incorme statement. The Ler value is the inftlal camying amount for
he purposes of subtegusntly sccourbng for the nelained nforest i an pssociale, joinl arangement or nancial sssel. [n additicn, any
amounts previousty rocognined in othar comprehensens income in respect of that entity are pocounted for as i the Groups had daooned
ol ine related assels or kabilties. This may mean 1hal amounts peevioaly recognised in other comprehensive income are reclinalfied to
Iher consalidaled indoeme sLatement.

g Propoerty, plant and equipment
The foliowing items of propedy, plant and equipment are stated in the consoldatnd statement of financial position al cost less
accumulaied depreciaton and impasment losses (see note HoXalk

= buildings feld for o we which dm situated on kexsehabd Land, whene the fair value of the bulding could be moasuncd separdoly
froem the L vahos of the laasehaid kand a4 the incoption of the lease (see note 3(h)); and

= other iterms of plant and equipmant,

The cost of an dem of peoparty, plant and equipment comprises (i) s purchase price, (i) amy directly nitnibutable costs of bringing
Ihe asset 1o its working condifion and ocation for its inlended ye, and (il the inltial estimade ol the time of instatision and duning the
period of was, wheie relevant, of e cosis of dismantling and removing the lberms and resioring the site on which ihey are localed.

Subseguend costs ane inchuded in the carnying amount of an tem of property, plant and equipment of recognised 25 a sepanale ilem of
property, plam and ageoment, o8 apooprate, only when & & probabie that filurs eoonamic bineits assocated with the dem wil fow
10 thar Gropes and the cont of tha item can be measuned refably, All other costs, 3uch as repars and maintenance and cverhual oo,
are recognasd in the cormokdited income staloment a an gapense in the periad inwhich they are incurmd,

G, OF kses atising Mom the refinerment or deiperal of an item of property, plant and eguipment dne detsrmined as the dfference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carmyirg smownt of the itom and ane secognised in the comsolidated ncome stalement on
the dats of retirement of dsposal.

Projecis uneier consinuction are not degrecialed. Depreciaton on cihér property, plant and equipment b caiculated 1o wribe off the cost
ol iterns of prapedty, plant and equipmend, less 1hest expicted reskdual value, I any, using it shrghiding mathod over thel estimated
wnetul fhves as fplows:

Buildings Ower the shiorter of the enexpined fenm of Land iaxse and the estimabed uselul e
Exchange egupment 51025 yrary
Trandmisshon plant 510 50 years
Other plant and equipment 1 1020 yoars

The assels’ useful Ives and reshdual values, If any, are reviewed, and adjusted i appropriate, a1 the end of each reporiing period.
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ROTES TO THE KT TRUST AND b1 LIWTED CONSOLTATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS A00Tmianr
3 Decomome 2024

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (covinusn
h Loased assets
An arrangemeant, comgeising a iransacton or a seres of ransacions, i o contans a iease if ihe Gioups deleqmene that the
rangement conveys a rghl 1o control the use of an enlified asset lor 3 pericd of Bme In exchangs ko comideralion. Such
determination & made on on evaluaton of the substance of the affangement, regardiess of whothor the arangomonts. ks (e legsl
foem of o boarse,

Aazals lersed 1o the Groups

Lieskses and inilzally recognised o5 a rght-ol-use assetintonesd in leasehold kand and commesponding Rabssty, whene applicable, at the
dats of which the laased moset is svaslable for ise by the Groups. Each lease payment is aliocated betwoeen e liablty and finance
coat. The finance cos! is chargad to the consclidated income statermant over the iaase term 50 a5 to prodece a constant perodic
rade of interest on the remaining balance of the lisbility for each pesiod. The right-af-use assel i deprecisted on 3 straght-line bass
o thie ahartier ol thi Eael's wielul He and (he loase term. IMenl in kasehols lind & amafned on 8 sisghl-kne Bass ovel e
Teawd borm,

The Groups hurve elected the practical expedient nat 1o sepaate lease and non-lease components of certain clss of undertying
assets and accoun for while a% a single s companent n the measurement of loato kebilities ona right-of-uwe asols.

Assets leased fo the Groups and the corresponding iabilies sre ity measured on & present valus hogis. Lease labilities include
i net present widue of the following iBase payments

= fined payrmants (including in-substance fod paymentsl, lecs sy leaes ncenthes recelable
= wariabie laoss payrmets thad Ak based on an index of & fde: and

— payrnents of penaltees for terminating the lease, If the ke term refiects the Grouga, a3 kssoes, exorciaing an oplion o
herrminatE the haks.

Lease payprments (o be made wunder measonably certain axension optond are als0 inCluded n the meatsuroment of e labdity,

The lease payrments are discounted using the Inlerest rle implcil n he ease, If thal rate can be delenmined, or the moremental
boerowing rade of respectie enbities. Fight-0lme assets are meataed at cost comprising the folioning:

ther amount of the mfial meaonement of leaso kabilites;

ay laase Dayments made 51 of Defon: the commenciment dale, B3 any IBase INcantives necshd

]

Ay initial dinect costs: and
= restoration costs.
Paymants associated with ghortdom keases and leases of low-vale ansets ane recognised on a straghl-an banss A5 an expense in

e consclidated income slaterment. Short-dorm lnates are leates with @ kease temm of 12 months of less. Low value insats comprise
equipment and small iberms of offico fumiture,
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (connmuen)

b
i

L

Leasad assots (continuc]

Aszets leased out by ihe Groups

A lease bs classified a3 a linance bease |F il ranslers sulrtantialy sl the risks and rewaids incxlental lo ovwnenship of an underlying
assal. A lease s clxsaified as an operating lease if i diaes not trandfer substantially ol the rics and revweards incidental to onnership
ol an underying asset,

Whare the Groups lease oul aasets uncés cperating eaded, the Figats are included in the comoldated stalemen of financial
poton acoondng b thew natune and, where apphcatie, ae depreciabed in acoordanos with e Grougs” eprodialon pocsrs.
Impaismient lpsses am aocounted Tor (0 accomance with the accourting policy as set out kn nole MMl Revenue arsing from
operating leases i recognisad in the consolidated income stalement in agual instalments over the accounting periods coverad by
ihi lemse fenm, Lesss incentives granted are recogneed in the consolidated mcome stalement &3 an integral part of the aggregate
et lexte payments fecervabie. Contingent rentals ale recogniaed a5 incomie in the socounting periad i which thiy ahe eamed.

Gacahwill

Goodwill repressnts the excess of the cost of the considesation translerned, the amount of any non-controliing imenést in the acquree
and the scouitsitson-glate L vaiue of ary prsious equily inferest in the acguanoe over the Growm” interest in the not Lar value of e
acquiree’s idenfiflabde assets, kabilibes and coringent labtes ot the date of soguition.

Goodwill 5 stated in (he conoldated Satement of fnancial postion of cost less sccumulated Impairment losses. Goodwill is aliacated
o cash-generafing unds ("CGUS") and & lesied ai laast annually for impalrment [9ee nole HoXElL In redpect of associates and joinl
wantures, the Gurying amount of goodwil is included in the carrying amount of thes infefests in associates and joint venturs and tesed
for impairment when there & an indication that the investments may be impaired.

On disposal of & CGL of part of 0 CGU, an associate o a jount venturo during Ihe year, amy sttnibutable amaunt of purchased goodwill B
inclucied in the calculation of the gain or loss o0 dispenal

i
L

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Camier licences

Carrier licerces 1o establish and masnfain the islatommunications nebwork and o proside lelecommunications senaces am
reconded as inlangibie assets. Upon the msuance of the lcence, the cost thereod, which is the discounted value of the minimum
anmual faes payabls over the period of the licence and directly attributabie costs of pregaring the et for (ts inended use, &
recondd a5 ah intangsbie Jset logether with The related obigations. Whene thi Groups hae The rght B mtum a kcence and expect
10 do 50, the asset and the retated obligation recorded refiect the expected pericd thad the Bcence will be held. Amorttation i
provided on a siraight-fne bak over the estimaled wuthl ke of the kcence, commiencing from the dabe of launch of he relevant
IBECOMITILMNICATIONS Services.

The difference beteeen the discountéd vaiue of the mnimum annual fees and the total minimum annual fee payments repfesants
the affective cost of financing. Such finance cost will ba chasged Io the consolidated income statement in the peniod in which i &
Incaired wsing the effectve inferest method.

Variable annual payments on 1op of the minimum anmusl payrmants, [Fany, are recognised in thi consolidated income staberment i
[neurred,
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ROTES TO THE KT TRUST AND b1 LIWTED CONSOLTATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS A00Tmianr
3 Decomome 2024

a

110

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conviinusns

| Intangible assots (other than goodwill) fcontinued!

i Capitalised programms costs
Conls ncured bo progduce of acouire leledsion righls, for which the Grolgs can determing the broademiing schedules, ane
capiabied 45 Intangibis assets. The intangble Jssols are amortisd on an accelerated bass over the shorter of the expacted
economic lile of 1 10 5 years anc tha Boence poncd. Othr costs incumed for Hha tramsmisson nghts for showing programms,
spoets everts and fims o the Grougs tebevision channels, nckading sport rights for multiple spaons or competitions, of which
the broadeasting schedubes. e detenmingd by [he conlent (rovicers, are recognised in 1he consolidated income AMament on 3
straghit-bne bais over the porcd of trarsmission nghts across the season of competition. Other payments of programme costs
made in advance of in amears are recognised in the consbldated staterment of financial position as prepryments, deposits and
cther current assets or accnuss and other payables, as appropriale.

K Saftwane
Conts incummed bo acquire, develop or enhance scientific of bechmcal knowledge, and design and mmplorment i process of
systems, hoences and market knowledige are capitalised as intangible aisets I they ane entillatie and the Grougs have power 1o
otilain futurs sconomi: benelits Bowing from the undanlying reounce.

Dereelopment costs thal are deectly altributable to the design and testng of ihe Identilisbie softeare are capitalised a5 intangils
assts i the folowing crilera are mat:

- i s technically asible io complebe the soltwane 50 thal it wil be avastable for use;
= decuate technical, financial and cther resources are avadlable to complete the development and to wie the softwans;
= [ costs atiributabie b aoquslion, development and enhancement of the softwane can be relably momured; and
= e Greags hans povwer 1 oilain Rutune sconcmilc Dbty fowing fram th underyeng iesoutn.
Develcpment costs thal do nod meet the above crileria are expensed in the consalidaled income stalement as incurmed.
Capitalized software costs are amorised on a siraght-ine basks over the estimated wsetul e of 8 1o 10 years.

W, Other intangible sssts.
Oeher intargible ssets that are aogueared by the Groups ane staded & the corsolidaded statarment of fnancaal position a1 cost less
sccurmulated amorisation (when: the estimaled useful Be is fnde) and impalrment losses (see nobe 3ok, Experddunes on
wilerrally generated poocwill and Brands ahe recognised &S experdas in the pariod in wihich [hey ang incusrsd.
Amvartmation of intengible assets with fintle usetul lves 5 churped o the consolidatied imcome statemsnl on 3 straght-line bas v
their estimated usaful Ives. The foliowing irfangible assets with finite wseful lives are amortised from the date they ane awlabils toe
use and their estimated wedl Ives s as follows:

Trackemarks 20 years
Cuntornar base 8o 10 years

Tretr atats” uselul lves and i amoetsation methods ane findewed anncally,

k. Fulfilment costs

Drerect costs incusred in fulfilling a contract with @ cusiomer, which mainky cornprise setup and related costs in respect of the Groups'
telecommunications and pay-TV sendces, e capitalised a5 an assel o the extent inat the cosl generalies of enhances lesowces of
the Groups that will be used m satinhing pevicrmance obligations in the futuns and are expoctad 1o be recovered. Fulliiment costs are
amcrined on a Siraight Jine bakes over he expecied e of the customer contract
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (con i
L  Customer acquisition costs
Incrementad cosis incusred to oblaen 3 contract with a customer, whah mainly compnse sales commession, are capitalised as curstomer
acruisition costs if ihe Groups expect 1o recover those costs. Costs of obtdining a contracl are amortaed on a systernatic basis over the
expectod |t of the customear contract

m. Contract ausetslabilitios

Cusiomer pays accoeding loa pre-agretd paymant tchedule, If the pérfomancs cbiigations busilled by the Groups excecd [P folal
non-rofundably paymonts ncofved and unconddional rghts ko contract consideration 1o date, a contract asset s recognised, M the total
non-réfundable paryments necetoed and uncondifional rights io contract consideration 1o dabe excead the periormmance obigation fuifilled,
a contract Eability & recognised. The contract assefls are transfarred o recefvables when the Groops” rights bo the conlract considenation
tecome uncondional.

Advances: from customers represent nfundable customor advances. pledss rofer 1o note 3(ul for the accouning polices.

n Investmionts in debt and equity securitios

Clazsaification

The Groups classily thew krestments in debl and equity securities, other tan interests in subsidiaries, associates, and joint
Arrangamenls, 2

~  fthose bo be messured subsequently at fair vakee Ll siher bir wlue through olher comprehensive income [*FVOCT") or air valoe
through prof of ks CFYPLT)E and

=~ thise bo b meatured ol amortised cost.

The classificaton depends on the Geoups” business madel B maraging the linancial assets and the contractual berms of the conh
[ 8

For assets measured af tair vakue, gains and losses will eidher be reconded in peolit of loss of other compnihensive incoma., For
investmants: in debt instruments, this will depend on the business modal in which the investmend i held. For investments in egaity
struments that ave nol hedd for bading, this wl depend on whother the Groups have made an irevocable election at the tme of intial
recognition ko sccoun jor the equily instrument at FVO0,

The Groups reclinsty detd mtruments when and only whien S business model for managing thede assots changes.

Recognithon and derecognition

Regular way purchases and saies of inancial assets are recognised on (rade-dals, the date on which the Groups commd (o purchase
or el the pasel. Financial assets are derecognised when the nghts bo recehe caah fows from the nancial sses hinde expined of hin
been transierred and the Groups have fransierred substantiaity 2 the risks and pewards of cenerships.

Imitial rsatemrmnnt

At il recognition, the Geougs messure 3 financial assed at s tar value plus, in the case of a Brancial aaset not of FYPL tramaction
coass that ane directly attributable to the acquesition of the Snancial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets camied ol FVYPL ane
expensed in the corsaldaled Noome stalament.

Financial asseds with embedded dervatives an consideded in their entirety when delermining whothaer their cash flows ane solidy
peyments. of prncipal and inferest
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a2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conviinusns

n. Investmants in dobt and equity securities (confimuead)

Sulrsequant measurement

Dbt Fmiruments

Sutsmeguant measunement of debl imtrumants depends on the Groups”’ business model for managing the ssat and the cash fiow
charciersics of ihe assel. Thene are lhree messurement coliagones o which the Groups chassdy their debt instruments:

= Amortied ol Agsets that ave held for collection of contrachual cash fows wheni Ihoss cash fiows regresent salely paymaents
of principad and mitevest are measred at amortised cost, A gain o loss on a debt nstrument thal & sbsequantly messurod at
arnarteed cost is recognised in the consolidated income siatement when (he assel is deracognised or impaired. infesest income
from thesa financial aesets & nciidad i inlarest income using the eflective interest mathod.

= PWOCE Assets thal ane held Lor collection of contracius civh flows and for sake, whara the sssets’ cah fiows represent solely
payrments of principal and inberest, are measuned at FYOCL Mowermonts i the carrying amount ane taloen thiough othar
comprehersie income, except fof the recogrition of impainment kesses, interest income wiing the etiective intenest method
and foreign exchiange gains sni ketes which are recognised in the oonseliaatod income stalement When the financial ausel
derecogniaed, e cumuiaing gain o Inas previously recognised in olher comprehensive incomee s reclassfed from oquity 10 the
consolidated income stslement and recognised in oiher gainstiosses), nel.

= F¥PL Assets that do nof meed ine criteria for amonised cot of FYOC] are measured at FYPL. A gan o ks on @ debt instrument
theat is. submequently messured st FVPL b recognised and presented ol in Bhe consolidabed income stalément within other
gainsTiosses], naf in the period inwhich & arisss.

Espusity irstnuments.

Ther Gt subseauently measute o eguity imstraments al fain vasue, Whare [he Groups” manageenent hu made an (frevocable
wlection af initial recognition bo present Lar value gairs and losses o oguaty idinaments in alher compretensae income, thars b
o subsequent reclassification of i valus pans Bnd losses 1o the corsalaated income statement laliowing the darecegniion of the
ivestment, any balance within (he frnancial sssets 81 FVOCE neserve for these equity imvestments m reclissified 1o retaned profits,
Dinvicdencls from such imesiments continue (o be moognised in the comoldated income stalement & other ganliosses), net whin
the Groups' right o reoehie payments ks established.

Changes in the fair value of financed assets st FYPL are recognised in other gainailiogses), nel in the consolidated icome sialement a1
appicatie.

impairment losses (and reversal of impairmient lodses) on equily instruments measuned a2 FYOCT are not reported separniely from olher
changes in o valug,

o. Impairment of assels

L investmaents in debt Enstrumants snd trode snd otiher recofvsbiles
Ths Geoaips assess of forward-oking bas (he expected crod] keses sssociated with their debd imbiemants carted at arnbrised
ot of FVOCH, and lrade and othssy recahables eariod ol sendrimed cosl

For invesiments in deb instruments and cther rocelvables, the Groups consider the probabilty of default upon initial recognition
of st and whether thene hue been a ugnificant (ncreass in oradd ritk on an ongoing bass theoughout each mporing perod. To
asseis whethar Ihere is o significant increase in cradil riak, the Groups comgars the rish of a oefaull ofcurming on the asset as at
thee reporting dale with 1t risk of delault a3 ai the dofe of initisl recogritkon by consdering avaisble reasonable and supporive
forvsard- leoking intormation. Conskderatans may inchde

= internal credit rating:

= extemal crodi rating tas far as availablo);
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conmiem
o. Impalrment of assets (continued)

8

Imvesiments in debl instruments and trade and othes receiables (coanme

—  actusl or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected 1o cause 3
sipnifican change to the boerower's ability 1o et its cbigations;

= actunl or expecied sgrificant changes in the operating results of the borrower;

= aigndficant icreases i chedit rik on oiher fmancaal imstrumonts af the same bormower; and

- - signficant changes in the expectad periormance and behaviour of the bonnower, incChudng changes in [he payment status of the
Borrawer in the Groups and changes in the operating results of e bomowes,

Rugandiess of the analysn above, o significant increase m credit risk & presumed i » deblor o deinguent and in defaull Satos when
ihers ano urseitied amaunts remalning on the account on the day alter the Imvoloe due date.

Al gach reporting date, the Groups measure thie loss alowance for a financal asset a1 an amownt equal 1o B lietime expectod
credit lpsses if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly since initial recogrition. i, at ihe reporting date, the
credit risk on & financial 32l haa not increased snaficantly since initial recognition, the Groups measure he 1ovs allowancs for
That financial as5et af 0 amount egual 1o 12-month expecied credit lovsed.

For trade recekabies and contract assets, the Groups apoly the simpified approach to providng for sxpected credit losses, which
parmits the use of the Metime expeched koss provision for 8 trade receivables and contract msets. To measurs th expected credt
lorsss, trade iecehvabies R been grouped hased on shamd credil ek characlerslics &nd the diys paal due. When meaturing
expecied croal hises, the Groups congider 1he sk or probabuity that & credi bows ocurs by reflecting ther pousibilty hal a credit
s ocury i pomnebilety ERat no cred ks oCours.

Financial assets ane writhen off when thens i no feasonabie expectaton of recovery, The Grougs categornse a financial st for
write-alf whien a debior lals 1o make conlraciual payments for a perkod greater than the predefined limil. Whers loans of receivabies
Fave besan written off, tha Groups contime 1o engage in enforcement activity 1o atbermpt 1o ecover (he amouints due. Where
recoveres are miade, these are recognsed in the consoldated ncome stalement.

Impairment of sther sety

Interral and estermal sources of information are reviewed ot the end of each reporting peviod, of whinever ovents of changes in
circurmaiances indicate thal the casmying amount may not be recoverabile, (o identily indications hal the following assets may be
impaired or, gucepd in the case of poodwill, & mperment e Dreioualy FECORNISEd N0 IoNEer Exsts of May have decreased

~  property, plan! and edquipment;

= fighl-of-se asseds

=  inderesls n laasehoid Land;

= fulliiment costs:

- - cusiomer acquisition cosks:

- |ntangible assets

= inberesis in ssociates od oint ventunes; and

- poodwil
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conviinusns

o bmpainment of assels (confinuead)

i, impalment of olher asels (confeuen)
W arsy such indication eaists, the aset’s recoverable amount is edimated impalrment tests ane perloemed for CGLUs containing
poadwil, infangible assots thal ane ned et ovalabile for ute snd nfangle susots that hove indelinits ussful lves annually wholher
or nof there & any inchicaton of imparment,

= Calculation of recoweratie amount
Ther reciaverabia amount of an asset & the higher of its air vadue Rets costs of disposal and vadue-o-use. Fair vales less costs
ol disposal I the amount obiainable from e sale of an atset in an am's length transaction Belwsan knowledpaable, willang
parties, kess the costs of dsposal in assessing valus-in-use, (he estimated future cash flows are discounted to their presen
valus using & pre-tan discound reta that rellects currend market asuesumants of he lime valee of monay and the righs specific
1o the Baset. Whiede ofi s340l doe ot geneiale caih inflows Lrgely ndopendent ol (hose Hom other astets, the iscoverable
amcunt is detormined for the smalest group of assels that pooorabes cash inliows indopendently (e a OGLEL

- Recognition of impaiment ks
An impairment kss is rocognised in the consobdalod incorme statoment whenever the campng amount of an assol. or the CGU
‘o which it belongs, excesds its recoverabile amounl. impaimment keses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first to
reduce [he camying amnount of sy poodwill allocaled to the CGL and then, o mduce the carnieg amount of the oiher assels in
the CGU on @ pro rats b, except that the camying amownt of an asset will not be recuced belew iS indhidual fair vatue less
eonts of daposal, of valise-in-use, il determinable.

= Reversals of impainment keses
I resped ol assls other than goodwill, an (mgalimen ks i trvered I thare has been b Urvourable changs i the eslimales
iused bo doberming Ehis recoverabie amount. An impaimend koss i respect of goodwill 5 not Slowed to ba riversed,

A idversl of B impaiesl ket B e (o the BSSE'S ChMyg Aot Tl would hure bien debinmendd o i il iment
558 bt recognised in plior years. Reversals of Impaimnent lodses ane credited (0 the consolidated income staterment in tha
parkcdd in which the reversals are recognised

. Inferim fmancial reporting and impaiment
Linder the Rules Govesrming the Listing of Securities on The Siock Exchanges of Hong Kong Limited, fhe Groeps are requiired (o
pregane an inlerim linancial repor i complisnes with HIAS 34 indeim Financind Reporting, in respect of the Fest aix monihs of (he
financial year, Al 1he end of the intenim periad, the Groups appdy the same impairment testing. recognaton, and reverssl critedna os it
weould at the end of the Snancial yoor (3ee nobes (o)) and 3leii)

Irpasirment kosses recagnised in sn intorim period in respen of poodwill sne not ieversed in a sulnequent penod, This b the cise
e i na |oda. or & smalier loss, would have bean nécogniusd had the mpairmant boen sisetubd ondy 3t e end of the Gnancial
year b which the interim period retates.

B Derivalive knancial instraments

Deerrvatees nancial istruments an insally recognised at falr viskue o the dade a dervatioe contract i entored into and ang
subseguentty rermeasurnd at thesr L valoe at the end of each reporting penod. The galn or loss on remeasuremaent to lair value s
secogrited immediately in the comoldated income stalemnent, escept where the derivatives are designated and quality for hedge
sccounting, in which case necognition of any resuitant gain or loss depands on the nature of the ilem besng hedged (e note 3igh,

The 50 fair value of a hedging devivative is classified as a non-cuerend assal or Kability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item
s more than 12 months, and as a qurment asset or |iabdsty when (e remaireng maturity of the hedged em s 12 months or less than
12 manths. Trading dertvaihves ae classified a5 current asusis of Rabslities.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (con e
4. Hodging
At incegption of (he hedge relationship, the Groups document the economic relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
Rems inchuding whether changes in the cash llows of the hedging instriaments ane expecied bo offset changes in the cash Bows of
hecignd itlems. The Groups document (heir rigk managemond obiectnn and siralegy for undenaiing thes hodge transaction.

Canh flow hedges

Thie effeciive portion of changes in the Lir value of cerivalives that ane designated and qually a5 cish Aow hedges is recognised in the
hedging reserve withen ogusty, Tie gain of Ioss relating 1o the inefhective partan & recognieed eremediatioly in ther consolcatod income
skatemend, within finance costs.

Whar forwasd confracts aee Lsed to hadie forecasd iransactions, (he Grouprs desipnate only the change in fait valuz of the ipnwend
eontract relalad ko the fpol companer b8 Ihé hedging irirument. Gaing o leses ielaling 1o the tfective portion of the cluangs in the
spot componan of the torward contracts ane recoghesed in the hedging reserv within egudy. The change o This forwand element &
recognised in the consoldated income statemend.

When cross curtency Ywa contracts arm wied 0 hedge fture cash flows, the Grougs desgnade onty the change in tar valkee of the
wwap confract aher cacheshon of the fareign currency banks speead component &s the hedging imstrument. Gains or losses nelating to the
efiective pontion of the swap contract aler exclusion of foregn curmency bask sprasd component are recognised in (he hedging resenve
within egquity, The changs in fair value of the foregn currendy bass spread of the swap contract i the extent |§ relaies 10 the hedgad
Hem ks recogrised in ihe costs of hedging reserve within eduty.

Amounts accumulated i equity are reclassified in the penods when the hedged llem affects the corsolidated income Statement, a5
felhive

—  Thi gain of loss relating bo B aflectioe parton of forwaed contracts i recognsed in the cormobdatnd income slatermsnt as the
hiediged ifem sHacts proft of loss.

~  The gain of lass rebateng bo Ehe eflectie portion of the crss curency swap contracts hedging Bonowings denominaded in foneign
cumancy is recognised in the comolidaled income slatement within inance costs at the same time a3 the interest expense on the
hedged borrowings.:

= The gain or kass relating bo the efiectint partion of the inferest rabe seap conracts hidging variabie rate borowings &5 recogniied in
thi consalidated incoeme staterment withan financs conts of the same time as the inlenest cxpense on the hediged bamowings.

Vi @ hisdiging instrument expirgs, o B 0ld of termenaled, of whidn 8 hedge nd longes mests the criléria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative dihormed gain of loss and defermed costs of hedging in equity a That fime remain i equiy unhil the fonscest fransacton
occurs and aflects profid of loss. When the forecast ransaction & no longer expected (o oocwr, the cumulative gain of loss and deferred
oosts of hedging that were reported in equity s immedately reciassified o the consolidated income statemant.

Hedge nalleciventss & rcograad in the condolidabed mcome statement wilthin finance costs.

T Tyl et T Lirvwtemd sl Rospue S04 118

288/419



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000(E25940)
Oooooooobooooboooononoad

ROTES TO THE KT TRUST AND b1 LIWTED CONSOLTATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS A00Tmianr
3 Decomome 2024

3

1io

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conviinusns
. Inventories
Invenicries consist of purchased pasts and matenafs, fnished goods and consumabls inventones.

Puschased parts and malerisls and fnshed poods oo carried at the kwer of coat and net realisabie valoe. Nal realsable value i the
estimatad sefng price in the ordnary course of business kss the estmated costs of cormplation and the estimated costs necessary 1o
ke the sale.

Coraumable irvertories, hokd for we in the maintenance and expansion of the Groups” elecommunications systems, are stated of
ot less provision for dederioration and cbsolescence,

Cod im caiculated wung the weigtied averages cosf formuls and comprises all costs of punchase, costs of comersion and other costs
incuited in Binging th imaeniories b ther pretent (oeathon snd comsitan

% Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recahvables Sns recognessd mitlally al the amount of condieration thal |s uncondlsnsl unkes ey contain signdticant
Enancing companont, when My sne recognised ab Bir value, The Growps hold trade and offer receivabies with the obective 1o coflect
the contractual cash flows and therefore messure them sutmequently at asmortied cost using the eflective intorest mathod, leas loss
sligeance for expecied credd ipsses (see note JoNil,

L Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equnalonts comprise cash al bank and on and, demasnd deposits with Danks and ofher Bnancial institutons (ofher
than restricted cashl, and shod-<term, highly liquid investments that ane readily comvertible into known amounts of cash and which ae
sisbytct 80 50 INSIEREAN risk o Chnges in vilhud, RnVIRG boen within ise Months of matusiily ot ScoEtion and lenm an inegral past
of the Groups” cash manapément.

it Tradde and other payables
Tracke payables, acvances trom customens and othar payabliy ane innialy recognised ol Lir valus and sulseguently stated al
amonised cost using the effecthve interes! method

v.  Borrowings

Borrowings ans recognised bnilasy af fair value less atiribulable framssction costs. Sutsequent 1o indlal recognition, borrowings are
stabed at pmortised cout with sy difference betwean [hi amaund intlally recognaed, being the procesds nel of banaaction omts, and
tho redernption value being recognised n the congolidated income statement over the poricd of the Bomowing, using the clfeciive
inboreal method.

w. Provisions and contingent Nablities

Prowisinns are recogmised when (0 the Groops have a present legal of constructive obilgation ansing s a result of a past event; (1) 4
5 probabie that an oulfiow of soonomic benefits will be required 1o sl the obiigation; and (i} a relable eshimate can be mads of
the smewnt af the cbiligation. Whede the Brme value of maoney s malesial, provisions are stated at the prewend value of he ependiure
expbctin b satths the cbigation. The increass in provialon due i the padiage of lime & rcopnsed a5 Bberel axpense.

Where i ks not probalble that an outiow of wconamic benelits will be required, or the amouwnt cannot be extimated reflably, the
chigation i discioand 85 2 contingnnt luability, unless the probabilty of outfiow of economic benehts i remcte. Posslble obligabions,

whode exstence will only be confirmed by [he ccourrencs or non-oCourencs of one or mare future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liatilities unless the probstilty of outfiow of economic benefs & remata.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (con i
% Revenua recognition
Teiscormmunications servces comprse local telephony, kocal data and broadband, infematonal telecommumications, mobde,
entarprise solutions, e Pay TV buainess, snd other lelecomenuncations businesses such a3 cusiomes premises eguipmend sales,
oulsourcing. comsulting. and conkact cenires.

Lecal telephory, local data snd broadband, internationsl telecommunications and mobde businesses earn prvenus primarily by
providing becess 10 and ussge of the {elecommunications network focally snd intermationally. As pat of the bundied senice oiorings,
Ihe Groups also dedver handsels, equipment, gifts and rewand points From the Grows” customes ioyalty programme oflering a vanely of
geods and senices (" Reward Points”), which are considersd a5 separate performance obigalions.

Revenus i maasuted o the far value of the congidenston recedved of recehvable for the sales of goods and rendering of senscesn the
ordinary eourss o e Grougs” sciivites. Rivenus & neoognsed when the control of (he poodd of tefvices 8 Imnskeried 10 the cuiioimer,
Cepanding on thi ierres of the contract and thit kaws Uhat aoply 1o (he contract, control of the RO of SENces miay be iramemed
over Hirme or af a poind kn ime.

The Groups often ender into bundled salo contracts with custome s inwhich, apan irom the peowrion of telecommunicalions, modia
entertainment, and other senvices, the Groups have certan cther performance cbligations to customens such e the delvery of
hardsets, equiprment. gilts and Reward Poinis. When multiple-slament armangements exist, the loks! iransaction price recehvable

from customerss & allocatied among the Groups' periormance obigations on o reiatve stand-aions sefing price basis. Management
estimales fhe stand-alone seling price #f contrac inception mainly based on observirble retad prices and observabhe marked data of
the respective perfoemance chigations o samilar circurmdances o similar cusiomers. i 3 bundied dcount is granhed, 0 it aliocated o
respective perfermance chisgations based on their relative stand-alona seling prices undess the Groups have obsorabls evidence that
the entlie dacount ielated 1o only one of more, bul Aol o pevormands obilgalicns 6 the contracts. The codls of iespective handusts
equipment and gifts delivertd ane recognised &S cont of £akis whin e COMMESPONCNg Newenue i recognied,

For thi 1Bcormimiunat Bide Serices, Ivanue i Meoprebd over Hime 55 (1 cuitorner muitinedinly rcenel hd Cofduimes [he
benafits provided by the Geoups” performance a5 the Groogs perorrm and is based on Me outpul method, sither is the senice
allowance unils ane wsed of @3 Bime elapses, becauss it reflects the pattern by which the Groups salisfy the performance oblgation
threuigh the rendering of sendces 1o the czstomes, For senéos plan based on usage, whene monthly usage exceeds the allowanoes,

ihe overage usage represents options held by the customes for incremental senioes and the usage-based fée B ecognsed when the
customer sercises the option. Income from ather felecomenunications services ane fecopnied when services ane rendered, Cuslomens
are imvoiced in advante on & monihily b or imvoiced accoeding 1o the: pre-agreed et schodule a5 S8 oul in T cusiomes
contracts

For the sales of the hangsets, squipmeant and Rifts, nevenue & generily recognsad when control Dasses to the cusiome, being when
the products s delivered fo ond acorpted by the customes, The customear has full discretion over the handsats, equipment and gifts
and thare are no wituililed chiigatons that can aliect (he customer’s acceptance of those poods. Customens are invoiced imenediately
o imaiced accordieg 10 the pre-agreed payment schedule 25 set out in the customer contracts.

Wha the Reward Pomits sre awiinded o the memben. such revenue Bt their relathve stand-alone seiling price & ditetied & 3 bty
until the Reward Points are rodeemed. Breakage, nelering to Reward Points that are expocted to capire, i taken into comcderation
when determining the stand-alone seling price of the Rewasds Polrts and determined based on assumptions such as historical
axperionce, future redemption Dathirm and DI amITe detign.

Revoriee from empiproe solutions services s rocognised over Gme @ [he Groups performance creabes of enhances an asued that

the custormer conbiots as the asset & created or enhanced. Input method s wsed to Maassre the progress as it depicts the Groups®
performance in Wransiening the confrol of the assel. The progress is messuned by refenence 1o ihe percentage of conbract costs incured
fo date to estimabed total contract costs for the contract. When the cutcome of a conbract cannol be estimaled refiably, revenoe &
rocogrised only 10 the extent that |t is protabie the contract oosts incumed will be reooveratio. Custorrers make seftioment penodscadly
throughaut the contract period according to the pre-agress paymant schdule. Accumulaled axperience is used fo estimate the
warkable conssderation o the exdent that it 5 highly phobable that & dgnilicant reverial will Aol oocus, uaing the expachid valus mbthod.
10 b includad in the transaction price.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conviinusns

% Rovomss recognition (confinusd)

Sutscripton income from the inferactive pay- TV serices s recognised rateably over the confract pesiod whech ganerally coincides with
when Ihe services are rendened.

Advertising mcome irom ineractive pay-TV senvices is recogrsed () wien the adverisaments are lelocast on pay-TV, defivered thiough
Inderret and rnabile phatiomrs; or (1) ratesbly over the contractual dhspley period of the contract wien the advertaements are placed on
thit Grougs’ wabisibe and mabie plaforms.

Commission income & iecognised when entitiement 1o the income ks acertained

Custormars ang iwoaced in advante on a monthly bass o imosed acooedng o the pre-agresd paymen] schadule a3 sel oul i the
cuniomer contracls.

A Frnancing companant, I any, mighl exst when bming of ihe payment for goods of senvices by The customers, ditfers from the timing of
watifaction of the performance obligation. Such financing component i not sgnidicant ta this Giougs.

y. [Inlerest income
Indedest incoems ks recopgnmad on A time-appartioned basis using ihe eflectve inferest method.

2 Dividend lncome
Diicdand income is recognitod when [he tharehaldor's nghl 1o recere payment is exabished

a3, Bormowing costs

Borrowing costs ire expertied in the consolidated income stalemient in e period inwhich they are incurmed, secapt 1 Bh oabent that
iy aner cagitafsed o baing directly sitntutabio b 1he acquistion, comdnugtion of production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time (o gl ready lot i3 intended use of sale.

The capitalsation of boowing costs &5 part of [he cost of & quatiying asset commences when cxpendiiuee for (he ket is being
incuered, borrowing costs are being incumed and activities thatl are necessary (o prepans tha asset for its inbended use or sale am
n progress. Captaiisation of bomweng costs b suspended o ceases when substanbially all the acbvities necessary o prepae the
quailying assed for iis inended use o sale s inberrupled or completed.

Descounts or prermimeTs nelslng bo besmowings, and ancillary costs incurred in connection with arranging bomowings, to the extent that
they are regarded as adustments fo inferest costs, are recognised as experses over the period of the bormowing waing the effecive
interest mathod.

ab. Cost ol sales and genedal and administrative expensos

General and adminisirative espenses represent operating costs incuned other than cost of saies. Cost of sales mainy InCludes cost

of irventonies sold, connectiity costs and slaff costs relating it sakes; whis pendeal and administrative expendses mainly inchde
epretiation of property, plind and equemant, depreciation of nght-of-ise JSuets, amarastion of Land bk predmim, amortisation ol
intargible assets, amortisation of fusiment cosds, amorttion of customer dcquisition costs, Fmparment koss for trade recervabiles and
edher tlalf costs.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (connmuen)
ac. Incoma ta

Income lax for the year comprses curmeni income las and movements i deferred inoome lax assets and liabiliees. Cument income
tm and mevements in delerred income Lax ety and labdites sre recogneed in the cormoldated income Balemen] escept 1o the
axtont that 1hey relxbe to ibems recognised i other compehensa income o directly in equty, in whach case the relevant amounty
ane recagnesed in ofher comprehensive incomie of directly in equily, respectivety,

Cuniant incoer Lax i the sxpecied tix payable on the Uoobile incomse fof (e year, uting L mbes enacted of sutsiangivly enactd
at e end of the reporting penicd, and any sdjussment (o ncomae tax payabie in espect of phevwous years.

Delemed incoms tax is recognised i respect of lemporany differences Detween the camying amounts of assels and liabdibies lod
financial reporting purposes and the amounts ussd for taxaton purposes. Defened income Lax i not recognised for

= lemporary diffecencss on the inrial recognition of avsets or fabilities in a transaction that i nof a buainess combination and
that afiects neither accounting nor tasable peolit of loss and does not gve rse fo equal taxable and deduclitle termpotaty
dilferences;

- temporary difierences reladed (o imestments iy subsidieries, associsies and int vendures to the extent that the Groups e
abie Yo controd the timing of he reversal of the temporary differences and Bl i probabie that (he termporany differences vwill not
reverse in the loreseeable lufure of thene s no sufficient aatls profit be 2vilable againt which the deductitle temponarny
differences can be ulibed;

~  taable temporary differences arising on the inifial recognition of goodwil; and
= Ihose retabed 10 Pitar Two Income Taes,

This Gurcprs hisdogned defarmed Incom Lix gioety srd dedandd income tax latilties sepaiptely n relation bo s ke kabdlte=s and
Hig =l -sse assets.

Defermod income tan assats are recognised for ummad fax insses, undzed tay cradits and dedictible termporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that futwe tavabie profds wil be avalable against wiich the asset can be utilised. Future tacabie profits
thist may suppor the recognition of daferred mooms tax swets arring rom deductibie temporasy dilferences. include Bhose that will
ari from e revesial of exiting tixabile lemporary dilietences, provided thie diffenences relatie bo The sarmas Lation auhonty
and he same laxable entity, and are expected 10 reverse exher in fhe same period as the espocted reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arfsing rom the deflerred incoene Lax asset can bé carried back of forward.

The ampunt of defermed inCome ax recogintted & mexwned based on the expecied manner of realisation or sattiement of he
careying armound of the assets and fabilithes, using tax iatis enaclied or subslantively eracted ot the end of the réparting perkod
and are expecied 1o 3pply when the refated defermed incoms tax assal is realised and the dedemad income tax labiiity i settisd.
Derferred income Lax assets and fabiities ave nol dacounted,

The carrying amount of a defarred incomi fax avset i nrvewed # (heend of each reporting period and is meduced 1o thir exfent
1hat It |5 no longer peobable that sufficient taxabie profis will be avallatie to allow the reisted tax benefi 1o be wiillsed. Any such
reduction B neversed 10 the exient 1hat i becomes probable that sudficient tacible profits will be mvalable,
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ROTES TO THE KT TRUST AND b1 LIWTED CONSOLTATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS A00Tmianr
3 Decomome 2024

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (convinuem

at. Incomae tax (confinued)
. Caurrenl income tax balences and deferred income fax balances, and moverments theren, are presented sepavately from each other

and arg ot olfsst. Cusrem mcoems L asaets. o olfset agaimd curtent income b Babliilies, and delerred income tax assets agains
dotermiod incomp Lax liabaties, f the Groues have (he legaly eriarceable right to 2ot off curten] incoime Lan Jasals againtd cunnont
ncomie B labidifies and the foliowing additional condilions are mest:

= i the Carse of Curmen] incom L astats and Rabilities, the Grougs intend oither o Sfll 0n & ndl Bati, of (0 fealss e aii
and setthe th Habdty Smuttandously; of

- in e case ol delerad incoma 1af assets and [aslies, I they relats 1o incomse taes kevied by the wame faxation authority on
#ither

= e same taxabio enity; of
- chtforiant taxabl entiies, which, bn each bature percd in which significant amounts of delemed income tax llabikties o

ansets ang expoched 10 D seitied or recovered, infend bo realies the curent moorme tax Jasels and sottio the cunont income
tax llakifities on 3 ned bases of reale and settle smutianecusly,

ad. Emplayes benefils
L Short-tesrn employes benulits

Salares, annual boniset, annual eave and he cost of non-monetany benafits sre accroed in the yoae in which the associated
services ane rendered by empioyees. Where payment of settiemant is defemed and the effect would be materlal, these amounts s
stabed ab (M pratand values.

. Reltemont and clhet post-ernployment benofia

Tra Groups ofler this Tollowing retiromant and ather posl -emplopment benalits 1o it employess:

= dafined conlritaution setinsmant schemes [incloding the Mandatory Provident Fund “MPF™ schemak, and
~=  Long Servce Payments (“L5P™) under Hong Kong Employmnent Ordenance for emoloyees in Hong Kong.

The sints of relieemen schermes are generally held in wepasls busiee-administensd lunds. The schemes are generally funded by
condributions from the relevant companies in the Grougs,

For defines comribution peleement schemes, th Grous Day contibutions. i publicly or prvately AdminEiened DEnSion surance
plans on & mandsiony, contractusl of volundany basis. The Groups e no Sarther paymmsnt obilgstions onos (he contribufionm
have b paid. The Griwgs” contributions (o the defined contribution retirermrt Schismies s rebognsed B4 8N dnganss in he
corsolidated income statement in the pariod to which the contributions relate.

T Groups’ LSP obligationd (et elfiod a5 other payablea) recogrisied bn ihe consalidated sislement of firuneial positian e
caiculatied annually by independent qualified actuaries uing the projected unit credit method, The: present walues of the LSP
chiigations ane determened by decounting the estimaied future cash culfiows using discount rabe with relerence io market bond
yhelds at the end of the reparting period, which hawe e apprasmating the terms of the related RabBtkes. The net interest cost s
calcubated by applying the discount rte 1o the nat balance of the cbigations. This cosl i included in staff cost in the consoldated
rcome stalament. n caculating the Groups” LSP obligations, any achusrial gains and ksses arising fom experience pdjustments
and changes in actuanal assumptions o changed o credied 1o equity in other comprehenshs income in the perod n which they
A
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (covmiem

ad. Employes benefits joontinuad)

. Share-hased payrants
PCCW and the Groups operabe share oplion schemes where employees of Ehe Groups (including dineciors) are granied oplions.
1o acguene shates of PCCW (*PCOW Shares™) and Shate Sapled Urnsts at spoecified exeecion prices. Tha fair value of the emglcyee
sinaces meteived in axhange for the grant of cplions to acguing POCOW Shanes and Share Stapled Units s mecognised as stafl
cents in ihe consolidaied income statiement with a coeresponding increase in a capital condribathon from marmbers in respect of
amployed share-batd compansation unded squily and an employos Share-bated ComprLalion reng mapectivily, The L
vl of he oplions granted s moasured M grant dalé wsing the tnnarmeal oplion prcing moded, takong inte account the tenms
and condificns upon which the options weee graned, and sprmad over the nespective vesting period during whsch the emplopess
become uncondicnally entithed ta the options. Durng the vesting period, the mumiber of options: that ane expacted lovest &
reviewed, Any adusiment 10 the comulative i value recognised o por years regarding the options (o acquine POCW Shaees
and options 10 acguse Shafe Stapled Unis is charged of credded in the consolhidated income statement for the yiar of Ihe ieview,
uniless the onginal saff costs qualify for recognition as an assel, wilh o coresponding adantment bo the capital contribution kom
mmibers in respect of employee share-based compensation under equity and the employee sharp-based compentation resene
respoctivisly. On visting date, the amount recogniied o stalf costs reganding the options to acouine PCOW Shares and options
1o scquane Shave Slapied Units i5 adjusted 10 reflect the actual number of aphions tha vests fwith a comesponding adjustment 1o
the capilal contribution from mermbers in respect of employee share-based compensation under equity and the employee
shava-hased compensation resene respactively]. The squily ameunt regarding the oplions (o seguing POCW Shares ramains in (he
copital conribution from members in respect of employse thare bidad compeniation under squity, The egquily amount reganting
e options o acoure Share Staclod Units is recognised in the employens share-based compentalion resen undil either fhe options
ang exevcisod (when i i Irgnsferrid 1o the shane captal and share prermsem pocound ) o Bhe options axpine (when i isielessed
directly to retained profitsL

Shixe Stapied Units may be granbed 1o employees sl nil consideraton undar the Shane Sopked Lint award schemes adopled on

11 October 2011, the extermion of the duration of which for a further lerm of 10 yoars commencing from 11 October 2021 wes
approed by 1he bosnd of directors of the Company on S Acgnaat 2021 (eallectively the “2001 1 Shaes Stapled Linit Awara Schemes”).
Uncier the 2011 Shane Stiphed Linit Award Schines, e swarded Share Stapled Linits are gither newly issued a1 sue price

{the "HKT Shate Stapled Units Subscription Scheme™) of purchased froen the open market (e "HIT Share Staplod Units Purchase
Schama®).

Shasre Stapled Linits may aiso be granted to employess ot nil considevation undes the HET Trust and HKT Limiled 2024 Shaee
Stapled Linit Award Scheme adepled on 30 May 2004 (the ~H)04 Share Stapied Uit Award Seheme”), under which the awarded
Shane SEapied Units are eilfee newdy suod ol itue price of purchasod irom the opon market (the “Grants Funded by Exdsting
Shasre Stopled Uinits").

The 2001 Share Staphe Lind Aesird Scharmes will remaen vald and elfeciive undil all oulstanding awands granted theresmder hary
wesied, lapsed, forfeded or been cancelied in accondance with the tarms of the comesponding scheme. No hurther awands have

been or will be granted under the 2011 Share Stapie Uinit Award Schemes afier the annusl genaral mesting of the HET Trust and
ihe Company heid on 30 May 2024

T Tyl et T Lirvwtemd sl Rospue S04 121

294/419



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000(E25940)
Oooooooooooobooooonoad

ROTES TO THE KT TRUST AND b1 LIWTED CONSOLTATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS A00Tmianr
3 Decomome 2024

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conninusns

ad. Employeas banefits (continued)

H Shore-based paymeents (ron o)
Thee cost of Share Siapied Urits purchased from the open markest under the HKT Share Stapled Units Purchase Scheme of the
2074 Share Stapled Uinfl Award Scheme, and the issue price of newly isued Sharo Stapled Linits ender the HKT Share Stapled
Units Subscription Schesme o the 2024 Sham Stagled Linit Award Scharme are recognesod in oguty as treasury slock. The fair
vabue of the amployes serdcrs received In exchangs Sor thie grand of Sthare Stapled Linits wnder sach scheme |s recognised as stafl
£oats in N conalidaind income SLMBment with a Comespanding INcrass in an smpkoe shurs-batsd compensilion resene
wnder gguity, The fair vsios of the swanded Shane Stapled Uints i medsured by (he quoted market price of the Shane Saplod Unds
af grant date and s charged fo the consalidated income statement over the mspective vesting period. During the vesting period,
the number of swarded Share Stapled Linits that are expected 10 vest & reviewed. Any adjustment fo e cummdative i valos
recogrised in prige years is changed o credited in the consclidated income statement for this year of the review, unless the original
wtall costs qualify for recogniion & an aased, wilh & corresponding adustment 1o the employes thare-bated compenaalion ehene.
O vestirgg date, The amount necognised an stafl costs B adjusted to refioct the actual number of awasded Shate Stapliod Units that
vesits [with a comesponding adarstment bo the employes share-based compensation reserve] and the cost of awarded Share Stapled
LUinits recognisad % traasury whock i transferted 10 the employee share-hased comperdation reerse with the diffsmnces recognised
n exquity.

PCOW grants PCOW Shares io empioyees of POCW and iis participating companies al ril considestion under the shane swand schemes
adopied by PCCW on 15 November 2012, the extension of Ine dusation of which for a furiher pesiod of 10 years commencang from
15 Bovermibar 2002 was appeoved by PCOW on 12 Augad 2022 (collecively the “PCOW 2012 Shane Awisd Schemes”), Uinder
the PCCW 2012 Share Award Schermes, the swarded PCOW Shases are esther nawly issued af issus price (ihe “PCOW Subscripdion
Scheme"} or purchased from the open market ithe "PCOW Punthase Schome”).

PCCW also grants POCW Shanes 1o employees of PCOW and its panicipating companies al nil comideraton undaer PCOW Limiled
2024 Share Award Scheme adepled by PCCW on 30 May 2024 (the “PCCW 2024 Share Awand Schime”™ ), under which the
Swarded POCW Shares sde ethar niwhy Hasd of maue price of purchusied from th open et (the “Gronts Funded by Exiting
POCW Shares”),

The PCOW 2012 Share Award Schemes will remain valid and eftsciive until all outstanding awards granted themunder have vested,
lapsed, forfeited or baen cancedied in accordance with the lerms of the comesponding scheme. No further awards have been or will
b granted undes the POOW H012 Share Awand Schemes after the annual general meeting of POCW beld on 30 May 2024,

Aiarcis undier the PCOW Purchage Scheme, the PCCW Sutscrigtion Scheme and the PCOW 2024 Shane Amard Scheme afo
accounted lor s cash-seitied share-based payments. The lak value of the awarded PCOW Shares represents the gquobed market
price of PCOW Shares purchased froim the open market under the PCOW Purchase Scheme of thie POOW 2024 Share Awaid
Scheme, and the tssue price of PCCW Shares under the PCCW Subscription Scheme or the PCOW 2024 Sharg Awand Scheme is
recognisad as financial assels A FYPL and subsaquently maasured af Balr value. The fair value o the employes senvices recaived
nexchangs for the gram of PODW Shares i recognised 35 siafi costs in the consolidated incomea statement over the respective
vesting periad with § comesponding cbigation being recognised. During the vesting pernod, the mnber of awarded PCOW Shares
st ey poeliod 10 wissd B revitwed. Any sdjatmant 1o the cumitalive ke value reeognised in pod years i charged of credied
n the consolidated income statemont for the year of 1he review, wriews Bhe orginagl stal! costs qualify lor necognition as an assel,
with a correspanding adsiment to the ctligation. On vesting date, the amount recoghised as stall costs b adiusied to reflect the
actual number of awarded POCW Shares that vests (with a comrponding adastment (o the sbilgation) and the carmying amount of
avarded PCOW Shared recognesid in [he Bnancial asels al FYPL B oflet with the obligation.

. Termination benaiits
Terminaton benehits ame recognised onfy afler eifher an agrecment & in place with the approprate emgioyes representalines

specifying the lerms of redundancy and the number of employess affecied, of indhidual employess have beon advised of the
spocific lerma.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (con e
ae. Translation of foreign cwrrencias
liems included in the financeal stalements of sach of the Growps® entibes sre measured wsang (he cumency of the primary econome
ervitoniment in which e entity operates (The “lunctional curency™). The HKT Trust and HKT Limited consolidated financial statements
o presanled in Hong Komg dollars (MKS), which is e functionsl currency of HKT Trust and HKT Limited and the pressriaton cuency
of the Groups.

Fontign currency brantsctions during this ybar ane tramdated of the fonstgn axchangs raliss nuleg ol the transaction dales. Mondlary
assets and Kabilif=es denomenated in loneign cumencaes- afe translited ol the Toreign exchangs rates nuling al the end of th reportng
period. Exchange gains and kosses are recognistisd in the consolidated income statement, except when deferned in other comprehensie
hncome & qualitying cash fow hedges.

Nan-maneliry Esets Snd Rabdiies thal aie mesured in e of hatoreil cost in 8 foregn currency ane translaled uang the Sresgn
axchange rases rulng a1 mhe transaction dates. Non-monetary ssets and abilies denominabed in foregn cumencies that ae sated at
Tair value are ranslatod wing the Tonsipn exchange rates nuling al the dates when fhe Lair values are detérmined, Exchanges dfierences
arising on translation of non-manetary Jasets and labities, such a3 souty strements 31 FVPL, are ieporied a5 pan of (he Lar value
£aim or loss in the consobdated incomd: siatement. Exchange differences ansing on transiation of non-monotary assets snd kabibies,
such a5 eguily instnenents measured at PVOC), are included in the far value gain o loss in the fnanclal assets ot FVOC reserve umder
Equity.

The results of foreign operations ane iranslated inta Horg Kong doliers af the exchangs rates approsdmaling the lomeign exchange rabes
ruling at the dales of tramactions. Harms of Toteign operation in the consalidated statemnt of Enancial posibion, sichefing paodwill
artsing on consolidation of foreign operations, ane transtated into Hong Kong dolfars af the foreign exchange tates ruling al the end of
the reporling pericd. The riulling exchange differentes aie ecognsed in cher comprehenihee income and sccurnulibed sepacately in
e currency Translalion resone under euily.

On consolidation, exchange ditferences aring from ihe raralaton of the net inestmand in lesgn oparations, and of borrowings

And other curmency intdroments desgnaded a3 hedges of such rvestments, i any, Ane Lken 10 other comprehenthne INCome and
accumulited soparably in the curmancy lramslation reterve under squity. On disposal of a foregn operation, the cumuliie amount of
the exchange difforences moognised in the currency transiation reserve Uinder aguity which relates 1o that farsign aperation is included
i ihe calculation of the profit or loss. on disposal,
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MOTES TO THE MHT TRUST AND HT LIWTED CONSOLEIATED FANCIAL STATEMINTS ACONTRLEDS
3 Decomome 2024

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coninusns
al. Related parties
For the purposes of the HKT Tust and HKT Limited consolidated firancial statemenits, a party is consdered bo be related o the
Groups Ik

i M party has it ability, diectly or indirectly Hhrough one of miore inlemmedsanes, 1o contral the Grougs o exertae ugnficant
niflusnce over the Groups in making financial and apefating policy decsions, or his pint control over the Groups;

i e Groups and the pary ane subyect o common controt
i e party s an essociale of the Groups of a joint ventune in which e Groups ae veniuners;

#, e party i & memiber of key mansgerment pemantel of the Goups o he Groups” patent, of & close Lamily mamber ol such an
indnidual, or is an entity undes the control, joint control or significent mfluence of such individisal:

w. e party s a close family member of @ party relerned to in nolie | above oF | an enlity under the condrel, jainl conbrol or signifcant
influence of such party;

Wi the paty is 8 post-employment benedit pian which & for the benefl of employess of he Grougs or of amy entity that is a relsted
party of the Groupr or

v e endity, of any mamber of the Groups of which i 5 2 pan, prosides ey manasgement porsonnel sanices 10 the Groups.

Cacrsir armily rambiers o n indavidiaal ihe thase family membies whi may ba egeciid t nfhence, of ba ifludncad by, that indridul
in Eheir clealings with the entity,

o Segment reporting

Operabing Segments ane reporisd in b mannar conistent with The imemasl reporting prowded 10 the chie! operaling decision-maker
{the “CODM ") The CODM, who is resporsible for allacating resources and assessing performance of the operaling segrments, has been
identified a5 the Groups' senior exscutive managemeant.

Segment revinue, Expenses, iesults and asiets inchuce ibems directly siinbutable 1o 8 segment a well 25 those (hal can be allocated
en a reasonable bashs to tha segment. Ssgment nrvenun, expenue and wgyment parlomance inclade traractions betvween segments,
Inded-segment pricing & based on smdar erma (0 those available to other external parhes Tor simdar sendes. iner-segrnent
tranactons ane edminated in full in preparing the HKT Trust and HKT Limied consoldated financial staternents,

Sepment capityl expendilung i (e total cosl incurred durng the yedr o scquine segment assets (iIncluding propesty, plant and
ipuepemdnd and inborests in laadehold Lnd) that ane sxpicied to be used lof mone than onhe yead,

ah. Distribution/Dividend to the holders of Share Stapled Units/thares of the Company
Destribetion/Dnddend 10 the holders of Shase Stapled Unitnhares of the Company & recopnised a5 o KabsSty in the HKT Trust and

HET Limited comalidated financial staermants and the Company’s financial statements in the penod inwisch the destribution/dividend
& approved by the Boands or holders of Share Stapled Unilsiuhares of the Company, whene approgriate.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judasments are confinually svalustsd and ane based on historical sxparience and other faciors; including axpectstions
of luture events That are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Thie Graups make estimabes snd ssmpions concabning the future. The resulling accounting eatienates. will, by definition, seidom
equal the relalod actusl results. Mobes 18 and 36 contamn information about the assumptions and Thiw risk factons relating o gocdwill
fmpalrment and financll imtrumenis. Managemen has aho made judgements i applying the Groups’ accounting polickes. These
judgemanis and othes key sources of eslimation uncertainty are dsosed below

L Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Groups resesy inteonal and estemal sources of information & identify indcations that the
felicwang assaty may be smpdiced or, excapt in the case of goodwill, an mpairmeant loss previously recognised nd longer exsts of may
et dociansed:

~ property, plant and eguipment;
= tghl-ol-ume axsots:
—  nteresisin leasehoid ang:

= lulliiment cosls;

~  goodvill,

I amy such indication exsts, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. Impairment tests are parformed for COLUS containing goochwill,
Intangible ausats that ame nol yet availsble for e and infangibie assots (hat have indefnis ysehul ees annually whether o not there

i any Indication of imguirment. Significant judgement 15 used o dienlity CGUS appropradely, An imoaiment o5 i recogneted in the
consolcated mcome staterment whenmwor e chmang amdunt of an aset excoeds its reooverabie amount,

The scurces utilised o identify indications. of impasTment afe often SUDIECUVE In NBtue And the Groups Sfe MequEed 10 138 judgsmen
in applying such informistion fo their tusiness. The Groups” inferpretation of this information has a dinect impact on whether an
impairmenl assetement 5 pariormad a5 al the end of any ghen reparing period. Sech information is particulardy significant a5 it rlsbes
o thee Growps” elecomimunications services and infrastuciure Businesses in Hong Kong.

I an indication of impaamant i Kentified, such informatin i further subject 1o an extroine thal requires the Groups to estimale

the recoverable ambunt, representing the groater of the aswet’s fir valoe less Costs of disposal o its value-in-use. Depending on

ihe Groups' assessment of the overall materiality of the asset under nidew and compldty of darking a reasonable estimate of the
rocoveratile amaen, the Groups may periorm such sdesiments uilising internal resources of the Grougs may engags external
sehvars to counsed the Groups. Regardiess of the resources utised, the Grows ane requinsd 10 make many assumplions to make
Thesir imsmssmiénts, includeng the ubiisation of such assel, the cash fows (o be peneraled, approgriabn marked discount rabes and the
projecied marked and reguiatory conditions. Changes im any of thesa assumplions could result in a matenal change o fulure estimates
of the recoverable amourt of any assel.
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ROTES TO THE KT TRUST AND b1 LIWTED CONSOLTATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS A00Tmianr
3 Decomome 2024

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (con e
. Revenus mcognition
Uncler cerfain arrangements, apaet from the provision of ielecommunecatsons, media enfertainmend, and cifer senaces, the Groups
Fare certain olher peviormance obigations ko cuslomers such as the delivery of handsets, equipment, gt and Reward Points, When
multiphe-slarment Arrangements aasd, the botal transaction price reoshabis Irorm custamars (s afiocaied among the Groups” perfonmance
cbigations on o rotative stand-alons seling price basis. Minagement estimates the stand-alone soling price at contract inception
rraindy based on observable retad prices and obaervable marked data of the respactive pericamance cbiigations in simslar clrourmatances
10 similar customens. |f a bundied deoount is granted, £ i aliocaled 10 reipecive perionmance obligations bared on thiir relathe
stand-akone seding prices unbess the Groups have observablo evicencs that the entine decount nelated o ondy ane or moe, Bl not
Al performance obligations in the confracts. The Grougs ane negueed bo esercise considerable judgement in relabion 1o estimating the
stand-alone seding price.

il Deferred income tax

‘Whille daferred incomie tax Rabaties are prosdoed in full on all texabie tormpocary difhorences, deborntd sncom L assets ang rocognined
enly 1o the extent that B & probabie that fubume boable proft wil be avalable against which the temposany diferences can be uliied,
I ftssing the amouni of detired inbome tax as5els that need 1o be recsgnised, the Groups consider hiture tacble income and
Dussness plans. In the event that the Groups” extimales of projected future teable income and bonofits from evstable budiness plans
are changed, or changes in currend income tax reguistions are enacted thal would impact the timing or exent of the Groups' ability 1o
whsa the fax benelits of net operting loss carry-lorward in the fulure, adiustments to the recorded amount of net deferred income ta
assets and Income tax expense would te made.

. Curment income tax

The Groups make @ provison for current income Lax based on estimated taxbio incorme for the year, The estimated incomie tax
Eatakzs are primarily compuled Biried of the tas computations s prenaded by the Groums, Newerthesis, from time b Hme, thise are
ek raidd by the Lix authonless of Hong Hong and alsewhens on the L treabment of Sims includisd in the Lar computations and
certain non-routine trammsactions. If the Groups consider it peobabis (hat thee guarhes or judgements will resul in different tx positond,
thety Pt likeshy B inils ot et cimets will B etienaitod S St B th INComs Ui igints S coms i Rabilities will ba
ke accondingdy.

¥ Lives of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets (other than goodwill), ffilmont costs and customer acquisition costs
The Grougs have significant property, plant and equipmen, intangibés assets (olher than goodwill, fulfément costs and customer
crieition costs. The Groups ane requised 1o estimate the lves of property, plant and squipment, intangile assets (olher than
gocswill], fulfifrnent costs and custoenes scquinilion costs in ordir 1o ascertain the smount of depreciaton and amaodisation chages for
e roporting pericd.

Thes v are estimated at (e fime of purchase of thise Fissts of disect costs inCuired In fulliling of Boguaing & contract with o
curstperer after considering fure bechnology changes, business developments, the Groups” strategies and expected fves of customes
contracts. The Groups peroem annual reviews 1D assess the appropriateress of the estimated lhves. Such reviess take into acoount
ey unenpectsd adverse chianges in croumaiances o events, including declines in projectsd opevating resuits, negative industry o
soongaic trands and raped advancements i iechnoiogy. The Groups extend or shoren Hhe ey acootding 1 the results of The reviews.

Wi, Lease torm and discount rate determination

in determining tne lease term, management considers facts and crcumatances such a6 condBions of the Grougs' exsting keases, fubue
technology changes, bussness dewslopments and the Groups” siralemes, that Crodde 40 econcimic ACentneg 10 Cuefcis an exiension
option, o nat eorcise a fermenation option. Extension options (or periods after terminadion cptions) ane only included in the isase term
H thee hease 5 rearsonably cenain 10 be extended {or net terminated), Polential fubure cash outfiows are nod inchuded in the lease liabsty
because i is nof reasonably certain that the leases will b2 exiended (or nol terminated). The assessement ks reviewed | a significant
event of 8 Significant change in Croumstances occurs which sfiects thes assessment and Mat i within the control of [he lessee. As al
31 Decomber 2024, polentisl lubute undscounted conh outliows of HEEEA] millon (2023; HRSEAD mdlion) kv ol been Inchuded in
th ke linbilities bocawse # i not reasonably certain that the kease wil be extonded (or not ferminated).

1A debermiining the dicount rate, the Grouds afe fequined 1o eeentis corribderable udparment by Laking ists sccount the natufe of
Ehy undertying assets and the termm and condilions of M leasek. 31 both the commaencament date and the oifecties date of he lease
ek ficatian (if anyl,

124 W Frumtmned MRT Lo Aol Begars [0

299/419



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000(E25940)
Oooooooobooooboooononoad

5 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

I HES miiflion Hode 2023 2024
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Nen-current assets
Irderests in subakdanie 31,125 30,750
3,135 30,750
Current assets
Prepayments and deposty 13 16
Amounts due rom substitanss 4,360 4474
433 4,450
Current llabilities
Accrunls and olhes payabies 4] 4]
Amounts due 1o subsidenes (1581 2275}
Curmant inoome fax Babeites 23) -
{1831 229
et pasaty 315313 32,961
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share cagital a) B 8
Riserves 3} 35,305 32953
Tatal equity 35313 32961

Appiovid and authodied lor Bsue by the baand of diectors of the Compary on 20 Februsry 2025 and sgned on behall of the bosrd of
dirpctors of (i Comgny by

Ui Trar Wai, Richard Hisl Han Hing, Susanna
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ROTES TO THE KT TRUST AND b1 LIWTED CONSOLTATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS A00Tmianr
3 Decomome 2024

6 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
PCOW s he contralling holder of Shane Stapled Linits. CAS Holding No. 1 Limited and POCW are the immediate and uitimale holding
companes ol the Company respoctaely.

Dusring tha ywar, ur Groups. had Uhe Bilowing sigrificant tramactions with rolied partios:
In HKS rmillion Mot

Telecommunicotions sendoe foes, data cente sendce foes and contlact centng senmce

charges received of tocelvable from & subatantial sharshalder of POOW ]
Telecommunications serdce fees and daks centre service fees paid of paryable to a

subatantil sharehoider of PCCW a
Telscommunicabions serace lises, [T development and support Sensce chrped,

contact centre service charpes, hotlne services foes, consullancy senice chages,

inberest income and other cots recharge receed of reconisble o genl venunes o =0 49
Telscommiunications sendce lees, outtawcing lees, rental charges and nienest

expersn pasd or payable 1o jant veniures a 25 27
Telecommunications serace fnes, connectialy sonvce loms, conact contre senice

charges, equipmant Solix, Cuticmer SCquiSiion Senion I, CoNULanCy serice

eharged and olfer costs recharpe recesed of rocofable from an adsocole 8 27
Custormar scquisibon senice foes paid or payable 1o an asscciple a 2
Adhverising Teas and licenoe fees recefved or receivable from an sssociate of PCOW a
IT charges, logetics chapes Bnhd e conbiaelon serveces 1ees paid of uyabie to a0

associate of PCOW a 738
Tesecommunications senice foes, data centie serace oes. ConneCiiity service

fees, aquipmant sales, inswance premium, INsSuANce agency senice charges,

advertsing leas, managemend fee, travel agency sendon fees and osher costs

rechirge recetved or recesabie fnom nelated parties under o common holder of

Share Stapled Unita'shaneholder with the Company ] 109 128
Insurance premium and rentsl chamges pafd o payable 15 relatod partiey. undar 8

comiman hoidor of Shafe Stapsesd Uity tharehoicar with the Company a 218 156
Tesecommunications serace (063, chruge weryicn fees, marketing and sk werices

fees, conmeciivity service lees, managerment loe, squipment sales, conternt

provision fees, iravel agency sefvice: fees, rental charges and other costs recharge:

received or receivable fom feflow subsidianes a 2378 1,382
Cortent provisaon lees, oulsouncing Bees, markelng and sales servces fees and other

conts recharge pakd o payabl 1o Meiow submidiarnies a 306 415
Hiry rRanagemant Compens.ation b I8 34

5§ |8

175

a; Tho above fransactans were carmed out after negotiations between the Groups and thie relxiod partes in the ordinary course of
boness and on the basis of stimated market valuse 26 determingd by the drecions. In respect of tramactions for which the price of
viluimed haes R0l ol boen agreod wilh Bhe relevant related parties, the dneclons hive deltermingd the rebeaand amounts baded oh (heir
st Estimsation.

b Detalls of key management compensation

In HES millian 2023 2024
Salares and pther shar-denm ampioyes Denalts 21 25
Shpde-based compeniation & 8
Post-employrrant benefits 1 1

8 3

e Balances with related companies and a fellow subsidiary

#As 3t 31 December 2023 and 2024, other than as specified in notes 20 and 21 and the amounts die to a related company which
comyprised an unsecuted ioan of HRESS malion [023; HKSE2S million) whech tears inferest 8l 2.5% per annum (2023 same), an
wrsecured loan of HKS20 millon (2023 nil) which bears interest at 2.53% per annum and are repayabie wihin 1 year (2023 samel,
tho amount due 10 8 Tellow submidiary and tha olher amounts due Bromdo related companies an undeacuned, non-intenest bearing. and
harvet i flued repayTmient term.
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7 SEGMENT INFORMATION
Tha CODM & the Groups” senior executive management. The CODM reviews the Groups' infsmal reperting in ordes (o assess
performance and aliocale resources and the sagmand information is reporied below in acoordance with fhis infemal reporing.

Thay CODM costviicders the budinses from thi product penpective snd sssesses the performuncs of the loliowing segments:

= Telecommunications Services (T55") s the leading presdder of technology and ielécommunications and relnted services inchading
enlarprise solutions, htal hame solubions, and media entertainment. It cperalies premasly in Hong Kongl and also Sened cutlomers.
in maénland Ching and cthar parts of the workd,

- Mobile includes the Groups” mobie telecommmunscations butinesses in Hong Kong.

= Other businesaes of the Groups (“Other Businets") primaily comptie obhar new busielies tuch 5 The Cluby's loyally plidiorm,
HET Financial Senioes and heaitniech senices, a5 well X5 Comporabe suppor Hanctions.

The CODM aasesses the peviormance of the cperating segments banad on a memsune of adusted earnings biloss intem, las,
depreciation and amortsaton ("EBITDA”), EBITDA represents camings bafore imeres! income, inance cosls, income tas,

depreciation and snortsation, gansilosses on disposal of property. plant and equipement, interests in keasshald (and, right-of-une assets
and intangitle ausels, net other ganaiosses, losses on property, plant and squipment, restructuring costs, impairment losses on
geodwill, langible and intangible assels and nleresls in a3s0¢iates and joini ventures, and the Groups” share of results of associades and
joaind verhares.

Segmant revenis, expense and segment porformance inchade transactions belween segrments. Inber-segment pricing is based on
sirrullar B bo Uhire gvadable 10 other exliimal pafies fof tmilir sendces. The revenue liom édimal paithes epored to the COOM &

measuned N 3 manner consrtent with that in the comolidated ncome statemant.
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MOTES TO THE HKT TRUST AND HelT LIMTED CONSOLZIATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AC0nTRLED?
3 Decomome 2024

7 SEGMENT INFORMATION (oo niniaer
Inforenastion regasding (he Groips” repartable segmanis 55 provided fo the Grouga® CODM & sat oul below.

2023
Othes
In HKS mion 5s Moble  Busineises  Eiminations  Comsofidated
Reverme
Extermal revenue 22867 10,621 B2 - 3K330
Iy Segment nevinue 1,303 6a7 40 030K -
Totsl reveme 2170 11,308 BE 2,030} 34330
Eriemal revenue from contracts with customens:
Timing of reverue recognition
Al @ point in lirme 4123 2824 £ - 7.439
Over time 18655 1797 350 - 26,802
Exterral revenue fram ofher sourcey:
Rental income B3 - - - g9
22867 10,621 842 - k]
Resuits
EBITDA 9311 5,060 11,0310 - 13,400
Other indeemation
Capsital ependitune [including proporty, plant and equipment
and inderests in lnpsohald tand) incurmed during the year 1397 128 148 - 2273
2024
Othes
In MRS mifion 155 Mobila  Businesses  Eliminations Consclidated
Revermie
Extetrad nivenui 23243 10,684 B2 - 34,753
Irter-segment revenue 1214 an_u 54 _EM -
Totsl nivenue 24457 11,484 B8O (2,068) M
Extesral revenus from contracts with cusiomens.
Tirning of reveras recognition
AL @ poind in lire 5136 2,526 T3 - B389
Over ime 18025 8,158 o - 26,262
Extierraal revvenuie from obher souces:
H:erfl ircome 82 - - = &2
23243 10,684 86 - 34,753
Resadts
EBITDW 9,532 5311 11,7000 - 13,743
Otheer infermation
Capital expanclitane [inckiting property, plied snd edupmernt
and interests in easehold land] incurred dusing the year 1339 690 185 - 2214
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7 SEGMENT INFORMATION (conrimusn)
A reconciliation of otal segmeent EBITIDA (o profit belone imcome b is provided as follows:

In Hi million 2023 2024
Total segrrent EBITDA 13,400 13,743
{LossesiiGal on desposal of peepery, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, nel 2 10
Depreciation and arnortEation (5,852} 15.505)
Other gains, net 10 131
Finance cosls, nat (2.134) (2.238)
Share ol results of assoiiaies. (108 121
. Share of results of joint ventures. l_ﬁr_ i5)
Profit belore income lax 5,508 6015

The fallewing lable wets out infermation about the geogsaphecal locabon of the Groups' revenuse from extemal customers. In predenting

ndarrnabion on the basks of peographical segments, sepmant revenue |5 based on the geographacal location that ihe Groups derie
rEvenue from customen.

in HECH millicn 2003 2024
Hang Kong [nlace of domicie) 28,240 28,154
Manland and other parts of Chana 1,583 1849
Others 4507 4750

34,330 34,753

As at 31 December 2024, the hotal of non-oument asseds. other than financial insthuments and defermed Income ax assets, locaded in
Hong Kong was HKS10] 241 million £033: HKSGE 755 malkon), and the iotal of these non-cusrent asssts located in other geographecal
Iocations was HEE2.91 7 milkon (2023 HRKE2,718 matkon),
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HOTES TO THE HET TRUST AND H(T LIMTED CONSOUSIATED FINANCIAL STATEMINTS ASOATRLEDH

3 Decomoae 2024
8 REVEMUE
I HIKS milian 2023 024
Revenus from confracts wilth cuslomarn 3240 34,671
Reverue from othar sources: montal income 8 a2
34,330 34,753
a Revenue recognition in relation to contract liaksiities
In MRS million 2003 amp
Rervenue recognised thit wis inchatied in the contract labilities balance M
tha Bpginining af T yeat 1.410 1,450
b Ussalisfied long-torm fixod-price contracts
In HKS miion 2023 2024
Aggregate amount of the iransaction price allccated (o long-term fued-price corfracts
that are partiady o fuilly unsatidhed as 3t 31 Decamber 19,953 22,506

A o 31 December 2024, management expectod thal 53% and 27% (2023; 54% and 29%) of the tramaction prce allocaded 1o the
unsatsfied forg-tem food-prics contracts would be recognaed & revenus during the firtt and second oo respectvily after tha ond of
the reporting period, The rmaning 20706 (2003 17%) would be recognied & revenue in the penods afterwand. The amount disciosed
aire dhoes N0t Inciude unsalisfied performance obligalion Lhal s relshed 1o the Groups' contracts with customers. with duralion of oné
year of ks and confracts with customers bilad direclly scconding to performance complated 1o dato.

8 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
Profit before income La wis stated after charging and crediling the koflowing.

a Staffcosts
i HES rralion 2023 2024
Solares, bonuses and ofhed beneiils 2725 1912
Shate-based compensation expemes 3 2
Retirement costs fot stall under defined contribudion relirement scharmes 308 310
2,564 2,256
Liss: stoll coits inchided in oo of Lk (750) 1633}
Staff costy included n general ard sdmansiralng aipenses 1814 1,623
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9 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (conrinuen)
Profit bafore income i was stated after charging and crediting tha falioeang: (continued?

b Costof sales

In HES miflion 2023 2024

Cost ol inveniones sold 6,940 8172

Connectiity couty 7043 6,970

Seaff eosts TS0 633

Wrile-back ol provision for ieventory obolescencn, 3 9
(thers 2.7 1944

17,454 17,710

c. General and adminiiiralive cipenes

In HES milion 2003 2024
Saalf costs LE14 1,623
Impaimment loss for trade recevables 182 232
Depreciation of propery, plant and equipment 1301 1,065
Dopreciation of right-ol-use assats = land and buildings 1,224 1197
Depreciation of rght -of-uae assets - netwirk capacity and equipment 109 101
Amorisalion of land laide prémium = inlerett in bpehold Lnd 12 12
Amorisation of intanpiie assels 1419 1402
Amariisation o fulfiment costs 386 454
Amaortisation of customid acquisition costs 1,201 1,243
Eaxchange icasesigains), net 142 221
Less: cash flow hedges: transter from exquity (126) 7]
Losse/iGairs) on dspossl of property, plant and equipmenst and right-of-use assets, net 2 {3 1:1]
Remuraration (o the Compary’s suditor
= audil and sk related seraces 16 16
- nor-audil services 11 &
Remunarstion (o oths st
= dudit and mudll relabid seraces 10 10
= P -audil sennces 1 1
Ohery 1,420 1410
8130 8,795
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ROTES TO THE KT TRUST AND b1 LIWTED CONSOLTATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS A00Tmianr
3 Decomome 2024

10 FINANCE COSTS, NET

I HIES rmalfiorn 2R3 2024
Infodeat oxpense, eutluding ittt fponss on hase liabilities 2103 (2,247)
Indoresd capenae on ke labigs (B4) 19
MNotioral accretion on casrier licente ke lablithes e 87
Otheer Rrance costs = 1y
Hedge ingfleciimmets: Cross Curmency swap contracts and fonsgn eachange forward contracts
= gah fow hedges lor Tonsign cunency ek 9 {108}
Hadge instlectivensss, imerest rale swap contracts — cash fiow hedges for inferest rate risk 19 25
Cash Mow hadges: transher from equily 21 21
Impact of nedesgnation of (e value hedges (4} -
(2.3465) (2,496)
Inderest captadned in property, plant and equipmant and mMangitle avsets (note ) 156 197
Totsl Enance costs £2.190) (2,299)
Tola interest incCome 55 (3]
Firance eoats, rel (2.134) (2,238)

& Tra capitalmathon raled uted b delerming tha amount ol inbeeet clgitds lof capialmation n piopenty, plint and equipment ani
intangible pasets ranged from 4.19% to'd, 98 for e year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: from 3.52% to 5.19%),
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11 DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS
Datails of dirstion’ cmoloments am sl out bekow:

a. Directors’ emoluments — cash and cash equivalients paid payable

2023
Retiement
Diencion” Banadty acheme  Shard-tmued

I HRS million fedt  Salard  Aiwancid nknd' Bonmey condrbubions  compentalion’ Totad
Executive directors
Li Taar K, Rachard . - - - - - = -
Hul Hon Hing, Susanra - 487 487 il 703 058 697 M35
Nen-cxscutive directon
Puter Anthony Allen . - - - - - - -
Cramg Cha Yee, Mico 025 - - - - - - 025
Tang Yonghe! o1 - - - - - - a0
Warg Fang o2e - - - - - = 0
Indepéendant non-executive deectors
Chang Hsin Farg 035 - - - - - - 05
Suril Varma 037 - - = - - - Q3r
Arnan Mahis gar - - - - - - 037
Frances Waikwun Wong ear - = - - - - 03y

185 AET7 487 003 703 058 a47 31
Mvtes

| Bty i b irderdy inChdes el inalrance iR

2 Pomm amourt soen ahowe ropnesent e 2007 bonuses, Sl wore paid m 200°0 1w dotermned by rederencs Ba e Geroops and fhe ndisdial porformanoe
Gurry the pear encied 31 Dedeentes M.

3 Share-bated comperriation smounl down st mpeiendt P amregii D aeue of S repecine seid dite of Fe FLEW Shares s Shaew Sapsed Lind
verabid 0 UEEY Ko e clepeien wureded fhe BRam e st

4 OO g et RO W eTCT R 3 s 00N

% Foo recaivalila i A& P el SFacES i P10 sl ireendind b 3 tobsaiany of CPana Linked Metwork Cormmuscatong G Cargany Lisbted
BcCrAanG Wl ah s ngererd Detwee Mr Tang Yongha s Char Lvsted Networs Communecation o Cormpany Limied

6 Fea receivalile i & 0oyl demging i 2003 wis e b 8 by of Crina Undng Ntk Conrmarecaions Do Comgaay Limbed n
aconirance with an sesngemeni betasen My Wang Fang snd Chea Urdded Metecrk Communcaiiten Group Compary Limied.

T inchusey HICH L4400 bee an Chusrman of Auds| Commiies.

B inchodes FRE 10 400 ke i Oralran of Mommahion Commiiee,

§  Inctes FIES T3 600 e i Dhusrwormon of Bemurerstion Corrmfies.
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HOTES TO THE HET TRUST AND H(T LIMTED CONSOUSIATED FINANCIAL STATEMINTS ASOATRLEDH
3 Decomome 2024

11 DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (coninuen)
Duetads of directors’ emoksments are et out belowe (conlinued)

A Direclors’ emaluments — cash and cash equivalents paldpayable (continuead!

Iy HS millien fees  Salories Aowances  imking' Boouses' confribifions  compersation® Total

L Trar Kai, Fochard - - - - - - - -
Hul Hon Hing, Susanna = 501 501 (i1 Bag 0us0 654 =77

Petier Anthomy Alen
Cheryg Che Ve, Mico
Tang Yorgta

Wang Farg®

A1 E
ERE.

Criang Hsin Kang
Senll Yarma

Aman Mehia

Feances Waikowun Wong
Cruiens Dowes™

RERER

§

S0 501 003 E4B 0.60 G564

Nptr

Baralis m kind mank ol PO FRSRCE preTm.

Berun amourd shiven sbove gt eserts the 007 boruses B were G 0 S04 5w derteteraned iy relorence 1 e (routs and e mudvidusl perlornancs

Agrng B ymar ened 3] Deceder ITL

1 Shure boned compermution amour dhoen abows regreserts B Aggregate Lae welar ot (P ieuec v ssvard dadel of the PCOW Sranm i Sham Stagried Uni
wesideed in X2 o T Crmclor wefided Bl hisin i Scherre

4 Feo reteiible 35 & rer-peculive divctor ir 00 was sortandoned (o s slaiday of Chend United Netwon Commurcation, Geoup Carmgany Limand in

acroeiaree with an arangenen] et Ly Ty Yorgbo sed Chirs Unsd Hetwors Communicaliom Geme Comgamy Lmsbed

RalEned i 8 AoR-Saatul Ve AR wi® ezt Fom 20 Juhe 2004,

Fiee repohvable gy 3 rom-ewtutve dencor m 00 was somneiered 1o 3 subaitary of Che Linded) Meteer Commgme o Geousy Compaery Limited in

ECrEwharen wibh ar AT e et Bl Wi Fieg end Chnd Undind betwork Commune ator Seinp Gompary Lrmiet

T iy HEE) 28200 Ine g Charman of At Commiliga

B inchodes HE128 200 loe ax Chissrs of Momnaon Comimities.
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11 DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (convninweny)
b. Déoctors’ other senvices
Mo obher emahements wese paid Io o receivable by any deector in respect of direciors’ olhwer senaces in conneclion wath iha
management ol the altairs of e Company or bis subsidiary underlakings during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: nill,

¢, Diroctors’ retirement bonofits
Ho retirment benefits weee paid bo or recohable by ey deector during the year ended 31 December 2024 by a defined contribution
rtierment scheme opedsbed by [he Grougs in respect of senices & 4 director of the Comaany And it subsidinnies (2023 nill.

Mo other retitemen] benelits were paid to o receiable bry amy director in respect of obhér sendces in connecbion with the management
of the affairs ol the Comparny or its subsidiary underiakings during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023 nill.

d  Derectors’ termination benefits
Mo payments or bonefits in respect of the termination of dnecions” serices wene paid to of recervabie by the derecion duting (he yoar
ended 31 December 2024 (2023 nil),

@ Conskderation provided to thind parties for making svailsble directors’ services
Ha consideration was provided (o of receivable by third parties for making svaliable direcions’ senaces during the yesr ended
31 Decemiber 2024 (2023 nill.

I Intormiation sboad loams, quaal-loans and other dealings entered info by the Company or subsidiary undertakings of the
Company, where applicaba, in favour of directors

There were na loans, guasi-bans or othar dealings in favour of depctors, their controlied bodies coporate and connectod entities during

1 year ended 31 Decamber 2024 (2023, mil.

g Diroctors’ material interests in tramsaction, arrangements or contracts
Mo sagrilican HBscliond, MrBnAgHTENLS Snd contraets i relition 1o the Croupd’ bulbhess i winch the Company wis & farty afd @

wihich o it of thee Company had & materinl inenes, whether directly of indirsctly, subsited ot thes énd of the reporing period or at
any lime duting the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023; i)
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MOTES TO THE MHT TRUST AND HT LIWTED CONSOLEIATED FANCIAL STATEMINTS ACONTRLEDS
3 Decomome 2024

11 DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (coninvuen)
h. Wnedevicuals with highest smoluments
i Of the frve indiiduats with the haghest emoluments, one (2023 one) s a drector of ihe Company and the Trusies-Manager whoss
emoluments are disclosed in noke 11(a), The emoluments in respect of the four [2023; lour) nen-direched iIndvidhusls lor the year
ended 31 December 20024 were a3 follows:

In HKS milion 2003 2024
Salares, share-baod comphniation, Sfcwances and bensfils n kind 16 15
Bonuses 3 5
Retwement schame contributions i 1

20 21

L T ernakements of the fou (023 four) on-directon indeidiasts lod the yoar ended 31 Decesmber 2004 wene willin (e Lllowng

emaiument ranges:
Murribstr of indriduss
HKS3, 500,001 — HK$4 000,000 1 -
RS, 500,001 = HK$5,000,000 1 3
HIK§5,500,001 — HE$E,000,000 2 -
HIKSE,000,001 = HKSE, 500,000 - 1_
4 4
12 INCOME TAX
a. Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:
b HIKS rrlion 2023 2024
Casvent incorma tax:
Horg Kong profits e
- prtrviion lor Currond yisar 3r 551
= CWET [HOVISICN in MEspect of prod yea's (392 36}
Ovarsmas b
- pROwiSoN for current year 25 »
~ under provtsion in respect of pror years z -]
Movernont of delead incoma tax (nofe 37 524 asl
496 914

Hong Kong profils ta is prosaded af the rale of 16.5% (2023 16.5%) on he estimated assessabla profits for the year,

Ohvattneurs b s calcuipded on the extmated asseiaabie prolits for the year ot the Fites of taogrhon peesiing in the respactive
jursdictions.
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12 INCOME TAX (CoNheED)
b Reconcifiation between income tax expensa and accounting profit at applicable tax rate:

In HKS milion 2023 2024
Prafit before income tax 5,308 6,015
otional Lax on profit befong income tax, calculated a1 the Hong Kong tix rate of 16.5%

(2023: 16.5%)1 909 w92
Etfect of different tax rates of subsidiarias operaling overseas 15 15
Incoeme not sutject 10 tax 1z (B8)
Experses not deductible for L purpones 140 185
Tax losses ol recognised 68 149
Ot provision in respect of prior years, net (3300 @n
Lnifisation of prviowsly uneecognised ta losses (4] 31
Recognition of previcusly unsecognied Lax lesses = 22
Recognibon ol previously ueecogrnised Temporary diflerences 10 12
Resets of associstes and joint ventures not deductibis for W purposes 19 21
Corporate income tax incentives 2431 272)
[T 1 Enpeanss 456 914

¢ Plllar Two Income Taxes
In Decarnbor 2021, the Organastion for Econamic Co-operation and Developrnert ("DECD™) redersad the Pillar Twe madel rubes, sbio
krrin & the Global Anti-Bate Eroson Propousl (“GIsEBET), te refetm intermalional cofpedabe Likadisn

The Groups afe withan The scope of the OECD Pillar Two moded rules. Pillar Two legisiation has come info edfect, o & expecied 1o
corme indo offect, on of e 1 January 2024 in several jurisdictions in which the Groups operate. including Australi, Bslgium, France,
Garmanry, Greece, Japan, South Alrica, South Korea, Sweden, Switterland, the Netherands, and the United Kingdom. implementation
s schaduled for 1 Janusny 2005 in Malaysia, Indonesia, Singapor, and Hong Hong (pending appeoval from the Legisative Council),
The Pecple’s Repubdic of China (the “PRC") has vel 10 anncuwnce Palar Two legisiation.

The Groups have appled the temparary mandaiony exception peovided in Ehe amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taoes tsued by the
HEICPA, in July 2023, theepby nal recognising of decioung information aboul defornod inooms b astets and labilities susociasted with
Pitiir Two Income Taues.

Uinclar thie DECD Pillar Two madiel rules, thee Grougrs are fiabie t pay 8 Wp-up i for the difference between its GloBE eftectie tax e
pet urisdiction and ihe 15% minimum rate. The Groups have assessed the iop-4ep tax implication under the Pillar Two legislation based
on the financial data for the year ended 31 Decamber 2024. According 10 the assesuments, The Grougs have no relsted cuinent ta
expoaures in 2024 under the Pillar Two legalalion as of the reponing dale.

The Graups will continge b monibor plobal divelopments related o tha Pilar Two legisiation and raasseis any polenial impacts
accordingly.
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13 DISTRIBUTIONS/DIVIDENDS
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Inbesien detribubon/dividend dectaned and paid in respect of the curment year of 32,92 HK cenls
(2023 32.05 HK cents) per Share Staghed Unitordinary shase of the Compary

Liess: distributionddividend jor Shase Stapied Unitsiondinary shares of the Company held by
thas Srues Stapled Linit Award Schames

Final distritution/dihvidend declared in respect of the previous financisl year, approved and
peaed dhuring the year of 44.44 HK cents (2023; 4315 HN cents) pes Share Stapled Uini!
cadinany share of Hhe Company

Less: destribubonddnidend for Share Stagied Unitéondinary shanes of the Company held by
e Shuse Stapled Unit Awd Schomes

alis ] o]
2429 2495
(@) m
2427 2404
am 3,369
= R
3269 3,357
5,690 5,851

For the year ended 31 December 2024, tha Company proposed a final gradend of 45,88 HK cents per ordinany share, (otalling
HKE1.478 milion (2023: 44,44 HK cents per ordinary share, totafing MFS3.360 milion) fo the HKT Trust after the end of the

reparting peiod.

Fex the year ended 31 December 2024, the HET Tnst proposed 4 final datributien of 4588 MK conts pee Shave Stapled Unit, ietaling
HR$3A78 million (2023 44 44 HK cends per Share Stapled Link, iotaling HKS3, 355 million) to holders of Share Stapied Units atter

the end of the reporting period.

The Siral distributicnidividend proposed after the end of the repoing period, refermed to above, 14 nof recognised as a liability & a8

o erad of the reporting period.
14 EARNINGS PER SHARE STAPLED UNIT/SHARE OF THE COMPANY

The calculations of basic and dilied earmings per Shane Stapled Unitshace of the Comparty were badid on the lohowing cata:

2023 024

Earnings (in HKS million)
Eamings for ihe purpose of base and diuted eamings pes Share Stapied Uit/
thare of the Company

4,991 5,070

Kumiar of Share Stapled Units'shares of the Company
Wieghted average number of Share Stapled Linituordnany shares of the Company
Eflect of Shars Stapled Units hidd under the Shasne Stapled Linit Awaed Schames

7579142330 7,579,751,203

Weighted mverage number of Share Stapled Units/iondnany shares of the Company lor
the purpose of batic earnings per Share Stapled Unitisha of the Compary
EMfect of Share Slaphed Uinits awarded undér the Shane Stapled Unit Award Schemes

7.574 722275 7575697323
1192489 1412948

Weghted avragn numbes of Share Stapiod Linits/ordnany shares of the Company for
the purpose of diluted sarmings per Share Staplod Unitshane of the Company

7.575914,764  7,577.110,271
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2023
Other Projects
Exchange  Transmission phand and undes
In HIES millicn Buildings eoupmant plar oquipmant.  comruction Total
Cost
Beginning of yoar 1.353 23533 ko) 16.617 2321 74,044
Auiditions - 350 3E3 367 1,233 2213
Disposals - 1734 133 285 - {1,151}
Transders - 102 521 64 (ER7T) -
Eachange ditfsrences - 2 56 351 16 <
End of oo 1353 23583 30,648 16928 2553 5205
Accumulated deprecistion and
impakrment
Baginning of year 809 17.87% 17,628 11382 - 47.758
Charge for {he year 27 419 532 i - 1.301
Dispesaly - 731 (13h B0 - 1,142}
Exchange differences - 1 a2 e ] - 10
End af yoa 836 17,568 18,131 113592 - 47927
ot beok value
End ol yoar 517 6,025 12517 5,536 2,683 21278
Beginning of year Baa 6,054 12,132 5,235 2321 26,286
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (oonipuin
2024
Other Projects.
Exchange Tramimission plant and under
In HES rrallion Buildings  equipment plant  egquipmen!  construction Total
Cost
Begpnning of yar 1,353 23,593 30,648 16,928 2583 75,206
Additons E 212 95 36T 1240 2,214
Dizposals - [a5a) [42) 1188} - {1,681)
Tramsfers - 298 424 203 1925) -
Eschange cilferences - f124) 5 33 {5 1183}
End of yoat 1,353 23,120 31,430 17,279 2993 76,175
Accumilated depreciation and
Iimpaimment
Beginning of year a36 17,568 18,131 11,352 = 47,927
Chrggs Tor th yoar &7 am 364 304 - 1,066
Deposals - (B58) a2 180} - {1,080)
Exchange differences - (83} 1 24} - {106}
End of year 863 16,998 18,454 11492 - 47,807
Not book valua
End ol year A% G122 12,976 5,787 2,993 28,3568
Begrning of year 517 6,025 12,517 5,536 2,683 27,278

142

The depreciation Charge lof ihe year i inciuded in genaral and adminsirative gopenses in the conkobialed income stiement
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16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
In HES miflicn 2023 2024
Land and buikngs 1,793 1619
Poetwork Capacity and equpment 195 207
Total 1,968 1,826

The Groups ot min righl 10 contiol the use of varous Lend snd buldings, and network capacity and squipmant Tor & period of time
through lease arrangements. Lease arrangements ane negotsated on an indiwdual bass and contan 2 wide range of differend terms
and conditions inchifing lease payments and lease terms ranging from 1 {0 14 years for land and buldings, and from 1 o 15 years o
nebwork capacity and equipment. Except for Isnsa covenants mainky relalad 1o the mainienance and use of the mased assels thal ans
cormmonty found in baate arangements, (here ane no other coverants of restnchions mmposed by the kase agroements. The keated
ety may not be used an security for BOrrowIng purpose.

Addiflers 1o the righl-olwie assets dusing the year ended 31 December 2024 were HKS1, 162 milion L2023 HKS1,435 million)
During the year ended 31 Decemibar 2024, lotal cash oulfiow kor inases amounied o HKS1, 527 milkon (2023: HKE1.515 million),
which included cash outfiow for shor-term lpase sxpenses amounted to HKS115 milkon (2023 HKSE3 million) that were eoognized in
ihe comsalidated inCome statement.

The depreciation charpe for the year s included in general and adminsirative expermes in the comcbidated income stabement.

17 INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND

In HES million 03 2024
Cost

Baginning and end of year 536 535
Accurmulated amortation

Beginning of year s Er ]
Charge for the year 12 12
End of year an 283
Kot book valup

End ol yeu 165 153
Beginning ol year 177 165
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HOTES TO THE HKT TRUST AND He(T LIMTED CONSOUSIATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ACONTRLEDT

31 Decomps 2024

18 GOODWILL
I HIES: rmaliorn 2R3 2024
Cont
Beginning of yoar 49,803 45,506
Eschange ciferences 3 m
End of year 49,806 49,799
Iimpalrment tests for CGUS containing goodwill
Goodwill was allocated {0 the Groups” CGLE dentifiod according 1o operating segments as follows:
b HRS rrslion 2023 2024
155
= Liocat telepharmy and daty sensoet N n7s
- Qb 1,214 1,208
lobie 16,853 16,853
Total 43,806 409,739

The recoverable amouts of the OGUS s delarmined based on vake--i calculationg. For the yaar ended 3] Decamber 2024,
thie calculations use cash fow prosections baded on financial bodgets approved by management penerally cowering a S-yiar peniod,

Th by azzumplions used for ihe vakse-in-use calcutalion ol Local telsphony and daln services incluts sversgt revenue growih rte of
1% (2023: 1'%, sverage EBITDA growth rate of 2% (2023 1%, extmated termingl growin rate of 1% (2023: 1%) and pee-1ax discount
e of 1076 (2033: %),

The kary assamplions used for the vale-inuwse calcubaton of Global Business includs average revenus growth rate of 2% (2023: 75,
average EBITON growih rate of 1906 L0093 B%) based on past perlormance and taking into accound expectation of hiture business and
mmarket gereslopmants, estimated teeminal growth rrbe of 39 (2023 3%) and pre-tax discount rate of 15% (2023: 15%),

The bey sasmplions used lor ihe vakue-in-ise calculalon of Mobsle nchude swrage rvenue growth iate of 1% (2023 2%), sverape
EBITDA growth ratis of 2% (2023: 2XK), estimated terminal growth rate of 2% (2023; 2%) and pre-tix dacoont rate of 127% (2023: 14%),

The e revenass and EBITDA prowth ratea uted are bisad on 1he Bruncasl budgels appitred by mansgsment, taking (o socournt
thie marked growth rale, pest expenence, growth target of cach CGLL &5 well &5 expected efficiency smproverments. The terminal growsh
rates wsed o extrapolate the cash fiows beyond the financial tudgets period are based on the leng-term serage growth rates for the
besenesies in which the CGLs operate. The pra-tix descount rades wted reflact specific risks ralating fo the refsant CGLUL

There was nd impalment reguired from ihe review on goodedll A reasonably possible change in ssumptions would nol result in
impairment and 25 such daciosune of senstrity analyss 1§ not comsdered NecesEary,
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19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2023
Capitalred

Curier  Customer programime
Ir HEKS: million Trademarks Bconce base  Software” coats Cehers Total
Cost
Beginning of yoar 2,049 BA6S 210 12,651 20 70 23.738
Auditions - 20 - 2,334 1 212 2677
Write—p#f - 150 - - {19) - b2
Exchange differences 4 = = o = = P
End ol o 2,053 BAGS 210 14985 355 32 26,350
Accumulated amortiation
Baginning of year 955 2908 45 3203 1% 15 7323
Charge for the yoar 163 625 21 532 &5 43 1419
Write-off - 50 - - 119) - b
Exchangs differences 2 - - - - - 2
End of year 1,060 34 LT s w2 £8 85675
Hat book value
End ol yea 993 4,582 143 11,260 e 24 17675
Beginning ol year 1,094 5,557 164 2,848 97 55 16415
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MOTES TO THE HKT TRUST AND HelT LIMTED CONSOLZIATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AC0nTRLED?
3 Decomose 2024

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Conimuen!

2024
Capstalised
Corrler  Cuslomer programeme
I HES Frallion Tradormarks liconces base  Software” conts Others Total
Cost
Begrming of year 2,053 B,465 210 14,985 155 282 26,350
Additions = 506 - 2410 B9 - 3,005
White-olf - 31 - (4§} 153 3 1188)
Dizposal [1,939) - - - s (1,939
Exchangs Sifarences 1 - - - - i1 =
End of ymr 2,054 7001 210 17,354 291 278 21,228
Accumulaled amortisation
Beginning of year 1,060 3,483 &7 3735 2 58 BETS
Charge for the year 105 618 20 491 ] 79 1,402
Whide-olf - an - - 1153} - 1184)
Diposs = {1,376} - - - - {1,376}
Erd of year 1,165 2,604 87 4,206 208 137 B517
Kt book value
End of year BES 4,307 123 13,168 83 141 18711
Beging of yenr 993 4,982 143 11,250 a3 224 17,675
Wi WS P Orveloprmeed

The amarmabion chanps for the yeal i ncluded in geneal and sdmsmsirative mponias in thi comokidated ncome statarment

As al 31 December 2023 and 2024, no Impairment loss was recogresed lo the infangible assels. Impaimment assessmnts fof
mtangible assets are perlormad o part of Bhe impairment ssseisments bor the comesponding CGLs. For delisds of the sccounting
pofcies and the impairment assessments, piease refer 1o notes 30X and 18,
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20 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

In HES miflicn 2023 2024
Share of met sgsts of psociales 5465 469
Loan dus from an assodiate i 7
Prawision fos smpairraent (65 (=1

484 412

During the year ended 31 Decernbar 2004, the Groops msde no sdditional inestments in an sssocide engagad in busingss in e
provissn ol virtual banking senvioes. (2023 HKS 182 milion).

Asat 31 Decomber 2024, koan due from an assockate of HKS 7 millien (2023 HKST million), i secuned, bears inferest o1 8% per annum
{2023; sirmn) o i fepayable within 1 yeor (2027; same), The kaan & condideied s pad of the net mestment In this saociate loe
which full proeidscn for impainment fus boen made as o8 31 December 2023 and 2024

During the year ended 31 December 2004, the Groups' infarest in an associnbe engapsd In bushiness in the provision of vinual banking
services decreased from 15% to sppeonmately 1.3.44% 25 a result of (e dilution impact of ssseng new shares of (he associate and
recognised a gain on deemed deposal of inferest in an assodiale of HESS1 miltion in other gaing, net in the consolidated income
sialemiend.

Durirg the year ended 31 Decomiber 20204, no péovition for impairment was recopnited for intereats in pasociales in the comolidped
ineorme statemen] (2023 i),

& Asat 3] December 2003 and 2024, (he Groups coridesed hat (hece were no principsl ssociles

b Contingent llabilithes in respect of msociates
Thena weni na contmgend labilites relating 10 the Groups”' nledests in the associales. As o 3] Doecember 2024, the Groups” thase of
the contingnt fisbiities of an associate was HIKS3 million (2023 HKS2 mallion],

. Summarised unsudited Bnanclal nformation of the Groups” associates

For the year ended 31 Decernbser 2024, the aggrogste et amounts of the Groups” shan of loss after income tan, olher comprehnmiie
less and 1otal compeehemshve koss of ihe indhadually imenaterial assaciates that are accounted ko wing Bha eguity method wene
HES121 million (2023 HKS1 08 millian), HICS2 milion (H023: nl] and HKS123 mitlion (20023: HKS108 million), respecthely.

d  Reconciliation of summarised unaudited financial information of the Groups” associates.
A5 af 31 December 2004, the aggregate carrying amownd of intarests in individually immatedial associates that ame accounled for wsing
the equity method was HESS |2 million (2023 HKS4ES melion]),

During ihe year ended 31 Decernibar 2024, the Groogs did nol have any unrecognised shans of loses of associntes (2023 nil),
As ot 31 Decomber 2024, thare was no accumutated shane of knses of amsocisies unfecognised by the Groups (2023 nil),
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HOTES TO THE HET TRUST AND H(T LIMTED CONSOUSIATED FINANCIAL STATEMINTS ASOATRLEDH
3 Decomome 2024

21 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

I HIES. sl 2R3 2024
Shure of net agssts of joim ventures 2 334
Lo chue from joint venlures 156 476

478 B10

During the yaar snded 31 Decembesr 2024, the Groups made an imvestment in 8 joint ventue engaged in bisineis in (he provision of
eleciric vehicle charging scfutions of HES26 million (2023: HK$30 miion).

As at 31 December 2024, the kan doa from a jont venture of HKS164 mllon (2023 HK$156 million] bears interest of HIBOR plus 3%
e annm (2023 sarme), The loan i umecured and has no fixed tepayment terms. During the yoar ended 31 December 2024, fhe
Grougs havi recenaied 3 kan dua kom a oint ventune of HKE312 millon. The resulting gain net of direct relatid cont wis recoeded in
other gains, net in the conolidatied kncome statemant. Th loan is non-infenrst bearing and not repayabie within 1 year. Th amounts
ahe comidersd aa part of Hup inbosesty i joint vendures.

& Asat 31 December 2023 and 2024, the Groups coridencd ihal thers were no principal joint venures.

b Commitments and contingent liabdities in respect of joint ventures
As al 31 December 2024, the Groups” commitments i respect of jount venbues ane &3 follows:

Iy HES rrallion 2023 ML
The Groupd” commirmants 1o provds funding 45 -
The Growups” share of joind ventures” capital commements authorised and contracted for

acoqusition of property, pant and egunmant 24 24
The Grougs' share of joend veniures' ofher comsmitments 17 7

Thare were no confingent labeiles relating to the Groups' mtesests = ine jond veniures. As at 31 December 2024, the Growps had no
shurn of contingent labiities of the joint ventunes (2023: nill.

¢ Summarised unsudited financial information of the Growps' joint ventures.

For the year ended 31 December 2074, the aggregate net amounts of the Groups” shve of koss after mcome tax, other cComprehensive
ka and ot comprehemie loss of the indviduaily immatenal jont ventuees (hat are accounted for using the equity mathiod werne
HRES millhors (2023 HHSE milon), HRSD mllon (2003 nil) and HKS14 mllon (2003 HHLE millon), meipectiuly,

d. Reconcillation of summarised unaudied financial information of the Groups' joint ventures
As ol 31 Decembaer 2024, the apgregate camying amount of inbeneats in indeidually immaterial joinl verdures thal are accounied lor
usng the equsty method was HESE10 millon (2023: HREATE miiond,

During the year snded 3] Dacember 2024, the Gralps did not have any unsecopnesed share of kosses of pont venfures (2083: nil).
A5 ot 31 December 2024, thens wars N accumubalsd share of losses of joind ventures unrecognissd by the Grougs (2023: nill

148 WK Fruatmned MR Lemsien Aol Begars JO00

321/419



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000(E25940)
Oooooooobooooboooononoad

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME

In HES miflicn 2023 2024
Beginning of pear 143 130
Adcilions - 280
Changes in Lair value iun 413
End of yoor 130 823
Hon-current assets
Listad securihes - 765
Unksted securidies 130 58!_
130 823

As ot 31 Decomiber 2024, Binancial assets al FYDC! compried equity immstments which are hold for stralegic purporses (2023 same),

23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Ir HECE millicn 2023 2024
Listed securilies i3 %
Less: ancugitios held b employoee share sward schemes 1o bo vested within one year elinsified &

current asels {15 (18
Listad securities (non-Corment) 18 7
Uniisted sacurities (non-curment) 10 10
Tatal nen-clarent portion 8 17

Financial assets at FYPL manly compriee:

= iy Eraestmmnts for which the Groups have nol elscted to recognise fair vatue airs and kosses Mg oiler comprehenihe
Incorm; and

=  PCOW Shares acquised and subscribed under the PCOW Purchase Scheme, PCOW Sulrsonption Scheme and POCW 20024 Share
Mwsaerd Scherne, Reder $o nole 290210 lor detaits of thve shave seard schemes of POOW,

During the year ended 31 Decermbar 2024, there was no disposal of unlished instruments recognised as financial assets a1 FYPL
{2003; i),

During tha yoar ended 31 Decombar 2004, thine was no acdition of unltsted instruments recognised as Enancial assets at FYFL
{2003 nil).
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a. Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as al 31 Decombor 2024 are as follows:

Place of Aot of Intevest hedd
e por alhan/ meued cogitald by the Compary
Company name opotations riegiiiontd capial Indiroctly  Principal activilies
HKT Group Haldings Limited Caryman islands USSE35, 000,032 = Imvestment halding
(*HKTGH™)
HKT Senaces Limited Hirg Hong HKS] 100%  Proveson ol managesment
seniced io groun
COITpanas
Horg Keng Tolecommunications  Horg Kong HKS9945 156,001 100%  Provaion of
[HECT) Limited ("HKTL"] telecommunicabons
Lenes
5L Mobin Limited Horg Kong HK37 900,280,100 100%  Provsion of mobile services
ordinary shares and £o its cuntomens and the
HES 258 000,000 sala of mabile handsets
man-oting defermed 2 accessnries
shases
Lun Mabile Limited Horg Heng HKS41 600,002 BIE" Provaion of mobile
Lebecommunicalions
Services ko Custamers in
Haong Kong
Chuty HKT Limited Hong Kong HES1 1007% - Opevating cusiomers knafly
peograrreme and online
rrerchanding sales in
Hong Kang
POOW Global (LK) Limited Linitad Kingdam GEP152.100 100% Proveuon of transmisshon
and Eecommunicalions
NS
PCOW Global TechCa UK Ple. Lid. United Mingdom GEFL 100% Movision of rensmession and
tetecommunications and
related senvioes
Comole Connect TechCo 56 Singapare 551 100%  Support service on
Pe Lid. transmissicn and
telscommunications
bumingss,
PCCW Glgbal SenCo 56 Pre. i, Sengapore 581 100% Telecommunications
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a. Parficulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company a5 ot 31 December 2024 are as follows: (confinged)

Place af Amount ol Inlsrest hekd
e potation wued capitall by the Company
Company name aperatons mogitered capital  Direclly  Inclrectly Principal sclritics
Console Connect (HE) Limited Hong Kong HES] - 100% Teletommunicalions and
technology business
HET Global (HKY Limsied Hong Kang HEE] - 100% Trarsmission and
felecommunicaions
busingss
HET MNetwork [(HK} Limited Hong Kong HEE] - 100% Tranamission and
telecormnmunications
Business
PCCW Global BY, MNathedangs! ELIRER, 000 - 1006 Sales, distribution
France and marketing of
lelecormmunic alions
sarvices and peoducts
PCOW Giobal, inc. Delrware, LS USSI8.01 - 100%  Provision of voice
and netwonk-hased
telecormmunications
sarvices, and techricsl
consulting and engineering
SEFVICES
PCCW Giobal Limiled Hong Kong/ HK§2E0,016,600.65 - 100 Provision of network-hesed
Dubai Madia telecormmunications
City SATVICES
HKT Global (Singapore) Pre. Ltd.  Singapone! SE260,060,522 64 - 100% Provision of
Malaysia Islecommunications
selufions redsled sondces
PCCW (Macaul. Limiiada Macau MIOFZ.000,000 - TR Salling cusiomes premses
equipmend and reladed
solutians, conducting
Systamd inlegralion prosects
and provding outsosroed
COMACE CENire sances
Fiber Link Globad Limied Hong Kong HK$3, 183 BO5 983 - BI%' Provision of passive nebaork

324/419
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ROTES TO THE KT TRUST AND b1 LIWTED CONSOLTATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS A00Tmianr
3 Decomome 2024

24 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (com/inuea
a. Particulars of the principal subsiciasies of the Company as al 31 Decembor 2024 aro as: follows: (confinued)

Place of Aot of Intevest hedd
inearpar aion/ meued cogitald by the Compary
Compny mame operaions rogitored capital  Direclly  Indinoctly Princapal activilles
Poow TV Limited Horg Keng HKSE,041, 216,268 - 100% Providion of pay televison
tlonmerty known as ofdingery shares, DRORFAMME Sernvices,
PLCW Media Limited) HES1 A" interactve miutimedia
Cliis share and tervices, the sale of
HHS “H sdverteing in vanous
Class shaves telephone dociones,
the pubilishing ol thase
directore n Hong Kong
and ihe sale of advartiing
on the Inteenel
POCW Content Limitad Horg Kong HKSL - 100% Distribution of meoa content
EHERSAR SRR The PRC HRSGE 240,000 - 100% Cuslomer sarvice and
M pm L consultancy
(PCCW Cuntomer Management
Technology and Servioes
{Guargrhou) Limited")
HKT Tekesenvices Intermationsl Hong Kaong HRE350,000,002 - 100% Provsion of cusiomes
Lirrsitedt relatsonship management
and cuslomer conlac
maragemant soulions and
Tervices
S R A A ) The PRC RE 10,000,000 - 50%* Provavon of
{Bolprg Xun Tong HKT telecommunications
Commuications Senvices LENCES, iflemal
(China) Limited") information services and
computer system senvices

Certam sutrxianes whech do nol malexialy affect the results or fimancisl pouton of this Groups ade not included in the abave.

iy

1 Thes enpaity indwrrt i by rorecontoling raeest A S80S 08 0f 31 Decornber 2004

2 Tre eduily indeee] heidd by ron-cootitling rlieeet i 750 an al 31 Docorate 2004

3 The equaty mderest hoid by ron-comtrling mierest = S0 oa ol 3] Decomber 2004 The enfity B accooimied bor =0 subsidiary of e Groups o8 the Groogs osn
e Buirn hall of 1P eiting rigies i P B of cirmciors sven ool [Pe eaudy inbhnel atrbutabie to e Giougs a 508

4 Represnny & wivily regn oannd ertmpcas

5 Uneficial company name

b Mon-controfling intorests of the Groups® subsidiaes
The total of non-controlling infereats a5 0t 31 Decomber 2024 was HKS 1,363 millicn (2023 HKSH maion), of which HKS1, 282 million
(2023: nil) was altributatsa 1o non-sontnoling indevests in Fiber Link Global Limited
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25 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

In Hch miiflion 2023 2024

Propayments 438 B9

Depasits 120 &2
a1 931

26 CURRENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

. Inventories

I HECE million 2023 2024

Purchased parts and maberish 578 1,062

Finished goods Bl ey

Consumable memones 30 a7
955 1,503

b Prepayments, deposts and other cunrent assets

Iri HIES, million 2003

Prepiypmants 795 1,032

Depoaits a4 3

Other current asseds 2016 227

3176 3702

. Trade recolvablos, nel

Ir HES millicn 2003 2024

Tracke recetvables fmote 1} 297 2,847

Leds: loss allowanos frode &) 13 137

Tradde rocohvables, el 2838 270

The balance represents amounds due rom cusiomerns for poods sold o sendces performed in the crdinany course ol business. They ane
generally dus for settiement within 30 days from the date of irveice and thenalone sre 8 clatsifed o4 curnent. Details about the Groups’
impairment policees are provided in note 3ol

A58t 31 December 2004, inchuded in trads recenables, ned were amaunts dus from reladed parties of HEKS 152 milion
(2083 HKS104 mitlon),
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ROTES TO THE KT TRUST AND b1 LIWTED CONSOLTATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS A00Tmianr
1 Decomgse 2024

26 CURRENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Con TivUED)
€ Trade rocoivables, net [contnued)
L The ageing of irade recofvables based an the date of invoice 15 set oul below:

In HES matian 2023 2024
1-30dms 1,873 1,580
31 = 60 days 363 89
&1 = 90 days 175 i
9] - 120 gays 139 170
Over 120 davs 427 531

2977 2847

& impainment for irade receivablos
Thae Groups apply e HKFRS 9 CH14) tmpified approach 10 messure ki allowance for epected credit iosses which uies a liletime
expecied loas aliovwancs for rade recehalles.

To messure the axpected Crecd losses, trage recenabias Bie prouped based of shared Credil ek characteristics and the days past

3! Decamber 2024 was determinad a5 folloas:

Espectod crodit loss rate 2003 24
Cuvent 2% F= 9
1 = 1240 days past dus 5% a%
Over 120 cays paed clue X% 20%
The mavements in the loss sllowance during the year were.an fofioss:
b HES mllon 2003
Beginning of year 145 139
Kt impalnment loss recopnesd 188 232
~ Uncofiectible amounts writlen off (195} 1234)
Endi of year 139 137
d. Restricted cash

As al 31 December 2024, restricted canh included a cash balance of HKS 179 million (2023: HRE21 | melion] which has been mainky
recedved from and pedricied for it v of cortan customers.
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26 CURRENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (coniuen)
0. Shori-lerm borrowdings

In HK% millicn 2003 2024
US$500 million 3 625% gusrantesd notes due 2025 inofe if - 3.881
Barik bormowings (node &) 1,049 3
1,048 3,534
Secured _ &
Unsacuired 1,049 3,934

L US5500 million 3625% guarsntesd notes due 2025

On 2 April 2005, HET Capal Mo, 2 Limited, an indinect wholly owned subsidlary of the Company, ssued US$500 million 3 625%
guaranieed noles due 2005, which ane listed on the Singapore Exchange Securitles Trading Limited The nobes are imevocably and
unconditionally gusrantesd by HIKTGH and HKTL and renk pai passy with all other outstanding ursecuned and unsubordinated
oblgations of HKTGH and HKTL

B Redier to note 39 for detals of the Grougs' banking tacities.

L. Trade payables

The ageing of trade pearyabies basod on the date of invoec @5 2ot out balow:

In HICE million 2023 2024

1 =30 dmys 3015 2841

31 - 60 days 1,084 1,685

61 — S0 days B4 95

91 - 120 days 0 980

Over 120 days 538 811
51 1212

As 81 31 Decemnber 20124, inchuded In irade payabies were amiunks due io relaled parties of HKS155 miliion (3023: HK$9G million),
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MOTES TO THE HKT TRUST AND HelT LIMTED CONSOLZIATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AC0nTRLED?
3 Decomome 2024

27 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Ty IS i 2023 2024
Repayabe within o period
= CWor one year, bl nal exoooding beo years 6,965 10,059
- oot b years, but nol exceeding fve years 25,366 19,996
- e fve years 11,183 7317
41,518 37,372
Regwesenting:
LISE300 malthon sevo coupon guaranteed nobes due 2030 (note a) 2335 233
LISSS00 mallion 3.625% guaranteed notes due 2025 (nofe b) 3,885 -
EUR200 rillion 1.65% gusranited noles due 2027 (nole &} 1,718 1612
LSS50 midlion 3.00%, guaranioed notes due 2026 (nade o L85 5817
LESESD0 rrllion 3.246% puaranoed nobes dus 2029 (node o) g2 822
LS5650 million 3.00% guaranieed notes due 2032 (nole f} 5016 4,994
Bank borrowings (nate gl 20,877 18,505
43,518 31312
Secuned - -
Uinsacund 43518 aran

A, USS300 millicn rero coupon guarantosd motes due 2030

On 15 anuary 2015, HKT Capial Mo, 1 Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiany of the Company, ssued LESS300 milfion

200 coupon guarsnised noles dus 2030, which ane listed on the Taipsl Eschange. The notes are brevocably and unconditionally
puatanteed by HETGH and HEKTL and rank pari pasau with ol othes ootstanding wnsecured snd urmaibondinated chligations of HEKTGH
and HETL

b USSS00 million 3,625% puaranteed notes due 2025
Thr notes went classifed as shor-temm borrowsngs during the year ended 31 Docember 2024, Pleate reber to nobe 2600 lor mons
chetaids.
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27 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (con i)
c. EUR200 million 1.65% guarantead notes duo 2027
On' 10 April 2015, HKT Capital Mo, 3 Limited, an indirect wholy-owned subsidury of the Company, ssued EUIRZ00 million 1.65%
puaranised noles due 2007, wiach am listed on the Sagapere Bichange Securities Trading Limted. The notes are svevocally and
unconditionalty guaranised ty HETGH and HKTL and rank pad pasau with all other cutstanding usecured and unsubandinated
obligations of HKTGH and HETL

d USS750 million 3.00°% guaranteed notes due 2026

On 14 July 2016, HKT Cogetad Mo, 4 Limited, an endirect whoy-owned subsidiary of the Compsmy, itwed LSS750 million 20006
guaranisad noles due 2026, which ano listed on the Sngapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The nobes ame mmevocabity snd
uncondibonally guaranised by HKTGH and HKTL and renk pan passy with all olher ootstanding usecured and unsubordinated
obigatons of HKTGH snd HETL

o. U55500 million 3.25% guaranteed notes dus 2029

On 30 Seplember 2019, HAT Capital No, 5 Limited, an indiect whody-ownod subsidlary of the Company, msued USSS00 mlon
3.25% guarantesd nolos dos 2029, which are listad on the Singapons Eschangs Securnitess Trading Limited. The naties s ievocably
and unconditionally guarandesd by HETGH and HKTL and rank pan passu with o other oulstanding ursecuned and wisubosdnated
obiligations of HKTGH and HETL

I US$650 million 3.00% guarsntesd notes due 2032

On 18 January 2022, HKT Capital Mo & Limited, an indirect whely-owned subsidiary of the Company, ksued US$E50 milkon 3.00%
guaranised noles due 2032, which ane listed on the Sngapone Exchange Socurities Trading Limited. Tha nates are inevocably and
unconditionally guarandeed by HETGH and HKTL and rank pard passu with all oiher cutstanding unsecured and unsubondinated
abligations of HEKTGH and HKTL

E Refer to nole 39 lor cetaly of the Grougs” banking tacilities.
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ROTES TO THE KT TRUST AND b1 LIWTED CONSOLTATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS A00Tmianr
3 Decomose 2024

28 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Iy HIFS rrilfion 23 2024

Mon-current psals

Croma currency swap contracts — cash Sow hedges: for foregn currency rak fnode af 11

@

interest rate swap coniracts — cash fow hedges for infenest rate risk (nofe &) 47
= 58
Cuarent abilities
Cross cutrency saap contracts and loreign exchange farward conbracts — cash flow hedges for
boreign currency risk (nole a) - 41
Intefest rabe swap contract - cash Row hedge Tor interest rale rsk (node B (151) -t
[nsn 4
Hon-current liabilities
Croas currency swap contracts sed loreign eachangs forwatd contracts — cash flow hedges for
foregn curmency risk (nofe a) 602 (7200
Inberest rate svwap contract — cash ow hedge for inlerest rate risk fnofe b) - 1490
1602 {7691

Catrreativey are mainty used or economic hediging purposes and not as Speculaing investmants. Howireer, whera dervativn 9o not
meed ihe hedge acoounting critedia, they ase accounied for sl FVPL

Hadige effectivenass is determined at the inceplion of the hedging relalionship and through periodic prospecine effeciveness
Essessments bo ensure thal sn econcmic relationship exisls between the hedged item and the hedping instrument.

Hedge ingflectheness for the Groups” cross aumency swap, foreign exchange Srwand and Interes! rate swap confracts may oocur doo
o

= gifiarences in critical terms betwoen the hedged itom and the hedging mstrument; and

~ changes in creat risk of the derhative counterparty.
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28 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (o ninvuen)
a. Cash fAow hodgos for foreign currancy risk
For cartain bomowings denominaled in foreign currencies, the (Groups have entered into cross currency Swap condracts and foregn
eachange lorward conbracts to hedge the lorelgn currency risk. The Groups performed quaktative sssessmend of hedpe effectivensss.
A% the £ross cusrency swap contracts and the foreipn exchange fonsard canbracts have smilsr critical torms a3 the hadped orm, such
a3 notional amoonts, matusty dales and payment dalis, the econdmic miabomhip axists behwben he hedged items and the hedging
nafrements

The elfects of the loregn cerroncy related hedging instuments outilanding ot the énd of the neportng perod on the Grougs' financia
position gnd parioimance are a5 lollods:

2023 2024
et carmying amount (Rataities) [HKSE02 million) [HK$750 million )
Hotional amouant EURZ00 melon and  EUR200 million and

LISS2.870 million USE2BT70 mdlion

Maturity date Jarwsary 2025 to January 2025 to
Janary 2032 Jamuary 2032

Hedgs rabio v 11
Change* in tair walue of Ihe hedging instrumaiis during the year (HKE324 millicn} [(HK5245 million]
Changs" in value of the hedged items during the year HK$225 millicn HK$138 million
Werghled average hedged excharge rate for the year EURL:MKSR 3D EURL:HKS3.32

LSS HKS? BD USSLHKST.BO

* The ek tutin i 111 s e patceal amourt and lemng of P Peciging immrurmsesy, match wit that of Bhe Pedgad Serm,
! Posdive chungs melen B0 increane innet ssssin, wherea, negaie Chonge relen o decrese in nel sseh,

b Cash Row hedges for interest rate risk

For certain bonowings subject o cash low inferest mie risk, the Groups have entered into foatng-to-fived interest rate owap confracts.
The Groups perorrmed guakiatre assessmen! of hedge electvenass. As the ntesest rale swap contracts have similar critical terms as
the hedged lbems, wwch as nobional smounts, matuity dates and payment dates, the econteme relationship exats between the hedged
iems and the hedging imtruments.

The effects of thi inlerest rate misted hedging instremends oubitanding ot the end ol the reporting period on e Groups’ finsncsl
position and perfonmance e i follows:

2023 2024

Hat carrying amount (Ratsites) (HK$122 million} [HKS2 million]
Mobonal amourt HRS2 600 millicn HE$4.550 millon
Maturity date March 2024 to Juty 2026 to
Juby 2GS March 2027

Hedge rati 1 11
Change* In fair vislus of the hedging instrumants during the year HES45 million (HKS19 million)
Crange* invalue ol fhe hedged items during the year (HKS26 million} HES12 malllion
Welghiad vmrage recene beg/pay leg interest rtio L6 126

* T e valio b 101 o e rboruil armount and timing of B Pedging serurmenin masch vath that of Bw fedged bem
i Mummumndmmmmmhﬂ-mmm
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ROTES TO THE KT TRUST AND b1 LIWTED CONSOLTATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS A00Tmianr
3 Decomose 2024

28 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (o s en)
¢ Hedging reserve and costs of hedging ressrve
The Geoups” hadging resere and cosis of hedging reserve relate o the lolowing hedging instruments;

Cach faww hediges for  Carsh flow hediges ke

I HRS: rmillion St Cumency sk ineness rate ik Toa

Hedging resarve

As at | Janoary 2023 102 17 119

Cath Now hedges:

— ffeciive portion of changes in fair value (205) % 19

= trarmsfior from equity 1o consolidated noome: statament (159} - {1550

Az ol 31 December 2023 and 1 Lanuary 2024 1262) 43 12190

Canih Do heiges:

- effective portion of changes in talr value (138} 145) 1183)

— trasehes fnoim aquity 10 coniohasted Moome statament : _1_99 == 1.9_6_

Aa st 31 December 2024 [204) 2} (2D6G)
Cash ow hedgis fot

i HKS rralion laregn custency fak

Conts of hodging roserve

As ot 1 January 2023 (116

Canh fiow hedges:

~ trasmher from equity 1o consoldated income sistoment 12

Coits of hadpng {413

As 81 31 December 2073 and | lanuary 2024 1145)

Cash How hedges:

- tramber from equity io consokdated income slatement 12

Caonts of hedging. 118

As ot 31 December 2024 1%

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

a. Employee retirerment benefits — Defined contribution retirement schemes

The Geougs operalis delined conribulan fetirermant schames, inchuding e Mandatory Provident Fund Schems (e "MPF schame”)
wrder the Hong Kong Mandalory Provident Furd Schemes Orclnanco, ke emplicyses employed under the jrisdction of the

Horg Kong Employment Ordinance. The schemes are admanigbered by independent trugise,

Under the defingd contribufion retinement scheme, the smployer & requised o make contributions 1o the scheme at rates specified
wrter thes rulis of the sehome. Wiere ampiopeos leave the schema prioe 16 the full vissting of this smpioyer's contributions, he amaunt
of foefaited contributions ks usad to reduce Me contributions payabls by the Groups.

Uindles the: MPF schisme, (he smployes 3nd (13 employees ane sach teguared 1o make conbributions 1o it scheme 3 5% of ihe
emgioyees’ nlevant income, subect to a curment cap of monthly rekevant incorme of HES30,000, Contritytions bo the scheme vest
imenediately upon the completion of the services In thiy relevant service poriod.

Fordeited contribubions totaling HES10 milion (2023; HKS10 million) wens uiilised duning he year ented 31 December 2004 1o reduce
contributions and no Barfeited contribGtion (20:23: rill wis avadabis a5 al 31 December 2024,
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (o iuErn)
b Other post-employment banafits
In July 2023, the HRCPA publshed *Acoounting impcations of the abolition of the MPF-LSP gifsetiing mechansm in Hong Fong™
hat provides accounting gudance relating 1o the oftsetling mechanism and the abolition of the mechanism. As 4t 31 December 20004,
inciuded in ofher payables wers LSP cbiigations of HKS25 malion [2023: HKS22 million).

¢ Equity compensation benafits

Share option schemey
~  Share oplion scheme of POOW adoptad on B May 2014 (the "PCOW 2014 Schema”™) and expired on 7 May 2024, and 3 new
share oplan scheme of POOW adopled on 30 May 2024 (the “PCOW 2024 Scheme™),

= Share Stapled Unit option schema of the HKT Trust and e Compary adopted on 7 May 2021 (the *2021.2031 Shate Stapled Uni
Option Schime”] was terminated on 30 May 2084, and a new Shane Stagled Unit option schema of the HKT Trust and
thé Company was adepted cn 30 May 2024 (the =2024-20032 Shaie Stasied Unit Option Scheme”L

Share sward schemes
—  Share pwam schemes of POCW namely the PCOW Purchase Schame, the PCCW Subacription Scheme and the PCCW Limited
2024 Share Anaed Scheme (colachivedy the “PCOW Share Avward Schemes™,

= - Shane Stapked Unit swand schames of the HKT Trust and the Company ramaly the HKT Share Stapled Units Purchase Schome,
fhe HKT Share Stapled Linits Subscrption Scheme and the HKT Trust and HKT Limded 2024 Share Stapled Lnit Award Scheme
{eollectively the “Shans Stagked Unit Avard Schames”).

The detads of the 2021-2031 Share Stapled Lind Oplion Schems, fhe 2004-2034 Share Sapied Unt Option Scheme and the
Shisne Stipded Unit Awsid Schormed sre decioned Under the sedtion “Shie Stapled Unit Sehesmes” in the Combingd Repoi of
ihe Directors of the 2024 Annual Report of the HKT Trest and the Company.

L Share option schomed

Mo share ophions/Share Stapied Linit oplions have been grantsd under the PCCW 2014 Scheme, the PCOW 2024 Scheme, the
2021-2031 Share Stanked Unit Option Scherne and tha 2024-2034 Share Stapled Uing Dption Scheme since [feir adoption and up b
and incluiing 31 December 2024,

A Share sward schemes.

Subject to the reevant schome rules of the POCW Shane Awarg Schermes and the Shive Stapied Unt Award Schismes, aach schims
prividies that priof 1o the veting of the awards under thi relévant scham to stleched pamicipants (ncluding amy dirstiol o emgloyes
of PCCW and its paricipating: companies for the PCOW Share Award Schemes, and any deeclor or employee of (he Comgany o any of
s subskdiaries for the Share Staphed Linil dward Schemes), fhe relevant PCOW SharesSihare Stapied Units will be el in trust ty the
frustes for such sedected participants, and will be vested over & period of time delermined by the respective appeoving body, prpvided
That aoch selecied participant shall remain o all limis up io and iIncluding the relevant vesting date lor, 53 the case may b, each
relevant viesting dated an empioyes or a director of PCOW, the Cormpany, ihe relevant participating company of subsidiary, and saiafes
amy oiher conddions specified at the time the award s made, rotwithstanding that the respoctive approving boay shall be at lbevty to
waha such condfions. Other than satishying the vesting condition, selectad panicapants ane not required 1o provide Any comtideration
in order 1o pcquine the POCW ShasewShare Stapled Linds awasrded 1o himier under The relevant schams.

During the year ended 31 Decernbar 2024, share-based compenzation expenses i iespact of the PCCW Share Award Schemes of
HKS19 million (2023 HRS 17 millon) weve recognised in the conschdated Income statemant and 25 an obligation in labslties in the
oonsobdabed stalemend of narcial position, retpectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, share-based compensation expenses in respoect of the Share Stapled Uinit Award Schemes
ol HEE15 millige (2023: HES 12 milkon) weie recognined i he consoldabed Income stalamont snd employee share-based
cOMmpantation resenve in the consolidated stabemimt of fruncial position, respectrly,

T Tyl et T Lirvwtemd sl Rospue S04 161

334/419



MOTES TO THE MHT TRUST AND HT LIWTED CONSOLEIATED FANCIAL STATEMINTS ACONTRLEDS

3 Decomome 2024

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (conmmueny
. Equity compensation benefits (confnusd]
B Shore awwrd schomes (condewsd
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(1) Moverments @ the number of POCW Shares held under (he PCCW Share Award Schemes and the Share Stacied Units held undes

ther Shan Stapled Linil Avwd Sohemes

{a) PCCW 2012 Share Award Schemes

POCW Purchase Schome:
Begnning of year
Purchases from the market by the nsltee at weighted sverags madet price of HKS4.06
(2023 HKS3.900 per POOW Shane

__nFCOW Shons iestad o A s Lot

End of year 110142 BE3,692
POOW Subscription Scherme:

Bagnning of year 0,165,506 6,814,708

PCOW Sharss vested 2.35), 188 (2,403 412)

End ol year 6814008 4,411,226

Grants Funded by Existing POCW Shares:
Begraning of year
Purchass from e market by the trustes at weighted merage manket price of HKSA.20
per PCCW Shars

End of year

Number of PCCW Shares
2023 2024
- 544,000
= 544,000
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (cowrmuErn)
¢. Eguity compensalion benefits (confinued!
K. Share eward schesres [cottrpsd]

{1} Movements in the noember of PCCW Shares held under the PCCW Share Award Schemes and the Share Stapled Uinits heldd ender
the Sham Staplad Uit Awasrd Schemes (continuedl

{e) 2011 Share Stapled Unit Award Schemes

Number of Share Stapled Units
i ol
HET Shane Stapbed Unts Punchase Scheme:
Beginning of year 422111 435,552
Prrchases from the marked by the trustes o weighted averape markef price of HKS2.8]

(2023: HESD.6T) e Share Stapled Unit 435,000 256,000
NG Ly eed i it
End af year 436,552 266,709

HKT Shane Stagled Uinits Sutscription Scheme;
Beginning of yeat 5329111 4,337,670
Shane Stapked Uinits weihed 199]1,441) (985,605)
End ol yoar 4,337 670 3,352,065
{d} 2024 Share Stapled Unit Award Scheme
Number of Share Stapked Units
2023 2024
Grants Funded by Exsfing Share Stapled Linits:
Beginning of yes = =
Purchase fram the markel by the trustos of weighbed seaage marked peice of HE$5.95

par Share Stapied Lini - 238,000

End of vear - 238,000
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (conmNuED)
e Equity compensation bonefits (confnued]
B Shore award schomes joondimuesd? )
{2} Moverpents o the number of urvested PLCW Shares and Share Stapled Units and thesr reladea weighled serage fair value on the

cate of pward

{al PCCW 2012 Share Award Schemes.
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2023
Number of PODW Shares
Fair value Aaat Al
onthedaie | lammry 31 Degembser
Dt of ey Vesting peicd of aard 23 Awarded  Forlsited Vestad 2023
HEE
PLCW Purchase Scherne (POOW Sharel
16 Aprl 2021 16 Aprl 2021 %016 Apel 2023 453 SIETEG - (1087 (517,659) -
19 Agril 2022 19 Aol 2022 10 19 Aol 2023 452 517881 - 1093 BI6SE -
19 Apri 2022 19 Apri 2022 ko 19 April 2004 4582 517614 - 25,145 - 400 525
19 Apri 2003 15 Aprd 2023 10 19 Aped 2004 401 ~ 13422 - - 14z
19 April 2023 19 Ao 2023 80 19 April 2025 anm - 13417 - - 13417
30 May 2023 30 My 2023 10 30 May 2024 am - i bl - - 129,13
30 May 223 30 May 223 o 30 May 2005 40 -  lmm - - 129,127
1 Jume 203 1 June 2003 0 1 June 2024 L - 4,301 - - 430
1 Jure 203 1 June 2023 %0 1 June 2025 s - 4258 = = 4,298
4 dusguat 2023 4 Auguit 2003 o & At 2024 am -  4yan - - 4373n
& fopar 2073 4 gt 2023 b 4 Augpst 2026 asg - A3an - - 43731
Tots 1554041 | 16R430 700 (1034280 1,660,964
Wesghted average fair value on the dats of award [HS) 452 1 452 453 412
PCCW Subacription Scherme (PO Shares)
11 May 2020 11 May 2020 to 16 Aprd 2023 177 0428 - - L0, £48) -
18 Aprl 2021 16 A 2021 10 16 Aoell 2023 453 L0547 = (225N (1072550, -
2 July 202 2 July X021 1o 16 Aprd 2023 4% L0 - - 31.320) -
4 March 2022 4 March 2022 1o 16 Aprl 2023 i 21114 - - 21,114} -
19 Aped 2002 19 Agel 2022 0 19 Apell 2023 45 128580 - [359TN (1195555 -
19 Aprid 2002 19 Aprd 2022 1o 19 Apedl 2024 458 12M5] - (132455 - L0526
15 Augst 2022 15 August 2022 bo 19 Aprl 2023 415 5710 = - 5,710 -
15 At 2022 15 August 2022 1o 19 Aprl 2024 415 5710 - - = 5710
19 Aprl 223 15 Aol 202340 19 Apeil 2024 am - LIELA5E  11033]4) - 1078144
19 Aoril X3 19 Aol 2023 1o 19 Agell X025 a0l = LIEOET3 (03230 - 1,077.443
30 May 2023 30 May 2023 o 30 May 2004 am - MEWE  OXE - 202,100
30 May 203 30 May 2023 1o 30 May 2005 a2 - e ON - 202,09
73 June 2023 23 Jure 2003 10 23 Jure 2024 1B = 7231 {5, F0B) = 65,685
23 ne X203 23 Jure 2023 bo 73 Jharw 2035 15 - iy ] 16,595 - 65,634
ot I650423 2917579 (A1745® 2351158 1%
Weaghted sverage fair valiss on the gade of mward [HES) 452 400 424 452 415
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12} Movesments in the nember of urnested PCCW Shares and Share Stapled Units and thedr relsted weighisd averags sl value on the

dhate of avad {comtird)

{a) PCCW 2012 Share Award Schemes (comtinued)

2024
Nuenbser of PCCW Shares

Fair valus s ot Asat

onthedate 1 January 31 December
Date of award Vesting period of sward 2024  Aworded  Forlelted  Vested 2024

HKS

PCOW Purchae Scherme (PCOW Shanes)
19 Apil 2022 15 Apnl 2022 b 19 April 2024 452 492525 - -~ (492525 -
19 Apnil 2023 19 Agri 2023 k19 Agvil 2074 401 13422 - - (13423 -
9 Al 2023 19 Apnk 2023 o 19 Aprl 2025 401 13417 - - - 13417
30 May 2023 30/ My 2023 10 30 May 2024 402 12512 = - 128,12 i
20 May 2093 30 My 2023 %0 30 May 2025 a0z 1917 - = - 129127
1 June 2023 1 hure 2003 10 1 June 2004 Bl 4301 - - 4301 1l
1 June 3023 1 Jure 2003 o | Juine 2025 kL) 4298 - - - 4208
& Aupat 2003 4 ot 202310 4 August 2004 392 43737 - - araTn E
& Rugust 2023 4 fugost 2023404 August 2085 39 a3anz - - - aran
19 April 2022 19 Aprt 2024 to 19 April 2025 e - 13,154 - - REALL
19 Apil 2024 19 Aged 2024 ks 19 Apill 2006 a8s - 13,14 - - 13,143
30 May 2024 30 My 2024 fo 30 May 2025 419 - 85,700 - - E5,700
30 May 2024 30 May 2024 fo 30 May 2006 419 - 5653 - - B5,699
Total 1660960 197686 = {LO76,7500 TB1,900
Wieighted inverige Lair valos on the date of award (HKS) 412 414 - 421 400
PCOW Subseription Soheems (PCCW Shares)
19 Apwil 2022 15 Apnl 2022 o 19 Apnl 2024 452 1102526 - 19,604) (1,082 927 -
15 August 2022 15 Acgund 2022 to 19 Aprl 2024 415 5710 - - i5,7100 -
19 Apil 2023 19 Aprl 2023 ko 19 April 2024 401 1L07E144 - [¥7.306) {1,050,E380 -
149 Apwil 2073 19 Al 2023 bo 19 Apl 2005 401 1077443 - (69,5461 - GET 507
30 May 2073 30 Mury 2023 10 30 May 2024 402 202100 - - (2021000 -
30 May 2023 30 My 2003 10 30 May 2025 402 202093 - - - 202,003
23 Jursy 2003 23 vy 2023 1 23 Juret 2024 85 65,685 - (3843  (B1B4D -
23 hirg 2023 23 Junt 2073 1033 June 2025 345 65634 - (4,7071 = Lok
19 Apnl 2024 15 Aord 2024 1o 19 Apnl 2025 188 - 1407149 168,583 - 1335166
15 Apuil 2024 15 April 2024 I 15 Apeil 2026 385 - 135360 168, 5251 - 124 g3
30 May 2024 30 My 2024 o 30 May 2026 419 - MM - - 40,754
30 May 2024 30 May 2024 15 30 May 2006 419 - M0280 - - 240,280
Total 3799335 3ML4S  (ZE3ZIE) (2403413 4354050
Wiskghbed ineerage i vatue on the cate of swand (HES) 415 190 1% a4 19
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MOTES TO THE MHT TRUST AND HT LIWTED CONSOLEIATED FANCIAL STATEMINTS ACONTRLEDS
3] Decormgmr 3074

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (conmmueD,
. Equity compensation benefils (contnued)
i Shore award schomes (oo
(21 Movarmsints i ihe number of urvested PCCW Shares and Sham Sapled Units and their relaled weighled sverage tair valie on the
cate of gward (comtinued]

b} PCCW 2024 Share Award Scheme

2024
Number of PCOW Shares
Faair value Aiat Risl
onfthe dste 1 Jswsary 31 December
Dialte of award Visting perbed of swand 2024 Awanded Feafested WVeated 2024
HK$
Granks, Funeed by Exishing PCOW Shuies.
26 June 2024 26 Jure 2004 ko 26 Jure 2025 1E8 - 543790 - - 5079
26 Junt 2004 26 Jurd 2028 o 26 June T026 1E8 - 543790 - - 581,799
Teds - 1,087538 - - 1,067,588
Wesghted average fair valus on the date of sward [HKS) - Y] - - 388
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¢. Equily componsation benafits (comfinued)!
R Share eward schesres (cotmsd|
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{2} Movaiments in the nember of urvested PCCW Shares and Share Stapled Units and thedr relsted weighted average alr value on the

dhate of avad (et

{e} 2011 Share Stapled Unit Award Schemes

a3
Hurnieee of Share Stapled Units.
Fair vahie Asal Avat
onthedse 1 laruary 31 Decernber
Dt of awcard Vesting peicd of paard 2023 Awpdsd  Forlsted Vipsiad 2023
Heg
HET Share Staplod Units Pusthaie Scherme [Share Slapled Uny)
15 April 2021 16 Aprd 2021 ka 16 Apnl 2023 1106 208728 - @3n 208290 -
19 Apri 2022 19 Agri 2022 1 19 Aprl 2023 o 21277 - (4450 (212268 -
9 April 2022 19 Apnk 2022 to 19 Apnl 2024 s 21271 - 10334 - K3
19 Apdil 2023 19 Aorld 2023 1 18 Apnl 2004 108 - 5135 - - 5135
19 April 2023 19 Aprl 2029 b 19 Apil 2025 1018 - 5132 - = 6132
30 May 2003 30 My 2023 10 30 May 2024 9% = 5,333 - - #2353
30 May 2023 30 May 2023 o 30 May 2025 L] - 4630 - - 40350
1 June 2023 1 e 2023 10 | Jure 2024 G0 - L5 - - 1646
§ June 2023 1 Juee 2023 10 1 June 2025 9596 - 1655 = - 1645
4 huguat 2023 4 hegost 030 4 Augist D004 410 - e - - 167232
4 Augusr 2003 4 At 2007 10 4 August 2005 a10 - 16129 - - 167262
Total 63415 4460905 (112300 (42055 640300
Weaighted avenage tair value on Ehe date of award (HKS) 1093 ke 10.47 10,96 480
HET Share Staplod Linits, Sebncrgtion Scheme (Shane Sticled Lists)
11 My 2020 11 My 2020 1o 16 April 2023 1286 1858 - - (T ESE -
16 Al 01 16 Aol 2021 1o 16 Agnl 2021 1L06  aa06a7 - Ll T -
2 Juby 3021 2 July 2021 1o 16 Aprl 2023 1056 12601 - - (12801 -
& March 2002 4 March 2022 to 16 April 2023 1060 8537 - - 853N -
19 April 2022 19 Agrd 2022 b 19 Apeit 2053 1086 543311 - 114790 (=E2R.531) -
19 Apnl 2022 19 Agrd D022 o 19 Apiil 2004 1036 H238 - (5428 - BTS00
15 August 2022 15 Augunt 2022 1o 19 Apnil 2023 1100 247 . - 24n -
15 Augrst 2022 15 Augpurd 2002 to 19 Agrl 2024 100 2346 = = = 2345
19 Al 2023 19 Apl 2023 ta 19 Apnl 2024 1018 - 452085 3927 - 412806
19 Apiil 2023 19 Aol 2023 1o 19 Aprl 2025 1018 = 451298 349,198 - 41100
0 May 2023 30 My 2025 1o 30 May 2024 998 - RS0 (1250 - 71310
30 May 2023 30 My 2027 1o 30 May 2005 558 - TeSAE {12500 - ]
23 Jurss 2023 23 Jur 2023 10 23 June 2024 905 = 277% 250 - 25,156
23 Jurs 200E 23 Jare 2023 10 23 June 2025 905 - 27666 25611 - 25,105
Total 1560065 LI585 {14416 (91441 1520091
Wieighte imvesrage air vailue o Bhe cate of award (HES! 1092 10.10 10.48 10,95 10
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS jconmnuiny
. Equity compensation benefils (contnued)
E. Share award schomes ioofewuesdT

EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000(E25940)
Oooooooobooooboooononoad

(21 Movarmsints i ihe number of urvested PCCW Shares and Sham Sapled Units and their relaled weighled sverage tair valie on e

cate of gward (comtinued]

fe) 2011 Share Stapled Unit Award Schemes (continued)

20
Mumber of Shure Stagled Units
Fain valoe Raat Rat
onthedite 1 Jorvary 31 Decernier
Diste of sacard Vesting piried of sward 2004 Awwded  Forfeled Visted 20
S
HECT Srare Stagiod Uy Purchane Scteme Srare Sigied Lnk)
19 5t 2022 15 ki 2022 13 19 Acrt 2004 e X2 - - XA .
19 Aok 2073 19 Ao 2020 10 19 Aord 2004 1018 5135 - - 15,135} -
19 ket 2023 19 drd 2073 10 1% e 2025 1018 ERES - - - sz
Wiy 2013 30 Moy 2003 1 30 iy 20 no 4391 - - 9.3 -
30 My 2003 0 My 20008 o 30 My X025 L] 49390 - - = 80
1 e 2023 1 June 23 40 | Jore 004 956 1546 - - (1,646} i
| e 2023 1 june 2iF3 i | Jure 205 L1 1545 - - - L&
g 2003 4l 2093 4o 4 Augat 04 E T 7] - - (162 -
& Aot 2073 & st 2003 10 4 huspat 2025 910 1672 - - - 167252
19 Aprt 2024 19 et X124 b 19 o) 2005 EES - 549 = = 5749
19 Rl 2024 19 Aok 2024 1 19 Acel 2006 BEE - T4 - - 5745
3oy 2008 30 My 2004 10 30 My 2009 820 - 3TN - - 4M
20 May 2004 30 My 2024 o 30 May 2006 820 - 37489 - - ITAE
Totst G902 BEATS - WBsL 9
Worighted pairage (e vahat on the cdate of el (HACH) S50 a1 - 1005 7
HCE Srare Stacied) Lt Sutiate oton Schirne St Stagied Uniss)
19 Aori 2022 19 Aerd 2027 b 19 Aol 2004 1086 51910 - 8053 WAL -
15 gt 2002 15 Aagust 2022 10 19 Kort 2024 1100 236 - - 248 -
19 Aord 2033 15 el 3023 40 19 Apek 2004 1018 412806 - (0457 MO2349) -
19 82 2003 1980 2007 1o 19 Aerd 2005 1018 412100 a 4351 = TN
WMy 2003 30 May 2029 o 30 My S04 L1 30 B - 773100 B
BNy 203 0 Maay 2003 1 30 Wy 2025 99 T - - - 294
e 223 23 Jore 2027 0 73 Jure 2004 ans 5,15 - (1410 @35E -
3 hore X3 23 dore 2023 %0 23 Jore 105 15 B05 B 1.500) - 335
194008 2024 £ ot 2004 o 10 Aord 2005 EAE - 2 e 30,154 - BE2 M
15 Aoeld 2024 15 Sorid DO 2 19 Aord 2006 BEE - 591812 30,1300 - 561 R
30 My 204 30 My 2024 8 30 My 2005 520 - 105,059 - - 105,088
) May 200 30 My 2024 o 30 My 126 EF - 1o - - 105054
Totw 150081 1394653 (IEGMEE  (9ESE05) LEIZGTL
Wieighted mairage far vaked O St it of e (WK bkt an 42 1047 a1l
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (o nmuer
c. Equity compensation banafits (condinued)
. Shars mward schemes (oontosd]

12} Movesments in the nember of urnested PCCW Shares and Share Stapled Units and thedr relsted weighisd averags sl value on the
diabe of award {condinued]

{dl 2024 Share Stapled Unit Award Schems

2004
Nurmber of Share Stapled Linfis
Fair value As st Asat
onthedate 1 January 31 Decernber
Date of award Vesting period of zward 2024 Awseded  Forlelted Vested 2024
HRS
Grars Fonded by Exinting Shane Stagded Uinits
26 Jure 20124 26 Jore X024 1o 26 hine X025 an - i pe i - - 237,760
06 diree 2004 26 Jurd 202 1o 26 June 2026 an - 237,760 - - 237,760
Total - AT5520 - - 475520
Weighted werge Law valus on the date of awind (HKS) - an - - an

The Lair valbues of bhe POCW Shares and the Share Stagled Urts veinded dursng the year on the dates of oward ané meatoned by e
respective quated muwiet pices of the POCW Shares and the Shune Stapied Units o the respoctig mwand dates

The: PCCW Shianes and the Share Stapled Units urveitod had 5 wethied Svivage remalneng viting period of the end of the epoiing
period s follows:

2003 2024
PCCW Purchase Scheme (POOW Share) 083 ymar 0.63 yoar
PCOW Subseription Scheme (PCOW Shares) 0LET yaar 06T yoor
HKT Shane Stapled Units Purchase Scheme (Share Stapied Linds) 0B your 0,64 yoar
HET Share Stagled Uinits Sutncripton Schome (Shase Slapied Uinits) 0,66 yoar 0,69 yoar
PCOW 2024 Shise Award Schésme (Granis Funded by Exating POOW Shares) - 0.98 year
)24 Share Siapied Linit Awarnd Scheeme (Grants Funoed by Existing Shave Stapled Units) - 0.98 year
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MOTES TO THE HKT TRUST AND HelT LIMTED CONSOLZIATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AC0nTRLED?
3 Decomgae 2024

30 EQUITY OF HKT LIMITED
a. Share capital of HKT Limited

2023 2024
Number of shaes  Mominal valui MNumber of shares  Nominal value
HES HES
Authoeied:
Crcinary shores of HKS0,0005 each
Beginning and end of year 20,000,000,000 10,000,000 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
Prederence shahes of HKS0,0005 each
Baginning and end of yesr 210, 0000, 000, 000 10,000,000 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
teswaet and fully paid:
Orcinary shares of HKS0.0005 aach
Bagnning of yar 7,579,742 334 A TERET] 757,742,334 3,789,871
e during the year fmofs G} - - a3 17
End of year T.579,742 234 3. E%a71 7.579,776.147 3,780 888
Preferance shaves of HKS0 0005 each
Bagrming of var 7579, 742 334 3,789,871 7.579,742,334 3,780,871
Insoed during (he yoar fnofe (1 - - 33813 17
Ered of year 7,579,742, 314 3,789,871 7,579,776, 147 3,789, 888

{i]  Dunng the year ended 3] Decemnber 2004, the Company issued and allofied 33,813 new fully paid andinary shares with nomnal
salue of HKS0, 0005 per share and 33,813 new fully paid preference shares with nominal value of HS0.0005 per share
respectively under the 2024 Shase Stapied Lint Award Schems with 3 consideration of approvimatety HES300,000 in totsl

b Movemnents in reserves of the Company are as follows:

X023
In HKS milion Share pomum Hebained prolits Tml_
As ol 1 January 2023 35,204 a2 35256
Totsl comprehenaan income for the year = 575 5,759
Deddend pasd n respect of the previows year - 2271 13.271)
Endevirm dddierd doclared and paid in fespect of the cutnent yoar - (2.429) 2 4290
Az at 31 December 2023 35204 101 35305

2024
it HEECS, rrsllion Share premium  Retained peofits Tﬂ‘.ﬂ
As at 1 January 2024 35,204 101 15,305
Totad comprehentie ncoms for the year - 512 3512
Dinvidend paid in respect of The previous year 1352} (3.007 (3,369
~ Intodirn dhvidend declared and paid in nespact of the cusrenl ymar {1,804} {6011 (2,495)
As ot 31 December 2024 32,958 i5) 32,953
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MOTES TO THE MHT TRUST AND HT LIWTED CONSOLEIATED FANCIAL STATEMINTS ACONTRLEDS
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
As 0t 31 Decemiber 2024, delerned incomas s labiltesTassels) reprasent.

In HK% millicn 2003 2024
Duformed ncome tin asts {8951 (790}
Delerred ncorme tax lskiiie 5458 5,746
4603 4,956
a.  Movements in defermed income tax liabllitiesTassets) were as follows:
2023
Acceleratod Lis
depreciaton mnd
Irs HKS million amartisation Tax iases Camwers. Tetal
Baginning of year 5252 (1.170 2 4,080
Charged o the consolidaled income staleman
trate 12l 457 LT - 524
Exchangs difeences i1 - - [iT]
End of yoa 5708 (1.103 {Fil 4,603
2024
Accelarated tox
depreciation and
~In ﬂl&i il amortisation Tax lugm Others Tokal
Baginnirg of yea 5708 11,103} 2) 4,603
Charged Credibed] to the consoldated income stalament
(rate 12(al) 643 {332} - 351
Exchange dilsmences 1 1 - 2
End of yea 5,392 11,434} [Fi] 4,956

b Dalamod income tax assets are recognised for fax lpsses camy-forward 1o the extent that realisation of the relaied tax benefi
through uliisation against future taxable pralits is probable As at 31 Decernber 2024, the Groups had unubiissd estimated ta fosses
T wihich ino defiermed Incoma K assets hatve been recognised of HIKES 9492 million (20E3: HKS3,433 millien) 1o carmy fonmard for
deduction agains fufure Lisable income. Estimated ta losses of HKS 176 million (2023 HKS268 million) and nil (2023 HKS2 mellion]
will expire within 1 to 5 yoars and after 5 years from 31 December 2024 respectively. Tha remaining portion ol tho Tax lostes, mainky
relating 1o Hong Hong oompanies, can be cafried forwand indefinitoby,

T Tyl et T Lirvwtemd sl Rospue S04 173
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33 CARRIER LICENCE FEE LIABILITIES
Asat 31 December 2024, the Groups had camriar icence lee liabdities payable as foliows:
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203 2024
Presant Iriteresl Presont Iaterezl
v of the Expens Tolal  value of the e Total
minimum ekatang to minimum minimum relating to mirimyim
In HFS rallion anrual fees  fofure periods. anmual fees  anmual fees  future periods  annual fees
Payable wthin a penod
=~ At excdeding o year 38 5 M3 a4 3 2
~ owes one year, bul nol exceeding
batr y2ars 286 11 =7 324 12 136
= tvor b yars, but not excoeding
fove yeary BS7 7 34 a57 85 1,042
~ ot e years 1.543 449 2352 197 412 2329
3424 Baz 3,966 3522 512 4,034
Less: amaunis payable within e
yedr classifind as curnent liabdities (338) 15 [(343) i324) i} 327
Kon-curnent portion 3,086 537 3683 3198 509 avar
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34 NOTES TD THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
a. Reconcifiation of profit before income tax 1o net cash generaled from operating sctivities

In Hi million 2023 2024
Profit before income lax 5,508 6,015
Adpstments for:
Oxhor gasna, et 110 (131
Fingncs costs, net 2134 2,238
Loszes/TGains) on disposal of property, plant and equipment and right-ol-use assets, net 2 {10y
Write-back of proveson o inmnbory obaolesoence, met (1] 91
Impasrnent ks lof rade recefabies 1B2 xR
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,301 1,066
Depreciation of right-cluae assats 1,333 1,208
Amoriaation of knd lese premiem - inlerests in kadehold bnd 12 12
Amorisalion o ntangbie st 1419 1402
Amoriisation of luliiment costs T 484
Amorieation of cusiomes acousition ensis 1,201 1,243
Shame ol resulls of assoceies 108 121
Share ol resulls of ot venhures ] ]
Shane-bised comgersation sxpensaes. £l 3
Incraase in PCOW Shases and Share Stapisd Linits under thars award schemes. B (10}
Decromalincreatel in operaling asats
= iweniones 435 (535}
= Iroelé recioivabiles, propunyments, deposits and other cusrent sty 137 427
- COMTC] B5sels B0 (43}
— amaunds due from retated companias 3 2z
= nestnchod cash 164 n
= fulliirmsenl costs 53] (6561
~ CUSIOMEr ACuISTInn Costs 1,223} (1,187}
— athar non-cument assets 13 13
IncreaseDoecreatn) in operating llabilies
= frache payaties 1 1431
— aceruals and oiher payables 729 (a8}
= amaiind dos 108 Selow wibsidiang 2012y (137
— amauni due 1o a redatid compary 1 1
= ddvances ihom Customsers 7} 22
- crrdract lnbiites (A1) (42}
~ather long-term lisbiltes 121 (20}
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 11,827 12,120
Irdenest recohad 41 as
Income tax pasd, ned of Lax refund
= Hing Kong peofits L pasd® (289 2n
— overiess prohis e pakd (18 (40}
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 11,261 11,511

" deat 31 Dibonenbe T3 ared 00, P Hong Kong protits Ues setearminty dodior (Fek et incoms L Kbl B of ook sitsidionies of She Groug hud not
i P miend o Pl e cle, S F BN pny comescanidey Las Charge stterrent would be delornd 0 abtoreng Prancil e

T Tyt a4 Lirrwtid Brwsersd Resscet 20040 175
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ROTES TO THE KT TRUST AND b1 LIWTED CONSOLTATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS A00Tmianr
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34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cow rivuen)
b Movernents of financial (assets)Rabilities arising from financing activities.
Iboverrents of inancias {assetsifabdtes arisng from inancing acthilies are as lofiows:

203
Privgud Engnce (2.4
o Dretuded pary Rt
Ppvsaymens,  (ncluded Deér=vatree Ao Amos
deootiad I BTN frnca  doeind den
oirercurent  and o RTINS, letow e Learsir
i 1§ elion: mwty  payebed  Boeceing net  swboday tompenes b Tatsl
A | January 2003 i 100 43838 i% 2043 o 1974 43064
Casn Fows i Srarcing achviies
Nt BorTowings rarsed {141 5 29 - - - - 22983
Firarce ooshy | podrecerved - 1225 - -] - Lr.] - {L553
Feayents of bomowegs - - A % - - - 22
Payment for fesse Rabies
{irchufing inferesd] - - - - - - 1430 11,430
Mowerrard i améurt due %
@ beow sutmadaty . . - = 2312 - = 232
Movrment in amount due i
 readed comoary - - - - - = - .}
Carsh Bows in imvesting achivies.
Loun repayment in rRa%0N o
boence lee fnote MY - - 13n - - - - 133
O s lincuding non-cinh
TR & 1L.X8 @ 154 rdel by 3 155 Lm
Aa ot 31 December 2022 @5 =B L1557 T 2349 L4 2049 S1L106
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34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (connnuiny
b Movements of financial (assats)Rabilities arising from financing activitios [continued)
Movements of financial {assetslliabilies arising from financing activites are as lollows: (o)

2024
Prepaid
fronce coshs It
ncludedin payable
prepnymants,  Cincluded Oervatve  Amount  Amoosts Reuni
duposits ind I sccrusls fnancial duefloa iy dunioa
other corrent  and othes Fmirements, Fodlom reisted Lexse  non-controling
I WIS millan asehy)  puyshie)  Bomowingy rol  sbsdisry compasies  fsbilties et Totsd
Ayl 1 Jaruary 204 251 358 4557 frL ] 2348 -] 2,05 - 50,105
Cans Bown I finanging activirs
Piews Excmmwings rarssdl - - L] - - - - - a5
Frunce conss [ bectved - 1192 - B - (1] - - L876
Renuymeses of borowngs = = @Bun - - - = = @un
Payment kr laxse it
lireaing remrd) - - - - - = I = a2
Miwemen| in amound duelo
2 e surpdtiony - - B - nr - - - m
Mowermart in ameurd s o
A reldied corroury - - - - - m - - o
Movernand n amagrd e o
A ren-gortroling indéep - - - - - - - ko b
(i Bowt 7 inving Bcivie
Linan mecymT] i RN D
lconce fen fnole DAL - - ] - - - - - 1
(ther erangss linchsdeg
ror-Cash mosementi) 13 1539 o (e nim 3 L6 = i
A ot 1 Decembar 2004 2% k- 752 290 & 1853 M arsEs
. Analysis of cash and cash equivalonts
I HF million 223 2024
Total cash and bank balances L0 2,324
Liesiaiz restriciod cash (2123 (179}
Leas: shart-lanm depoids Lk (295}
Cash and cash equivalents as al 31 Decembes 1,630 1,850
T Tyl et T Lirvwtemd sl Rospue S04 irrd
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HOTES TO THE HET TRUST AND H(T LIMTED CONSOUSIATED FINANCIAL STATEMINTS ASOATRLEDH
3 Decomome 2024

35 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
Thes Geoupa” primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Groups sb3y 10 continue as 3 going concarn, 0 that they
an continue to provide refums b equty holders of the Growps and beneSits for gther siakehalders to suppor the Groups’ stability and
Powih: and io earm a margin comemensurabe wilh the level of buskness and market fisks in the Groups' operation.

The Groups menitcr capital by neviesing the level of cagital that is af the dnposal of the Growps | “Adjusted Cagital”), taking infa
comidoration ihe hutune capial requiremants of the Groups, prevaling and projectad profitabiity, projected operating cash fiows,
propocted capitsl capendiunes and projectid strategic invesiment opponuntits. Adusted Capital comprses all componants of eguity.

Tha Grougs are not subject 16 exdermally imposed capital reguirements, ecept for the debt covenan] egueement of loan agreements
with eatermall parties and the minsmem capital requirement of & subsidiary reguiated by 1he Barmda Monetary Authonty. A subsidisry
of the Grougs also has a manimim capitsl requirement &5 & condition lor @ stored value tacilities Bcence granted try the

Horg Kong Monatary Authonty,

36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Lsbles below analyss finsncisl Fatiuments by calagory:

2073
Firancial
assets al Fenancial Financial Dervvaties
amortised Fsets Al aats af e for
by HES ersllion ool FVOC! FVPL hedging Tolal
Mon-currmnt assets
Firuncial gl st FYOCH - 130 - - 130
Firancial pesets at FYFL - - 2B - 28
Durrvative financial instraments - - - 2 Fatl
Oithaer ponv-cuirent assels {sclsding prepaymmants) 120 - - - 120
120 130 28 = 307
Cumrend asents
Prepaymends, deposhis and other curent assets
{exeinding prepmyemnentsd 2350 - - - 2380
Tirade receivables, net 2838 = - - 2838
Armounts dye from related companies. 22 - - - 2
Financial assets at FWPL = = 15 = 15
Restracted cash 211 - 2 - 211
Snori-term deposits ] - - - 73
Cah and cash sguivalents 1.630 - - - 1630
1160 - 15 - 7175
Tolad 7,280 130 43 =) 1482

178 WK Fruatmned MR Lemsien Aol Begars JO00
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36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coninUEm
Thes tables telow analyss financial instruments by calegony: (continued)

023
Otther Rranclal
Dhetivarl b urtuoed Rabiilitaes o
in Hig miliion lot hedging  amcitised copl Totat
Current iinbilites
Short-tesrn borrowings - £1,0450 {1,043
Trade payables - {5,781} (5781}
Accrunts and other paryabies - {5, 988) i5.588)
Derivative financial instnaments {151) - {151
Carriet licence joe Habsities - [ iei:i] 338
Ameund due 1o o Seliow subridan - [2,345) (2.349)
Amounds due 10 relxted Companees - (B4 B4}
Mdvances Bom cusiomen - 279 279)
Lasa Rabiltees - {1,070 {1,070}
(i L4 (16,938) 17,0551
Hor-Current kabills
Long-fisim bomawings - (43518 (435181
Derivative financial insdruments® 1602 = (8021
Carrier licence foe Rabsities - (3,056} (3.086)
Lense Rabilties - (=7a) ot
Othar kang-term flatlitie - {1,935 {1.935)
[&02) (49.51E) 50, 120)
Total {753 {56,456} 167, 209)

T Tyl et T Lirvwtemd sl Rospue S04 1765
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MOTES TO THE HKT TRUST AND HelT LIMTED CONSOLZIATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AC0nTRLED?
3 Decomome 2024

36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cowrmuen)
The tablies bedow analyse financial rsbaments by calegory: (conbinesd!

Financial

i HFS rallian cosl FVocl FVPL hedging Toital
Heon-current assels
Financial asets at FVOCT - 823 - - 823
Financial assety ot FYPL - - 17 - 17
Dervatree inarcial msiruments - - - 58
Caiheer ner-current assets (exchsding popaymants) 82 - - - 82
B2 823 17 58 m
Current s330ts
Prepaymenis, depasils and oiher cument assets
{esciuding prapaymentsh 2,670 - - - 2,670
Tradhe receivabias, nel 2,710 - - - 2,710
Asmounts due from retated companies 20 = - = 20
Financial dasety al FYPL - - 18 - 18
Restrictod cash 179 - = = 179
Short-lerm depodits 295 - - - 25
Cavh and cash egisvalents 1,850 - - - 1850
7,724 - 18 - T.7a2
Total 7,806 823 35 58 B722

160 WK Fruatmned MR Lemsien Aol Begars JO00
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36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coniinbem
Thas tables balow analyts financial nstruments by calegony: (continued)

2024
Other financial
Dorivatives used Babilities at
in HKS million for hedging  amortised cost Total
Current lisbilities
Shovt-teern borrowings - (3,934 13,934}
Trade payities - a2 7212
Accnuals snd other payables - 16,6500 16,6501
Derivate financial nstnaments® L - M
Carriet licenos joe Habities - (324 {324}
Amount due 1o a eliow subsidlary - (2,929) 2.929)
Amounts due 10 relatiod companaes - =4 a2
Advances from cusiomens - {301} (301)
Ltz Rabilties - {1, 0281 1,028}
(21 1] (22,450} 122.501)
or-curren abiahg
Leng-term bomawings - 137,372} 37.372)
Derivative financisl madroments (7E9) = (769)
Carrier licence hoe Rabsites. - (3,198} 13,198)
Lewae Babiilies - {825} (825)
Amound dus 1o & non-Controling inferes - (344) 3445
Oeher long-tesm liabities = 12,1124 2112}
(PEG) 143,851} (84,6200
Tatal (8101 166,311} 1671211

* e 1] DeCoenbee DO, dermati Bruncal sninmenty Clrafed o oorent labdiee of FedL0 miton COXS roncument etk of 4083 mithor) sviated
o lovmgn nschute Lotaaed ooriracty miih an apgregels nolonad tontoct sraunt of USRS miblon Lapgrourrately WS LGEG matond (30 USERN) milan
Lapprondrtely HICE A G86 miflon | wers desgnatpd 23 corsh Mo hedges, of LS5300 miflon jerm coupon peecssiied roles dug 2030 The LISE300 misien
i i P ey e Apdeaimand o (P apdion of e Groues on 15 Jeruory 2025 ot an aaily moemgtion smoued of USSE70 aellon (0005 USSETO melnl
Bsler in rotes sl aned JHE for debain ol the puararteed nofss snc the doneyn eschangs: fonward Contisck seechvely
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ROTES TO THE KT TRUST AND b1 LIWTED CONSOLTATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS A00Tmianr
3 Decomome 2024

36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (connmuen)
Exposure bo credil, liguidity and market risk (including loreign currency risk and interest rade risk) arises in the rormal course of the
Growps’ business. The Groups ane also exposed (0 equly price risk arsing from thee equity investiments in olher enbibes_ Exposaure (o
these risks s controlled by the Groups' Enancial managemen policies and practices described below.

a. Credit risk

Thr Groups” crodit ik |s primuarily attributable to cash and cash equivatents, shor-term deposits, redricied cash, rade recehvabiles,
contract aants, amounts due roem reladed cormpanied, derative financial mstruments, dieposits and olher necewables. Management
furs pofcies in place and expodune b these credit nisks is monionsd on an ongong Base.

Tha Groups” norrmal credit penod for customerns i ranging up 1o 30 days from [he dale of nvoce uniess there & 3 separate mutual
agreement on sxdenson of the credil penod. The Groups mainsin awel-defned credit palicy and indhvidual credil evalustions are
perifoi el of Gl ELslbmens iedquating eredil owet b certaln smount. Thise evalubon lecis on e customen's past hstory of making
payrments when due and cutmend ability 10 pay. and taks info account information specific bo the customer as well a3 pertaining 1o the
economic environment in which the customer operates. Debiors who have overdun balances are requesied 1o seitie all cutstanding
hatancis befare mny furiher creoi i granted. Normaly, the Geougs 8o nol obtain colaberal from customers. As at 31 December 2023
and 2024, the Groups Sid nol have a spnifcant oxposure 10 sy indeacdual debions of countomaanties.

Further quaniitalive disclemures in respect of the Groups” expotire 1o credit ik arsng from trads recenables are sl out in note 26lcl

The overall impact of impairment of the contract assets on the HKT Trust and HKT Limiled consolidated Snancial statements s
cormidered by managemant. Management considered the etirme expecied kosses with respect fo thele confrac] assets weno minemal
a5 at 31 December 2023 and 2024 and the Groups made na wiite-off or provision for thase contract assets during the years ended
31 Decembar 2023 and 2024,

Amaunts due from rolyied companies, deposits and oiher receivatbies ane considensd b ha low crodet risk. Thede assats are
eoritanucuAly manitored by EiSesng e criail guality of D coumerpany, king into sooound (ks Tasnelsl poution, pest experkencs
and other Laciors, Where necesaany, provion for imipairment boss is made for eshmated irmecowsrabie amoonts. As sl

31 December 2023 and 2024, amounts due rom related companies, deposits and eiher rocelvables wete Tully pedoming.

Dievrvatron financial instruments, restricted cash, short-term deposits and cash and cash egquivalen]s are considened o have low credit
risk. These assets are executed with oreditworthny fnancial institutions or Fvestment counterpanies and the Groups do not expect any
spnifecant counterpasty risk. Moneover, credil limsts sie st fon indhvacusd counterpartion pnd periods eveas are conduciod to srsume
St tha fimets ane sarictly folowed.

The rmairmuem exposue B0 credit fitk B representad by th carmying amount of each financial sl inciadng dervatie fimancisl
irstruments, in the consobdated statemant of financisl pmition. Excepl tor the Ruarantees ghven by Ihe Groups &3 disciosed = nole 38,
the Grougss do not privide any other puarantses which would exgpose the Grougps io credit nsk.

el T Frust aned HICT Lesited) Aol Bocors 03
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36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coninLEmn
b Liguidity risk
The Groups® palicy s o regulardy mondor current and expected fquedidy regurerments and thes compliance wilh debt covenants,
1o ensure inal they maintasn sufficient resenves of cash and adeguate lines of funding froen major Enanclal institulions 1o meed their
Beuidity requirgnents in ihe short and onger term. Managermsont beles there is no sgnlicant Byusdity i s the Groups have
sutfickorit cash and banking tcilities 1o fund this operations and dett servicing requinements.

The Groups sre sublect 0 cortain corporala guarantes obligalions 1o guarntes perlormancs of their subsdianes in the normal courss
of ther busenesses. Reler bo note 289 for defalls:

The fofiwing tables detad the remaining contractusl maturites 3t the end of the reponing penocs of the Groups' non-demivatie
fimancial llabdties and darvative inancial labilites, which are based on contraciual undscourtsd cash flows [including interes!
payments coerpuded Ling contraciual rates of, | Taating. bated on rales current at the and of the reporing period) and the eankes
date ihe Groups can be rogured b Dy

2023
More than  More than Total
Witten  1yoarbut 2 years bl contractusl
1 yoar or within within  hlore than  undscounted Carrying
ir HEC millian &N demand 2 yours & yaars Syears  cash outflow amount
Cugtrant liabilities
Shoit-term borrowings. (o7 - - - .07 (1,043)
Trade payabies G780 - - - (57811 57811
Mecruals and offwer poryabbe 15,955 - - - 15,588 {5.085)
Derivative financial imsirument
frcstes (i3 153 - - - {153 1151}
Carriet lioence loe Kabdtses 343 - - - 343 338
Amount dus o a lellow subssdary 23804 - - - 12,349) {2.349)
Amounds due (o relsind companes, B0 - - = 84} (Bt}
Advances from cusiomers 2r = - - 73 =27
Learse Kabililies (IR - - - {1,145 {1,000
17,190 - - - (713 (7089
Meon-Currend labites
Long-term bormmwings fnafe (il (1.904) BN 280 (11,5843 50523 (4518)
Derivathve fingncis! instruments (%] {841 12081 4700 {70l [BO2)
Carrier licence foe Rabiites = 297) 1934) (2332 13,6231 3.086)
Lease kabilities - 5361 349 [ {1,045} (]
Othar long-term iabties [nabe (i) - 185) 15 (2.335) {3.374) {1,935
{1g4n 19823 (304600 {17,141 (59265 (50120}
Tatal (19,0340 9823 (04600 (071410 (76458 (67209
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MOTES TO THE HKT TRUST AND HelT LIMTED CONSOLZIATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AC0nTRLED?
3 Decomome 2024

36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cowrnmnuen)
b Liuidity risk fzontinget)

2024
Mofe than  Meee than Total
Within 1 yoar bul 2 years but contractual
1 yoar or within within  More than  undiscounted Carrying
In HES prallicn on demand 2 years 5 years Syears cash outflow amount
Cunrend labdties
Shiwl -befm Borowings (3,973 - - - (3,973 (2,934}
Trade payaties (7,212) - - - 17,212 (7.212)
Accruals and clher payables (6,650 - - - (66500 (16,6500
Drivative firancial imdruments. 141) - - - (41} a1
Carrior leence loa liabiities 327 - - - 327 1324)
Amount due (o a lelow subsidany (2,929 = = - (2.929) [2.929)
Amcunts cu o related companess a2} - - - B2) 182y
Adhiances from customers (301} - - - (301} 1201}
Liarse Badilifies (1,203} - - - (1,103 {1,028}
122,618 - - - 22.618)  (22,501)
Ron-curment labilities
Liorg-term borrowings foole (i) (L457) (113400  (21,884) 7,688) 42379 (3737
Derivative financial instruments. 182} 141 1370 {312} 1906 (769)
Carrier leence lpe lintties - 1336 1,042} (2329 {3,707 {3, 198)
Lease lobilities - 483) (373 ni BET) 15251
Amount dus (0 8 non-ConEnolng infereal - 344) = - [344) (344)
Other long-tarm Eabilites fnole (&) - 1300 1841} (2,321 13.292) (2,1129

(1,539 (2674 (246210 (126610 (51.495) (24,6200

Totl (24,1570  (12678) (246210 (12661) (74,113 (67,1210

Nt
10 Aot 31 December JO0M, bav borvowhngs of BOCHEL0 milion (X2 MR 1040 milion] roiuded in long: e boepwing, wers bor Aruncing & 15-yesr
35 upe i i disatm lee poad wsdeont by the Deougs

(i A ot 51 Decenber 22N derlativd fnancial milnahent ingiuded HKE1S5Y milion of st e ireies poyable. whech rided B inters) drasn unced o
aresngerent with 4 Barh o reCehen mgeeed aroorta by rrlairents b petls et peyrmants of 8 Raeteg G-l ieresd rale v contnac] with & oo
ermiract st of HES 100D millon,

Uml A ot JE Oucermber S, oifvir kong Sorm Salsites fehuded MEETOR milon DL HESATE milkon) of oo demn nleoed payabie, whh nialed 1o ineoed
e urkT 3 N TR w0 G T et i eer oS by natafenents & e rieres] papmertt of & feoc i Deed oroms cusrercy s corhac

wil? @ Aolnal Contrac! aehiunt (of DLRCO0 smaliicn gt eradety FeC 16665 miliond N2 DU RCOC mllion | agpe tearnadely R ] G665 madlanl), el 1
mtes I ) et Jlal e detan of B pudesrsond nobi amd e dewhaalive Brorciol IPRinuments iececi ey
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36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (connnLEm
€. Market risk
Markat risk comprises foreign currency, inferest rate and eguity price saxposure dermang from the Groups' operation, imvestment and
funging activiiles, As 3 matier of policy, ihe Groups enter info cross currency Swap contracts, intehest rale swap contracls, iohegn
exchange lorward contracts snd other financial instrumsonts 1o manage their oxposure to markest rek dindclly related 1o thel operations.
and fnancing. Tha Growps do ot undertaki any speculative trading achvities iIn Connectson with Rk fmancial instruments of enter
Inte or mcquire high market risk instruments for irading punposes.

The Finance mnd Management Committes, o sub-commuttes of the Expcutive Committes of the board of dirscton of the Comgany,
delarmines the appeopeiate rsk management activities with the am of prudently managing the market rek associabed with transactons
undesiaken in the normal course of the Groups' Dosiness.

Al treasiry risk management aciivities are carmed oud in socordance with pelcies and gudeknes approved by B Finance and
Minagemen Cormmitioe. which s revenwed on 8 regulsr bass. Early teemination and amondments (o ihe: tirms of the ranmacton
wouild [ypically ocou when there ane changes in the underying assets or labilitks of in the sk management strategy of the Groups.

In {her nonmal course of business, the Grougs wse the abose-mentoned financaal instruments ko Bt their exposure (o atverse
fhuctuations in lorelpn exchange rafes and intevest rates. These nsiruments ane execuled with creditworiity financiat institutions and all
contracts are dencminatad in Magr currencies.

L Forsign currency ritk

The Groups operate infermationally and an exposod 1o foneign curnmncy risk arsing Hom various currency exposuny, Formign currency’
rink arises when the Groups” recognised assets and habliSies are denoménated in a cusrency that s not the functional carmency of the
ichaant gioug entity.

The Graups’ Bomowings ane sutstantially denaminated in Hong Hong doliam, Uiniled States dollars and Eurg, As ot

3] Decarnber 2023 and 2004, ol of the Grougs' borroawings dengerinated in Linited States dollaruFum wene saapped into Hong Kong
chollars by Cross cumency swap contracts and foreign exchange lorwand confracts. Given this, management does nol expect ithal ihene
will b army significant foreign curmency risk assaciabed with the Groups' borrowings. The cross Gurency awep confracts and foresgn
euchangn farward contracts cutstanding as at 31 December 2024 with an aggregate notional contract amaunt of LISS2, 870 million
{approdmataly HKS22 400 millon) (2023 LISS2 570 milion (approesmately HKE22, 400 milion |} and EURECO million {approdmately
HKS1,565 million) (2023 ELR200 milkan fapprodmately HES 1665 million}) wene designated as cash flow hedges againat foreign
CLnEnCY k.

In respec of frade recehvables and payables held n cutmencies ofner than ine functional curency of ihe operations o which they relate,
{he Groups ensuns (hat the ndt expotune IS kept 1o 80 scceptsbie level by Buying o seding loresgn currencies Bt 5pod of Torwaed rates
white necesary bo addnees shor-term smbaances.
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The loliowding tabls defails the (roops” ssposurs at e and of the reponing pevlod to curmency ek aising froem significant monedary

sty of iatskties denominated i lonogn clmoncisy:

2023 2024
Unitedt States Uniited States

I HES million Dolars Eurn Dollars Eurg
Trade receivables 1.168 40 1,072 50
Shost-ferm depasits 0 = 5 2
Canh andd cash equivalents 59 k) 535 B85
Shodt-erm barwings - - (3,881 -
Trade payaties (2529 530 (2,558 533
Advances (rom cusiomens (&) (1] {19 -
Lieaie labslities 1521 21} 138) 3
Loeg-berrm barrowings {20,927) 11718 (16,955) (1,612
Gross enposung arising from net monstary Rabablies. (21 993) {1,701 21 ,489) {1,533)
teet monetary (assat=}Tiabilities denominated in respective

entitars” functional currencics &3 3 1306) 144
Berroaings with hedging instrurnents 200923 1718 20,836 1,612
Ovpradl nol PO {1,139} 20 1559) L

Az &t 31 December 2024, i the Hong Hong diollar had weakened'strengthened by 1% (2023 same) againsd the United States dodlar,
with 3l pther variabiles held constant, the profit after tas of the Groups for the year would have decreacedfinereased by spprodmately
HESS million {2023 HKS 10 mislion), miniy 83 2 resalt of loreign eschange ossesfgains on (ransation of Unted States dollar
denmiruded monelary asets and kabikties winch ane nol hedged by hedging imtruments. Meamvwhile, Ihe hedging resene and costs
of hediging resenve of the Geoups a1 a1 31 Decomber 2024 would have colectily debited/cmdiled by appradmately HRS208 million
(2023 HKE209 millan], mainty o a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on the bomowings being hedged by croas cumancy swap
cordracts arad lorelgn exchangs forward conbracts.

As ot 31 December 2024, I fhe Hong Kong dollar had weakenedsirengihened by 5% (2023 same) against Euro, with all other
wariables hefg corestant, the profit aftes b of the Groups for the year would have noreasedideciessed by appreodmately HKE1 million
[2023: HKS1 milon), rninly & a el of foreign aschangs gainuiosies on transiation of Euro denomnated monetary assats and
Eabiities which ars nof hedged by hedgng imtruments, Meanwhils, the hedgng ressnas and costs of hedging resenve of the Groups
2 31 3] Decembed 2024 wiuld have collactanly debedicradied by appeouimately HKSE] milfion (2023 HASAE miion), mainly a5 2
resull of fvegn exchinge knssesfgains on e long-iem banowings being hedged by a cross cunmency swap contracl.

The sensithity analyss has been dotermaned masaming that the change in Keeign axchangs rales cocumred al e end of the rporting
period and applied 10 The Groups” exposune 1o currency risk fof monetary asuets and llatlities in sostence o those dates, and that all
efer vrlables, bn pariculsr intesest rsbes, remained constant.

The staded changes iepresent management's assessment of neasonably posubie changes in fonegn exchange rabes over (he penad
wmtil the and of fhe et annual repading period. In fhis respect, i s assumed that the pegeed rate between the Hong Kong dollar and
the United States dofar would be materialty unaffectad by any changa in the mevement in valua of the United States dollar agains!
other currencies. The analysis was perionmed on the same methodology ke the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2024,
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36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (connnusm
€. Muorket risk (oontimueaf]
i Imtesest rate sk
Ghven (he relstively insigreficant amount of interest-bearing assets, the Grous” income and operating cash fllows are sulstant iy
depandent of changes in marked infetest rales.

The Groups' intesest rate rak arkues. prmarily trom bosrowings. Borrowings at varinble rales and fued rates expose the Gaoups o
caah fow inkorest rade ik and Loir value interas) rate sk respectvely. In addition, Trom time bo Bme, the Geoups drmy undor thesr
revelving credi Taciilses which ane substantially denomnated in Hong Hong dollars with Rosling rabe infberest.

The Groups have enteded nlo foating-to-fived nteeest rate swap contracts to hedge the cash Bow interest rate nak arsing froem certain
ficating rate bomiwings.

The foliowing lablke dotals the interest rate profle of th Groups” borrowangs &t thie ond ol the repodting pefiod, after taking into account
the affect of the cash flow hedging Instruments:

2023 2024
Effective Effective
intered rate interest rate
% HKS malion % HKS milion
et Foad riste Bomowings:
Short-terrn bank borrowing with hecging mstrument 462 2 - -
Short-torm borrowing with hidging instrumants - - 385 3881
Levg-tehm Bk bodrowings with hedging ifstruments 407 1589 417 4515
Leng=iarm bofmowings with hedgng instruments 293 220641 346 18,567
Vanable rate borrowings:
Shof-levm bank borrowing OV 55 457 53
Long-tenm bank borrowings 521 19,268 532 14,290
Total borowings 44557 41,306

As ot 3] Decomber 2024, if the interes! rate on varsbie rate bomewings had increased/decreaed by 75 basis poinls (2023: saeme],
witl & other wariables hedd constand, the profit after tax of the Geoups lor the year woold fure decreasedfncreased by approimately
HES3] million (2023 HES 122 milion), mainly 25 a resull of higharloser interest expensa on fioating rate bormowings in exislence at
the end o he reporting period.

The sansitiity anahysis has been determinied assuming hal the changs in interest rate dcourmd at the end of the reponting peviod and
applied 101t Groups esposcire 10 erest rale risk fof ioating fate borwings. in existince i those dates. The 75 basis points

(2043; same) e o decrease ropresents managemoent's daeiament of a reasonably possibl change i inbores? rale oved the poriod
writsl th i of the riexd arnusl seporting poriod. This analyss was parfarmod on thi same mathodalagy Tor the years endod

31 Decernber 2023 and 2024,
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MOTES TO THE MHT TRUST AND HT LIWTED CONSOLEIATED FANCIAL STATEMINTS ACONTRLEDS
3 Decomome 2024

36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cownmuen
& Markat risk (continued)
i Equity price rish
The Grougs are exposed 1o equity price changes arsing from equily krvestments.

Irvvestenanits are Msld for thiser loog-term growin gotantal or long-4em strabegc purposes. Performance of M Groups' inted investmonts
& mondored regularty for price changes, whernas performance of the Groups” unlisted investments b sssessed al kast sermi-armually
g the performance of e atsocidiod business o well o tmilar inted enbles, boded on the limited nfadmation availabi 1o ihe
Grougs. Assessment of invwrstment's relevancs to the Groggs” long-term strategac plans 15 also made by managemsent on regular bass
it applicathe),

o Fair vadues of financial instruments messured at amortised cost
Al ruineial Instrurmsenls wise cartiod Sb armourts nol mateially defeent fiom theie bl values 55 o1 31 December 2024 eucept

s olhows:

2023 2024
Iy RS, mrion) Carrying amoun Farvalue  Carrying amount Fair valug
Lorg-Berm borrowings 43518 42178 van 35223

Th fair vaahues of barfowngs ame (e net present value of e estemated future cash flows discounted at the prevaling market rales.
The laé values are within level 2 of the far value emechy (as defined in nole 36ie}).

#.  Estimation af fais values
Firancial instrurments canied 31 (¥ vilho are analysed by vaksalesn method and the different levels ane defired a5 follows:

= Ll 1: The tair value of financial instrurments traded in active markets [such s publicly traded dervatives and equily secintie
tarsed on quoted marked poces at (he end of the reparting period, The quoted market price used for the financial assets held by the
Groups b the curnant bed price. These irsiruments are included in level 1.

= Livel 2: The fasr value of financial vstrurrents hat are not iraded in an active market [l examiple, gver-the-tounter deraties) b
datedminnd Lning valuation Lachngoes witch masdmise the us of obasnable rarkiol datn snd rely o Witk 53 possibly on
ntiy-speciic smmates. f al spnficant inputs eguired o Lair value an mtrument s obsorvabils, the imdrument is ncluded in level 2.

= Lesairl 3: | e cr mahe ol the signficant inpuls is nol based on observabie madke? data, the instrument B included in level 3. This is
et cavse for unllod secunllies.
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36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (connnusm
o, Estimation of fair values {confinuea)
The folipwing tables present the Groups' inancial awsets and kahilifes thal were measuned at e value:

As ot 31 December 2023
In HES milhion Lisverd 1 Lirved 2 Level 3 Total
Asaats

Financial assets a1 FYOC1

= Unleted securities {non-curment) - - 130 130

Financial assets st FVL

= Lindsted seounilies [nan-current] - - 10 10

= Listed socutities. (reon-currant) 1B - - 18

= Lisbag sacutites (Curnsnt) 15 - - 15

Dervative financial inslniments.

— Mon-current - 2 - 2
Total assots 33 Fra ] 140 202
Liabilities

Dervative financisl indroments

— Current = {51 = (81}

= Mon-gutten - &0z - 6021
Tatal |labties - 753 - 53

As a1 31 December 2024
Iri HES milltion Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Totkal
Assatg

Financial assets at FYOCH

= Linisod socuriies {non-gurment] - - 58 ]

= Listed pocutitees (non-currant] 765 - - TES

Financial assets a1 FVPL

= Unfigted securities {non-curtent) = - 10 10

~ Listed secunities (non-cument) 7 - - 7

= Listng secusiles (Ciarnent) 18 - - 18

Derivative linancial instroments

— Man-curmen = 8 = 8
Total rssets 790 58 =] 916
Liaksilithes

Dervative financial instruments

= Cutrert - M - (41

— Mon-curreni - (769} = (769)
Total labdties = 810y = (810}
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ROTES TO THE KT TRUST AND b1 LIWTED CONSOLTATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS A00Tmianr
3 Decomome 2024

36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cownmuer
. Estimation of falr values [continued!
Istnurments included in level | comprsed POCW Shares aogured of subscnibed under PCCW Share Awaed Schemes classfied as
Bnancial sasets st FVPL and listed instruments classifed au linsncial ssasts a4 FYOCL

Instrurmants included in beved 2 compsed Cross CUITEncy Swap contracts, interest rate swap contracts and foregn exchangs fonwand
contracts classilied a3 derhathve lnancial imdruments. In measuring the swap transactions, the Ealr value s the net present value of
th etimated Tuturs cash fiows discounted al the market quatod swap fonign mechange ralod and intoreit rates. The Tair value of the
foretgn exchange forwand contracts & caiculniod based on the prevading markal foresgn exchange rates quoted for contracts wilth the
samé notional amaunts adjusied for maturity diferences.

bnstrurments included in leved 3 comprised investmarnts s unissted instruments clagsified @5 Enancisl assets ot VOO o

Gnancisl sasets ot FUPL. Dusting the yeor ended 3] December 2024, thefe was no Movaiment in the unlited matruments cdlassifed i
Enancial assets al FYPL included inkeved 3 (2023: same) and excepl lor the changes in far value of HKS 72 million
(2023 HKS 1 7 millon), theee was no maverment in the unibsted instroments clssified o linancial asssts al PVOCH included in level 3
[2023: samal.

For unilistind securities or firsncial assats without an sctive market, the Groups establish the fsir value by using vahuation techniques
inclucting the use ol recent arm’s length iransactions, refarence 1o other instruments that ane substantialy the same. and discouned
cah flow analysis, making macmum wig of market nputs and relying a5 Btk o podaible on enlity-Spedific inputs.

Thete weme no ransiers of financial assots and abdilies betvween Lair value heerarchy classilications duting the ywars anded
31 December 2023 and 2024,

There wene no maderial Changes in valuion lechniques during the yeans ended 31 Decermbsor 2023 and 2024,

I. Groups’ valusthon process

The Grougs perform and monior the valuators of nancial inatruments requirsd for fnancial repeiting purpases, Including level 3
Lair values. Material movamerts in vilualions ane repodted 10 senior management immediately. Valuation ressls are reviewod by
semeor managoment al keast on a semianmal batis.

37 COMMITMENTS
a, Capital
Az at 31 December 2024, capital comemeiments authormsed and contrachnd for by nature were as follows:
I HES rmellion 2023 2024
Acoussition of propedty, plant aad equpmant 1632 1612
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37 COMMITMENTS (coniivuen)
b Commitied beases not yol commenced
As at 31 December 2024, the fotal fufure ease payments ko leases commitied but not yet commenced were payable as foflows:

Lind and budings
in HIS million 2023 2024
Within 1 year a8 2
= (A OO i B vl 10 3
18 5

Muotwark capacily and ecipment

I HES: million 2023 2024
Within 1 year T -
After 1 year but wiihin 5 yearns 16 -
23 =
e Others
As ot 31 Decomber 2024, the Groups had ofher cutstanding commebments o foSows:
In HIEKS: millicey 2023 2024
Purchise of rights b0 broadeast cartiin TV conten g3 1,302
metww:mmni 506 951
1339 2,263

d  Leass recehvables
A 0t 31 Docomber 2024, the maturity analyss of the total fituee minimum lease roceipls under non-cancellabie operating leases is o5
Tl

In HES miffion 03 2024
Withir 1 ynas 6 22
After 1 yoar bul wathin 2 yoars =2 15
After 2 years bui within 3 years 15 7
Aler 3 yisars bul within & yean 7 -

] 44

The Groups lease oul properties under operaling laases. The majonty ol (he leases typicatly run for periods of 1 1o 5 years
(2023 1 to 5 yearsl. None of the leases inchude material contingent rentals,
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ROTES TO THE KT TRUST AND b1 LIWTED CONSOLTATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS A00Tmianr
3 Decomome 2024

38 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

I HIES rmalfiorn 2R3 2024
Performance guaranioes 1.7 903
Others 2 2

1,029 905

The: Grougs are subyect to Cenain conorale guaranies obiigations to puadanies the performance of M subsidiaries in the normal
couwrse of thesr businesses. The amount of Sabilibes arizing from such obigatons, if any, cannot be ascertained bul the directors ane of
the oginkon that any resiifling Habilty will nol materially affect the financial position of the Groups.

39 BANKING FACILITIES
Agmegate banking (acillhes &4 5t 3] Decombar 2024 wis HKSIT,610 mallon (2023; HKE34,81.2 mitlion) of which the undrawn facilities.
amcunted to HESTRGL2 milkon (2023: HES12, 733 millon).

Muority of the Groups' banking Iacilties are subject bo (he hulliiment of covenants relating 1o certain of the Groups’ consalidstsg
staternent of fnancial postion ratos, as am commanly found in knding arrangemonts with financial instifutors. If the Groups were lo
breach the covenants, the diawn down aclilies would Becoms payable on dermand and the ondrawn taclites would be cancelisd.

The Grougs regularty moniior thesr compliance with these covenants. As at 3] December 2024, the Groups were in compliance with the
covenants relating 1o the banking lacilities. Further details of (e Groups” management ol iquidity i ane S out in nate 3500,

Sumemaries of thort-1enm and long-term bonowings ane 58l oul in nobes 2600l and 27 respectively,

40 CHANGE IN INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES WITHOUT A LOSS OF CONTROL
O 26 Jume 2024, e Comgpany’s indiect wholly-owned subsidiary, Apex Link Communications Hokdings Uimited (the =Seller”], enterea
into 3 share purchase agreement with an independent third paty (the “Pariner”), pursuant 10 which the Pastrer shall purchass (i) 400
irhaeest in Fiber Link Global Limsbad (the *Passive Netca™), an indreci wholty-oanad subsidary of the Company wiich would engags
in the provialon of copper and fixe connection docess services in Hong Mong and the Greater Bay Area and opemting. maintaining
ahd entonding the passhe cormponeits of copper and e aboess nebworks and providing relatied sendces: and (i) a receivable
i the ameunt of HK$344 million owing from Passive Natco 1o the Sefier, for an agiregate comideration of LISSS 70 milian
e “Transaction™), Asal 31 December 2024, af conditions af th agreemant hunve been Tullllied and the Trarsacton has been completed.
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41 POSSIELE IMPACT OF NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
Up o the date of approval of these cormsaolidated financaal stalements, the HEICPA has ssued he loSowing new and amendad
Heng Kang Financld Reporting Standards which ane red yel eflectie for the accounling period ended 31 Decernber 2024 and which
P ol been ey sdopted i thets conmolidated financisl tabomenis:

Elfective lor sccounting periods
beginning on of atter
HHAS 21 [Amendments) The EHacts of Changss in Foreign Exchange Rates 1 January 2025
HHKAS Z8 (20111 (Amendmeniil Irvvastments in Associales and Joint Verdunes. T be @nnounced
HEFRE 7 (Amendments) Finsnell irctruments: Decioslnes 1 danuary 2006
HEFRS § (Amondments) Finpncial Imiruments 1 Januory 2026
HEFRS 10 (Amendments) Consoldated Financial Staterments To be afncunced
HHKFRS 18 Presantation and Discleape in Financisl Stalements 1 Jlanuary 2027
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries withoul Public Accountabsity; Desclosans 1 January 2027
Anrual Improvimpnts to HEFRS Accounting Standaids — Velume 11 1 Manuiary 2006
HK Intampretation 5 (Revised) Preserdation of Financial Statements — Classification by the | January 2027
Barrower of a Term Loan that Comtains a Repayment on
Demand Clase

Apart from thiz above, a number of impovements and minos amandments io Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standaids have aka
besn msued by tha HKICPA but they am not yet effective for the accounting period ended 31 December 2024 and have not boon sarly
adeplied in these consoldated fnancial statemenis

Mone of thie abowe i expecied 1o have a sgnilicant effect on the result of operation and financial positon of 1he Groups.
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2024 12 31
116,813 2,249,818
77,168 1,486,255
39,645 763,562
7,579,776,147
/ 5.2303 100.73

2024 12 31
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HKT
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
HKT Maples Fund
Services (Cayman) Limited HKT
HKT
HKT
183 17 1712-1716

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen
” s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

KY1-1102
Boundary Hall, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman, KY1-1102, Cayman lIslands

183 17 1712-1716
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen ”s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

CCASS
CCASS CCASS
CCASS
CCASS

HKT
HKT
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HKT 2024 12 31
2023 2024
59 1,136 61 1,175
(59) (1,136) (61) (1,175)
5 — — — —
6 — — — —
HKT 2024 12 31
2023 2024
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HKT 2024 12 31
2023 2024
4(c) 606 11,672 667 12,846
606 11,672 667 12,846
(55) (1,059) 7) (1,098)
4(c) (551) (10,612) (610) (11,749)
(606) (11,672) (667) (12,846)
7 — — _ —
2025 20
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HKT 2024 12 31
2023

2023 — — — — —

2023 12 31 — — _ _ _
2024

2024 — — — — —

2024 12 31
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HKT 2024 12 31
2023 2024
(59) (1,136) (61) 1,175)
1 19 2 39
58 1,117 59 1,136
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HKT 2024 12 31
HKT 2011 14
979
pPCCw 39 pccw
0TC
HKT
a.
HKT HKICPA
HKFRS HKAS
622
b.
2024

HKAS C KO )
HKAS « )

HKFRS « )
HKFRS 16 ()

HK C )

10
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2023

2023

2023

2024 12 31
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2023 2024
59 61
2023 2024
57 59
2023 2024
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1 1 1 1
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HKT
HKT HKT
HKT
2024 12 31
HK1CPA 2024 12 31
HKAS 21 () 2025
HKAS 28 (2011 )( )
HKFRS « ) 2026
HKFRS « ) 2026
HKFRS 10 ()
HKFRS 18 2027
HKFRS 19 2027
HKFRS 11 2026
HK «C ) 2027
HKICPA 2024 12

383/419



INCOME STATEMENT OF HKT MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Fir rar yuar erciod 3 Decomidae 2004
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L i Mo i gt
Managemant fes income 50 61
Goneral and administrative experses 59 II:GII
Result before income tas 5 - -
Inocme 13 [ = -
Resait for the yaar = -

Tha nofes on pages 202 1o 206 form part of thets fnantial statements
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME OF HKT MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Fr itse et oncinr 31 Docembes 2004

D100 i Lo

e for the year - -

Ontepy cormprehonaive ncorme - -

Total comprehengive incoma 1of Th jnod C -

The notes on pages 202 1o 206 Sorm part of thess financul stfements.

108 WK Fruatmned MR Lemsien Aol Begars JO00
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF HKT MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Ad 3 3| Decamiser 2GS

o HS 000 o 23 2

ASSET AND LIABILITIES

Current assot

Amount due from a leliow subsidiary e} EDG B57
606 (278

Current liabilities

Accruals and other payables 153 mn

Amncunis du 10 bellow subeidones dfed 1551) (610)
1605 (667

Het assats - -

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 7 - -

Rezarmsy - -

Total emquity z 2

Apprrved and authorsed for e by the board of direcions (the "Boand™) on 20 February 2025 and segned on behall of the Boaed by

U Tzar Kal, Richard Hud Hon Hing, Susanna

Tha nofes on pages 202 1o 206 form part of thets fnantial statements
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF HKT MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Fgr T ppad ondkerd 31 Docember 2004

In HEKS 000

Share capdal

Retaned
mohits
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Tolal

As at 1 January 2023

Total compeehanalie incoma for tha yoear
Ressastt for the year
Cthér comprehansive income

Total compeehensive income for the year

Transaclions with the equily holder af the Comparty

As at 31 Decomber 2023

In HIKS 000

As at | January 2024

Total compeehensive income for the year
Famull for the year
Other comgeshansivi mooma

Totsl comprehensive income fior the year

Transactions with the equity holder of the Company

As at 31 December 2024

The notes on pages 202 1o 206 form part of these fingncul stMements
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS OF HKT MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Fir (rat yoar erciod 3 Decomdse 3004

I HHS'000 2003 2024
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Result befone ncorms fax - "
Adpestrmants for

Incraase in amoun due from 5 ballow subsidiany 159} &1}

Increass in aocrusts and ofher payables 1

Increass m amounts divd o lelkow subaldianes 58 59
l':IET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES - -
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

HET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - -

MET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Beginning of year = =

End of year = al

The notes on pages 202 1o 206 foem part of these fnanciasl stalements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HKT MANAGEMENT LIMITED

31 Docombar 2004

1 GENERAL INFORMATIDN
HXT Management Limites ithe “Company™) was mcorporated in the Hong Koeg Special Adminirative Region (*Hong Kong™) under
fhe Hong Kong Companias Ordinance on £4 June 2011, its registened office is located at 39th Floor, POCW Tiower, Taikoo Place,
979 Kmg's Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong, The Comgarsy is an indicect niholly-owned subsidiary of POOW Limsbed, wiich is also
tha ultirmate hoiding compay of the Company incormotated in Horg Kong with its shares listed on L Mair Bomrd of
Tha Ssock Exchange of Hong Fong Limited and iraded in the form of American Depositary Recetpts on the OTC Markots Gioup Inc.
in th Uimbed) States

The Comgarny has a Emited and specifac roby, whech (s to dmencsber the HET Trust
The financial stalernants a8 presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless othenaise slated.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a, Staternent of compliance
HKT Management Limided's inancial statements have been propated in acocedance with all appicable Hong Horg Financial Reporting
Stanclards, which is 8 collective term dor all individual Mong Kong Finsncial Reponting Standards ("HIFRSS™), Hong Nang Accounting
Standards (THKASS™) and Interpretations sissed by the Hong Kong imtitule of Certified Public Acoountants ("HRICFA"), and the
reguitements of the Hong Kong Cormpardes Ordinance [Cap, B22). A sueremary of the materisl accounting poficies adopled by the
Cornpany s saf out below,

b Basks of proparation of the financial statements
T fificowing amended Mong Kong Fenancial Reporting Standands are adopted for the financial year beginning 1 January 2024, but
have no maderial effect on the Company’s reported results and fmandlal postion for the cument and prior acoounhing periods,

=  HKAS | (Risvtsed) (Amendments), Présentalion of Firimcls! SExéments

~  HEAS 7 (Amendrnents), Staslement of Caah Flows

—  HEFRS 7 (Amandmants), Finsncis! Inthimants: Disclomies

= HEFRS 16 (Amendments), Laases

~  H¥ Interpredation 5 (Revisedl, Presentabon of Financial Stafements — Chssiication by the Borrower of 2 Tevm Loan bt Conlains
Repayment on Demand Cisse

The Comnparty has not early adopted any mew of amended Hong Kong Financial Reperling Standacds that ame not yet eflective for the
cutrent secounting peniod, detsils of which are sot oul in nole 10,

The meawremen bashs used in ihe preparation of the financial sisterments & the hisiorical cost bass.

Tha preparation of financisl statements i conformdy with Hong Hoeg Finsnclal Reporting Standants requines managament 1o maks
judgemants, asmates and assumptions thal alect thi applcation of accounting policies 4nd fepored amounts of aisets, abilties,
rcome and arpenses. The estimates and associaled assumplions are based on historical esperience and varsous other faciors thal are
betieved o be rensonable under the circumstances, the results of which lorm the basis of jdgements aboul Ehe carrying amouns of
asets and labilities that re ol rosdly appahant from other sousced. Actual iesulls may delfer from thee eltimabes.

The estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an onpoing basi. Fievisions bo acoounting estimales are recognised in the
peviod in which [he eatimale i revited if the novision afiscts only that pericd, of in the perod of the revision and future pedods i The
revision atfects both current and Rutune perods.

Judgemants. made by management in the application of Hong Kong Financiad Reparting Standands that hae significant effect on the
Enancial statements and estimates with a sigrsficant rsk of malerial adaetment in the nest year are discussed In note 3.

202 BT Prust aned HICE Lomited Avwnasl Besart JO0A
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conrmuem
¢ Impairment of assets
The Company assesses on lorward-loohing bass the expected credil losses associafed with its fnancial assels carmied at amorised cost.

Fot intarcompany neceheabla, the Comparty considors the peabability of defaull Upon initial nocognition of assat and whather thete has
boen a signdficant incredse in credit fsk on an ongoing bass throughout each reporting penod. To asseis whirthor thevs isa ugreScant
[nonease bn credit risk, the Company compares the sk of a delault occuming on the auied a5 at the reporting date wiih The rik of dedaul
a5 i ihe cate of inflial recognition by corsidering available reatonabie and supportive fonward-looking information. Considerations may
nchude;

~  internal credi rating:
- exlermal credhl raling (a3 G a3 availablel

~  actual or expecied sgnifcant adverse changes in business, nancial of economic conditions that an expected 10 cause a
signdlicant ehange 16 the besrower's abilily to moet it cbigations;

- aciupl or expecied ugnifcant changes in the operating results of the borrower,;
~ significant increases in credit rak on oiher financial instiumsents of the same borrower; and

- significant changes in the expectoed perormance and behaviour of the botrower, inchading changes in the payment siatus of the
borrower in the Company and changes in the operating results of the borrower,

Rirgandiass of the analys above, & Sgnificant intredse in credd risk s prosumesd Il @ deblor is delinguent and in defaull salus when
thery are unsettied amounts remaining on the account on the day after the imoice due date.

Al each reporting dyle, the Company measures the koxs sBoaance for the intercompany recénabie ol an amound egual 1o he ketme
expecied credil losses il Ene credit sk an that infercompany recelabls has ncreased sgnidficandly since initkal recogniton, B, at the
reporting date, the credit risk on an intercompany moshable has not increassd signficantty since initial rcognition, the Company
measues the koss afiosance for thal intercompany recetvabie 3 an amount egual to 12-month expected credit losses.

Infercompuny recenvable [ wrilten off when thene i no reedonable sxpoctation of recovery. The Company calegorites an inlescomparn
mecavable for wite-off when the intercomgany fails 1o make contractual payrments for o penod groater than prodefned imit, Where

fhe receivable has been wiitten oll, the Company continues 1o engage in enforoement activity 1o aliempt to recover the recenable dus,
Whete rECOvies ane made, these ire recognised in the mcome staterment,

T Tyl et T Lirvwted Ao Bompared 00 203
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HOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HE(T MANAGEMENT LIASTED (oW REED)
31 Dotemtay J074

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conninuen)
d. Retated parties
For the pusposes: of these financeal staterments, a party is considered 10 be related o the Company #;

i e party has the ability, diectly or isdirectly thiough oni of mote intemmedianies, (o control the Company of exontise sgnificant
nfluance over tha Company in masking financial and operating policy decinions, of has join control o the Comparmy;

i e Company and this party afe sulbject ko common contral;
i fhe party is an associale of the Company or & joint venbure in wisch the Company |s a venjured;

b, Hhe paety s @ mermber of key management personnel of the Compary o the Company's patent, of & ciose tamily memiber of such
i ncdiidual, oF B an enity ufder the conkral, int control of signifeant mfuence of wieh indidus)

¥ - the party b5 a close lamily member of a party relered to innobe | above of & an enlity under the centred, joind control or significant
wilunce af such party,

W the party s a posi-employment benedit plan which & for tie benelil of employees of ihe Company or of ey entity that is a relsled
padty of the Cosmpany, o

waL B endity, or any memnber of & group of which i ks & parl, provides ey management personnel services o the Company o 1o the
parent of the Comgariy.

Chorir Larnilly mamibiers of on ndividual g thede family members wha may be ogechid b influence, of be sillesncad by, that idhidusl
in their dealings with the entity,

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and |udgements ane continually evaluated and are based on historcal experience and other I3Cions, including expectations of
future events that e beleved 10 be reasonable wder e circurmstances. The Company fas no accounting estimabes and judgements
thal would significantty afiect its resufts and financial position.

4 RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTION
During the year. te Company had the fallowing significant tramaction with a retsted pay:

In HKS D00 2023 Facrl ]

B
2

Wanagemant fet recoivable om a feliow subsidiany

&, Thes transaction was carried oul afer negotiations between the Company and the milafed party in the ordinany coursa of business
and on the bass of estimated mardet value as delermined by the direclors.

b The directors’ ernolurmnents of the Comparny wete borne by 8 fellow sudvidiany of the Comgany for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2024,

& The amotnts due fromAp fellow subsidiaries ane unsecured, non-ntéresl bearing, and hae no lised repayment e,

204 WCE Frust e HICT Lo Ao Beeaws SO0
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5 RESULT BEFORE INCOME TAX
Ressiilt barlone income i was staled after changing the following:

In HK$°000 2023 2024
AudRors remunemsn o7 59
6 INCOME TAX

Mo Hong Kong profits Lu has been provided as the Company did not huve any azsessatle prolit dusing e yedrs ended
31 December 2023 and 2024

o deferred incorme tax a4set and Rahbility was recognised as a1 3] Decamiber 2023 and 2024,

7 SHARE CAPITAL
2003 2024
Mumber af Share Humber of Share
share Ccapital share capital
HiS HHS
tsuied and fully paid:
Ordinary shane of no par value
Beginning and end of year 1 1 1 1

8 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company has 3 sgacie and Imited mle (o pdminister the HKT Trus, It ks not actively engaged in running the businessss which are
managed by HKT Limited, a felow subsidiary ol the Company, and the aperaling swtrsdianes of HKT Limied, Themfore. the Compary
s ot sibsect 80 extemally imposed capal requirements.

9 FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS
As the principal acthaly of the Compary is 1o adrminested the HKT Trusk, the Compary is not esposed to cradit, liguidiy and marked ek
(ineluding omeign curmency rak and intisrest rate rigk), Rick managernant is carfied oul under polecsss spproved by the Bagd,

T Tyl et T Lirvwtemd sl Rospue S04 205
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HOTES TO THE FINSANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HET MANAGEMENT LIWETED ornTALED)
3 Decomose 2024

10 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
ANMUAL ACCOUMNTING PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
Up o the date of approval of (hese Fnancial statemments, the HKICPA has msued the fofawing new and amended Hong Kong Financis!
Reporting Standards which sre not yet effectihe o the accounting perod ended 31 Decembser 2004 snd which have not been sarly

acoprbed in these financial sixiements:
EMective for accounting periods
beginaing on or alter
HHAS 21 iAmandments) The Effects of Changes in Foresgn Exchange Rates 1 January 2025
HEAS 28 (2011) (Amendments} Irvesiments in Associates.and Joint Ventures Ta be announced
HKFRS T [Amendments) Fnancial Instruments: Disclodues 1 Jamuary 2026
HEFRS D (Amendments) Financial Instrisments 1 Jawary 2026
HIEFRS 10 {Amendimernts) Cormolidated Financial Staterments To be announced
H¥FRS 18 Presentntion and Disclosure in Financial Statamants 1 Jamusry 2027
HFFRS 19 Subnidianes without Public Atcountability; Disclosses 1 Janwary 2027
Anmal Improvements to HKFRS Actounting Stindards — Visksme 11 1 January 2026
HE Inferpretation 5 (Revised) Presentabon of Fnancial Sistoments - 1 January 2027

Claasification by the Bomowes of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

Apart {rom the above, & number of impeovements and minos amendments to Hong Kong Financial Reportng Standards have alo
been Bed by the HEICPA but they ace not yet effective for ihe acoounting period ended 31 Decemiber 2024 and have not been ety
adoghed in these financis stajemends.

Mona of the above & eapectod 10 huvie 3 Significant effect on The resull of operation and inancial position of the Comipary,

204 WK Fruatmned MR Lemsien Aol Begars JO00
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HKT

1.00
HKT

7,579,776.147 2024 12 31
PCCW

12,954,188,770.436 2024 12 31

HKT
PCCW
PCCW HKT HKT 52.24
PCCW HKT PCCW HKT
PCCW
pPCCw HKT HKT pCCw
PCCW
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HKICPA HKT
HKT HKT
HKT HKT
CGU
HKT HKT
HKT 2024
12 31
TSS
23,243 10,684
34,753
HKT
HKT
HKFRS
TSS
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HKT HKT
18

HKT 2024

12 31 49,799
CGU CGU
HKT
CGU HKT
EBITDA CGU

36

EBITDA

CGU

HKFRS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE HOLDERS OF SHARE STAPLED UNITS OF HKT TRUST AND HKT LIMITED
(HKT Trust is a trust constituted under the laws of Hong Kong; HKT Limited is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of HKT Trust, HKT Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) and of HKT
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “HKT Limited Group”) set out on pages 96 to 193 (together referred to as the “HKT Trust and HKT Limited
consolidated financial statements”). As explained in note 1 to the HKT Trust and HKT Limited consolidated financial statements, the
consolidated financial statements of the HKT Trust and the consolidated financial statements of HKT Limited are presented together. The HKT
Trust and HKT Limited consolidated financial statements together comprise:

« the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024;

« the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

« the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

« the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

« the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

« the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the HKT Trust and HKT Limited consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group and of the HKT Limited Group as at 31 December 2024, and of their consolidated financial performance and their consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the HKT Trust and HKT Limited Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group and of the HKT Limited Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the HKT Trust and HKT
Limited consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the HKT Trust and
HKT Limited consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

« Revenue recognition

« Impairment assessments for cash-generating units (“CGUs") containing goodwill

¢ Income taxes

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Revenue recognition
Refer to notes 7 and 8 to the HKT Trust and HKT Limited
consolidated financial statements

The Group and the HKT Limited Group recognised revenue of
HK$34,753 million for the year ended 31 December 2024,
including external revenue from Telecommunications Services
(“TSS”) Business and Mobile Business of HK$23,243 million
and HK$10,684 million respectively.

The Group and the HKT Limited Group enter into bundled sale
contracts with customers in which, apart from the provision of
telecommunications services, the Group and the HKT Limited
Group have certain other performance obligations to customers
such as the delivery of handsets, equipment and gifts.

Revenue recognition is subject to high degree of estimation
uncertainty and significant inherent risk. Significant
management’s judgements were needed to appropriately
identify the number of performance obligations included in the
multiple-element arrangements, to estimate the stand-alone
selling price of each performance obligation, and to allocate the
total transaction prices from customers to each performance
obligation of multiple-element arrangements based on its
relative stand-alone selling price.

Significant effort was spent auditing the revenue recognised by
TSS Business and Mobile Business due to the large volume of
transactions, the complexity of the systems used, the significant
judgements involved in the identification of performance
obligations and the estimation of the stand-alone selling price of
each performance obligation to allocate the total transaction
prices to multiple-element arrangements.

Our procedures in relation to the judgements and estimates
used in the recognition of revenue included:

« Obtaining an understanding of and evaluating the internal
controls, and validating key controls in place on revenue
recognition and assessing the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and the judgement involved in determining
assumptions to be applied;

Assessing the appropriateness of management’s
assessments on the identification of performance obligations
based on the contractual agreements and our knowledge of
the business;

Assessing the reasonableness of management’s judgements
and estimates used to determine the stand-alone selling price
of each performance obligation and to allocate revenue to
multiple-element arrangements with reference to observable
market data;

Testing, on a sample basis, the revenue transactions by
tracing the transactions from the billing systems to supporting
documents, such as underlying invoices, contractual
agreements and evidence of cash receipts;

Testing, on a sample basis, the calculation and allocation of
total transaction prices to each performance obligation of
multiple-element arrangements; and

« Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures related to revenue
recognition in the context of HKFRSs disclosure
requirements.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that the
judgements and estimates used in the recognition of revenue
are supported by the available evidence.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessments for CGUs containing goodwill
Refer to note 18 to the HKT Trust and HKT Limited
consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2024, the Group and the HKT Limited
Group had goodwill amounting to HK$49,799 million.

Goodwill was allocated to CGUs, and the recoverable amount
of each CGU was determined by management based on value-
in-use calculation using cash flow projections which are subject
to high degrees of estimation uncertainty and significant
inherent risk. In carrying out the impairment assessments,
significant management judgements were made to identify
CGUs and to determine the key assumptions, including
average revenue growth rates, average EBITDA growth rates,
terminal growth rates and discount rates used in the value-in-
use calculations. Management has concluded that there is no
impairment in respect of the goodwill in the current year.

Our procedures in relation to the judgements and estimates
used in the impairment assessments included:

Obtaining an understanding of the management’s control
procedures of the impairment assessments and assessing the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and the judgement involved
in determining assumptions to be applied;

Assessing the reasonableness of management'’s identification
of CGUs based on the Group’s and the HKT Limited Group’s
accounting policies and our understanding of the Group’s and
the HKT Limited Group’s businesses;

Involving our internal experts in assessing the value-in-use
calculation methodology in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 36 Impairment of Assets;

Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions,
including average revenue growth rates, average EBITDA
growth rates, terminal growth rates and discount rates, based
on our knowledge of the business and the observable market
data of the industry and with the involvement of our internal
experts, where applicable;

Comparing the data in the cash flow projections to the
relevant CGUSs' historical performance, financial budgets and
forecasts;

Performing sensitivity analysis on the key assumptions to
which the recoverable amounts are the most sensitive; and

Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures related to the
impairment assessments in the context of HKFRSs disclosure
requirements.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that the
judgements and key assumptions used in the impairment
assessments are supported by the available evidence.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Income taxes
Refer to note 12 to the HKT Trust and HKT Limited
consolidated financial statements

The Group and the HKT Limited Group operate across several
jurisdictions and are subject to Hong Kong and overseas taxes.
From time to time, there are queries raised by relevant tax
authorities in respect of the tax treatments of certain matters.
Significant judgements were used to estimate the outcome of
these matters and the appropriate amount of current income tax
liabilities. These estimations are subject to high degree of
estimation uncertainty and significant inherent risk.

Our procedures in relation to the judgements and estimates

used in the recognition of current income tax liabilities included:

Understanding management’s internal controls and
processes for the recognition of current income tax liabilities
and assessing the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and the
judgement involved in determining assumptions to be applied;

Enquiring with management and assessing management’s
basis used to compute the current income tax liabilities and
the estimated outcome of queries raised by relevant tax
authorities; and

Assessing the appropriateness of the current income tax
computation for the current year, according to the tax rules in
the respective jurisdictions.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that the
judgements and assumptions used in the recognition of current
income tax liabilities are supported by the available evidence.

Other Information

The directors of HKT Management Limited (in its capacity as the trustee-manager of the HKT Trust) (the “Trustee-Manager”) and the directors
of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information included in the HKT Trust and
HKT Limited 2024 annual report other than the HKT Trust and HKT Limited consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of HKT

Management Limited and our auditor's reports thereon.

Our opinion on the HKT Trust and HKT Limited consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the HKT Trust and HKT Limited consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the HKT Trust and HKT Limited consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the HKT Trust and HKT Limited Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Trustee-Manager and the directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the HKT Trust and HKT Limited
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the HKT Trust and HKT Limited consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.
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In preparing the HKT Trust and HKT Limited consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the

HKT Limited Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group and the HKT Limited Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s and the HKT Limited Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the HKT Trust and HKT Limited Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the HKT Trust and HKT Limited consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
HKT Trust and HKT Limited consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the HKT Trust and HKT Limited consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the HKT Limited Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the HKT Limited Group
's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the HKT Trust and HKT Limited consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and the HKT Limited Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the HKT Trust and HKT Limited consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the HKT Trust and HKT Limited consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
units within the Group and the HKT Limited Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the HKT Trust and HKT Limited consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and

to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the HKT
Trust and HKT Limited consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 February 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF HKT MANAGEMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited
The financial statements of HKT Management Limited (the “Company”), which are set out on pages 197 to 206, comprise:

« the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024;

« the income statement for the year then ended;

« the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended,

« the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

« the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

« the notes to the financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information included in the HKT Trust and HKT
Limited 2024 annual report other than the financial statements of the Company, the consolidated financial statements of HKT Trust and HKT
Limited and our auditor's reports thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern,

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 February 2025
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